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CITY OF WALTHAM
Commonwealth of Massachusetts

610 Main Street
Waltham, Massachusetts 02452-5 5 80

(781) 3 t4-3220
Email: pcentofanti@city.waltham.ma.us

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council and Citizens of the City of Waltham, Massachusetts:

At the close of each fiscal year, state law requires the City of Waltham to publish a complete set of financial
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP),
and that are audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by affum of licensed certified
public accountants. Pursuant to that requirement we hereby issue the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) of the City of Waltham, Massachusetts, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 for your review.

This report consists of managemenf s representations concerning the finances of the City. Consequentþ,
management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in
this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the City has

established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the governmenfs assets

from loss, theft or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the Cit¡/s financial
statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits,
the Cit¡/s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than
absolute assurance that the financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 arc fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP.

The City of Waltharnls financial statements have been audited by Sullivan, Rogers and Company, LLC a firm of
licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that
the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, are free of material misstatement. The
independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by managemenf
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the
audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the City's financial statements
for the fiscal year ended fune 30, 2013 are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditors'
report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City was part of a broader, federally mandated "Single
Audif' designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit
engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial
statements, but also on the audited governmenfs internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with
special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards.
These reports are available in the City of Waltham's separately issued Single Audit Report.
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GAAP requfues that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic
financial statements in the form of the Managemenfs Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal
is designed to complement that analysis and should be read in conjunction with it. The Cit1/ s MD&A can be
found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the City

Settled in 1630 and incorporated as a Town in1738, Waltham was chartered as a City in 1884. Located in
Middlesex County, 9 miles west of Bostory the City is bordered by the Towns of Belnon! Lexington, Lincoln,
Newtor¡ Watertown and Weston. The City encompasses approximately 12.7 square miles and, according to the
Division of Local Services, has a population of 60,605.

Subject to local legislative decisions made by a fifteen (15) member City Council elected for two-year terms, the
affairs of the City are generally administered by a Mayor, who is elected for a four-year term on an at-large basis.
As chief executive officer, the Mayor appoints, subject to approval by the City Council, all the other principal
executive officers of the City other than the City Clerk. The Mayor is responsible for the administration of the
fiscal and other affairs of the City with the exception of local school affa:u:s which are administered by the School
Committee.

The City Council annually elects its own Presiden! who presides over all Council meetings and appoints all
standing committees of the Council. Actions of the Council are generally subject to veto by the Mayor, but such
action may be overridden by a two-thirds vote of the Council members.

The School Committee, whose members are elected for four-year terms, has exclusive jurisdiction over the Ci$/s
public school system and appoints a Superintendent to administer the day-to -day affallrs of the system.

The City provides general governmental services for the territory within its boundaries, including police and fire
protection, curbside collection and disposal of trash and recyclable materials, public education in grades
kindergarten through twelve, water and sewer services, street maintenance, parks and recreation. The
Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority provides bus coverage throughout the City with connections to the
metropolitan Boston area as well as commuter rail service between the City and Boston. The Massachusetts
Water Resources Authority provides water and sewerage disposal services to the City. The Waltham Housing
Authority, a separate legal entity, provides public housing for eligible low income fami-lies, the elderly and the
handicapped.

Within 170 days after the annual organization of the City government (which is ordinarily in early January), the
Mayor is required to submit a budget of proposed expenditures for the fiscal year beginning on the next July 1.

The City Council may make appropriations for the recommended purposes and may reduce or reject any item.
Without a recommendation of the Mayor, the Council may not make any appropriation for a purpose not
included in the proposed budget except by a two-thirds vote in the case of the failure of the Mayor to
recommend an appropriation for such a purpose within 7 days after a request from the Council. The Council
may not increase any item without the recommendation of the Mayor (except as provided by legislatiorç
recommendation of the school committee or regional district school committee and by two-thirds vote of the
Council, provided that such increase does not cause the total annual budget to exceed the property tax
limitations). If the Council fails to act on any item of the proposed budget within 45 days, that item takes effect.
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If the Mayor does not make a timely budget submissiory provision is made for preparation of a budget by the
Council. Provision is also made for supplementary appropriations upon recommendation of the Mayor. Water
and sewer department expenditures are included in the budgets adopted by City Council.

The City manages its risk through a combination of self-insured programs and premium based coverage with
commercial insurance cartiers. Health care and workers compensation are self-insured plans. The City is exposed
to various risks of loss related to general liabtlity, property and casualty, workers' compensation and
unemployment compensation claims. Buildings and property are insured against fire, theft and natural disaster
to the extent that losses exceed the City's deductible per incident. These deductibles vary by type of incident,
none of which exceed $25,000.

Factors Affecting Economic Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the
broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of Waltham operates.

The City is a mature industrial-residential community with the industrial activity, a good part of which is in the
electronics/high-technology field, concentrated along Interstate 95 (Route 128). Retail trade is concentrated in the
Cif's central business district. Several nationally known companies have chosen to locate in the City. In
addition to its commercial base, the City is home to both Bentley University and Brandeis University.

The City continues to manage its financial affairs in a prudenf fiscally responsible manner as is demorutrated by
its excellent Moody's bond rating of Aa1 and Standard & Poor's bond rating of AA+, even with the limitations of
state aid funds from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and the current overall economy. The City's financial
actions are generally guided by long range planning tools such as a five-year Capital Improvement Program;
prioriüzing spending plans and identifying discretionary spending; pay-as-you go financing strategies; long-term
planning for all liabilities including pension and insurance reserves and municipal best practices, which are
reviewed annually at the beginning of each budget development cycle. Additionatly the City has enhanced its
revenue flexibility by establishing enterprise funds and many other user supported programs. This has allowed
the City to shift the operating costs of certain services to the users so that little or no tax support subsidizes these
servlces.

The City maintains a strong industrial and commercial tax base. In FY2013 the combined assessed value of these
properties represented 32.9% of the total City value. The residential values demonstrate the desirability of the
City. The City's proximity to Boston and major highways, its quality of life, and dedication to public education
underlies the community's popular reputation.

Quarterly tax billings and excellent collection rates have eliminated the need to borrow on a short term basis to
maintain cash flow. The Cit¡/s investment options are governed by Massachusetts General Laws and focus on
safety, liquidity and yield.

At the State level, the economic outlook for the Commonwealth has been slightly improving. It is anticipated that
state aid will be level funded or see modest increases at besf in the following years. Optimistically, this will place
the City in a position of having a lesser degree of reliance on property taxes to cover the increasing cost of
providing services.
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The City is currently managing approximately $106.0 million in long and short term debt. The long term
indebtedness consists of $102.5 million of general obligation bonds; of which $25.4 million is self-supporting
through enterprise fund revenues and $3.5 million of bond anticipation notes are expected to be renewed in June
2014. Under the school building assistance program, the City was eligible for a state grant representrngg}%
reimbursement of approved costs incurred in the building of eight new school facilities. The City received 9124.8
million of such assistance based on reimbursement of eligible construction costs. $24.7 million was received in
FY2005, $44.4 million in FY2006, $29.8 millioninFY2007, $24.6 million in FY2008 and the final payment of $1.3
million was received in FY2010. The City has outstanding bonds that provided the remainder of the cost.

The City has authorized and unissued debt for school facilities, water/sewer infrastructure improvements,
departmental equipment land acquisition/development and other various projects totaling $19.1 million as of
June 30, 2013. The authorized and unissued debt includes $8.1 million for water/sewer infrastructure
improvements.

The City of Waltham contributes to the Waltham Contributory Retirement System (the System), a cost sharing,
defined benefit pension plan administered by the Waltham Contributory Retirement Board (Board). Each year,
an independent actuary engaged by the Board calculates the amount of the annual contribution that the City of
Waltham must make to the pension plan to ensure that the plan will be able to fully meet its obligations to retired
employees on a timely basis. As required by law, the City of Waltham fully funds each year's annual required
contribution to the pension plan as determined by the actuary. As of January'L,2013, the latest actuarial valuation
date, the System had succeeded in fundingï1,% of the present value of the projected benefits earned by
employees. The remaining unfunded amount is being systematically funded over the remaining 22yearc as part
of the annual required contribution as calculated by the actaary.

The City of Waltham also provides post retirement healthcare benefits for certain retirees and their dependents.
Currently, there are approximately L,270 retired employees receiving these benefits, which are financed on a pay-
as-you-go basis. GAAP now requires the City to conduct an actuarial valuation to determine the unfunded
liability and to recognize the annual cost of reducing this liability in addition to the current year benefits. The
City completed this actuarial valuation effective June 30, 2012. Il the City is unable to fund the minimum annual
contribution as determined by the actuarial valuation, the unpaid amount will be required to be recorded as a

liability on the financial statements of the City. The City established and maintains an OPEB Trust Fund with a

balance of approximately $8.1 million as of June 30,2013

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. This was the ninth consecutive year that the City has received this
prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City had to publish an easily
readable and efficientþ organized CAFR that satisfied both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR continues
to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the dedication and commitment to
excellence of the staff of the Auditing Departrrent We would like to express our appreciation to the members of
all the departments who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report. We would also like to
acknowledge and give credit to the Mayor and the City Council for their consistent support to uphold the highest
standards of professionalism in the management of the City of Walthamls finances.
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Ce rtif ed Pu b li c Acc o iltttan ts

Independent Auditors' Report

To the Honorable City Council and Mayor
City of Waltham, Massachusetts

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Waltham, Massachusetts,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013 (except for the Waltham Contributory Retirement System, which is as
of and for the fiscal year ended December 31,,2012), and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the CiÇ of Waltham, Massachusetts' basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Managemmt's Responsibility for the Einancial Støtemmts

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatemen! whether due to fraud or error.

Au dit o t/ s Re sp onsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Støndards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuïance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgmen! including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or eïror. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropïiate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by managemenf as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Waltham, Massachusetts, as of fune3},2013 (except for the Waltham
Contributory Retirement System, which is as of and for the fiscal year ended December 31.,2012), and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Møtters

Require d Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the managemenfs
discussion and analysis (located on pages 14 through 24) and general fund and community preservation fund
budgetary comparisons and certain pension and other postemployment benefits information (located on pages 78
through 97)be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with managemenfs responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Waltham, Massachusetts' basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining
statements, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements.

The combining statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directþ to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the combining financial statements are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them.
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Other Reporting Required by Goaeìnment Auìliting Standards

In accordance with Goaernment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated Decembet 79,2013, on
our consideration of the City of Waltham, Massachusetts' internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Goaernment Auditing Standards in considering the City of Waltham, Massachusetts' internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

December 19,2013
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Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended fune 30, 2013

As management of the City of Waltham, Massachusetts (City), we offer readers of these financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

Financiøl Highlights

position). The City's governmental activities had negative unrestricted net position totaling (fi49,699,586)
and$23,952,132inunrestricted net position for its business-type activities.

totaling 983,567,139, an increase of fi1,4,685,226 in comparison with the prior year . $28,653,146 represents
unassigned fund balance.

percent of total general fund expenditures and transfers out.

issued.

Oaeraiew of the Bøsic Financiøl Støtements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to thebasic finøncial statements, which consists
of the following three components:

1.. Government-wide financial statements
2. Fund financial statements
3. Notes to the basic financial statements.

This report also contains required supplementary and other information in addition to the basic financial
statements.

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City's non-fiduciary assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the governmenfs net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.9., uncollected taxes, earned
but unused vacation leave, etc.).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (gwernmentøl actiuities) from other functions that are intended to
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type actiuities).

City of Wølthøm, Møssøchusetts 15 Comprehensiae Annuøl Einanciøl Report



Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201.3

Governmental activities include general government, public safety, education, public works, health and human
services, culture and recreatiorç community development and debt service (interest). Business-type activities
include the sewer, water and Veterans Memorial Rink operations.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 26-28 of this report.

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds can be divided into
the following categories and are described below:

'1,. Governmentalfunds
2. Proprietary funds
3. Fiduciary funds

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. Ffowever, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental funds financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of expendable resources, as

well as on balances of expendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term effect of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds
balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains 24 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental
funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expendifures, and changes in fund
balances for the general, highway projects (capital project), community development block grant (special
revenue)/ communi$r preservation (special revenue) and city capital projects (capital project) funds, each of
which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other 19 governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation tttled nonmajor goaernmentøl funds. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements on pages 101-108 of this report.

The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 29-35 of this report.

Proprietary funds

The City maintains two types of proprietary funds.

Enterpise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The City uses an enterprise fund to account for its sewer, water and Veterans
Memorial Rink operations, for which sewer and water are considered to be major funds.

Internal seruice funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City's
various functions. The City uses an internal service fund to account for employee health insurance activities.
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Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Because these services predominantþ benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been
included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements but are combined into a
single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary funds financial statements.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 36-38 of this report.

Fiduciary funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those
funds ate not available to support the City's programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is similar to that
used for proprietary funds.

The fiduciary funds provide separate information for the Cit¡/r pension trust fund. Private-purpose trust funds
and agency funds are reported and combined into a single, aggregate presentation in the fiduciary fund financial
statements under the captions "private purpose trust funds" antd" agency funds", respectively. Individual fund
data for private-purpose trust funds and agency funds are provided in the form of combining statements on
pages 111,-112 and page 114 of this report.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 39-40 of this report.

Notes to the basic financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 41-
77 of thts report.

Required Supplementary and Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information regarding the budget comparison for the general fund and community preservation
fund and certain pension and other postemployment benefits information. Such information can be located on
pages 78-97 of this report respectively.

The combining statements previously referred to are presented immediately following the required
supplementary inf ormation.

G oa ernment-Wide E inanciøl Analy sis

The following tables present current and prior year data on the government-wide financial statements.
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Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Net Position

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a governmenf s financial position. The
Cit¡/s assets exceeded liabilitiesby fi195,247,013 at the close of the fiscal year and are summarued as follows:

G oa ernmental Actiuities Busine s s -Ty p e Actia ities

2012 2012

Assets

Cu¡rent assets.

Noncurrent assets (excluding

capital assets)..

Capital assets (net)... .. . ... ... ... ... ... ..

Total assets. .. . .

Liabilities

Current liabilities

(excluding debt),.,..................
Noncurrent liabilities

(excluding debÐ ... ... .

Cu¡rent debt...

Noncur¡ent debt.

Total liabilities..

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets... .. . .

Restricted... . ..

Unrestricted... .

186,805,43 1.67,462,405

1.65,312,71,2 1,67,006,050

46,282,436 40,566,045

(4e,6e9,586) (3s,11s,e0e)

fi 1,08,317,750 S 94,962,8s2 $ 34,471,525 g 32,137,8e0 g 142,789,275 fi 127,100,742

294-t,176
237,442,079

348,701.,005

3,037,724

24-1,91,8,015 27,046,788 25,278,1,61

2,941.,176

264,488,867

3,037,724

267,196,776

397,334,642

70,715,69't

19,488,501,

89,220,907

61.,518,313 57,4't6,051 410,219,318

17,662,459 L6,176,125 1,028,005 1,185,108 -18,690,464 17,361,233

339,918,591,

88,5M,21.5
-11.,372,407

69,226,362

69,275,937

13,480,234

68,530,-109

1,772,265

z434,Ms
22,932,-t47

28,1,66,862

1.,439,754

6,m8,267

20,690,798

90,31.6,480

13,806,852

92,-t58,509

29,323,927 214,972,305 196,786,332

9,399,3L9

23,952,132

"11.,726,473

16,365,651,

174,712,031. 178,732,523

46,282,436 40,566,045

(2s,747,4s4) (18,750,2s8)

g 195,247,013 fi 200,548,31.0Totalnetposition........,..........$ -161.,895,5625 172,456,186$ 33,351.,451.$ 28,092'124

The largest portion of the Cit/s net position in the amount of fi174,T12,0g1reflects its net investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, construction in progress, land improvements, buildings and improvements, equipmen!
infrastructute and library books); less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. These capital
assets are used to provide services to citizens; consequentþ, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used
to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the Cit/s net position in the amount oÍ $46,282,436 represents resources that are subject
to external restrictions on how they may be used.

Unrestricted net position of fi23,952,132 may be used to support business-type activities. The City has no
unrestricted net position available for the support of governmental activities. Such resources have been
corìsumed with the recognition of other post employment benefits liabilities.
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Changes in Net Position

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the Cit¡/s total net position decreased by $5,301.,297, compared to a
decrease of $17,577,882 in the prior fiscal year. These amounts are summartzed as follows:

Gou emncttal Actiu i tie s Brß ine s s-Ty p e Actiaitie s

20"t3 2012 2013

Revenues

Progrøm Reuenues:

Charges for seruices... . . . .... . .. . . . . . . . .. . . ........ $

Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions..

General Rnenues:

Real estate and personal property taxes, . .. . . .

Motor vehicle and other excise taxes...........

Hote/motel taxes..................,
Meals tax. ,. .... . .

Penalties and interest on taxes. . .. . .. .

Payments in lieu of taxes....,......

Conurunity preservation surcha¡ges. . . .... . ...

Grants and contributions not restricted

to specific programs.....,.......,..

Uruestricted investnent income.

Gain on sale of capital assets......

Totalrevenues... 22+416,874 211,678,4r0 34,968,996 28;t50,536 259,385,870

7'J.,906,437

33,0M,593

2,820,719

1.53,272,077

6,650,738

3,298,317

1.,1.67,324

702,090

54,812

2,475,978

8,835,809

13s,838

52,748

10,047,812 g

33,232,557

(2,404\439)

747,947,835

6,372,776

3,06'1.,233

1,128,180

578,982

53,905

2,393,595

9,747,352

724,628

34,8M,775

124,881.

28,777,363

33,773

46,750,552

33,169,474

2,820,179

153,272,077

6,650,738

3,298,317

7,-t67,324

702,090

54,872

2,475,978

8,835,809

131838

52,748

38,765,775

33,265,724

Q.,404,43e)

747,941,835

6,372,776

3,061,233

1,128,180

51.8,982

53,905

2,393,59s

9,747,352

724,628

239,768,946

72,839,887

54,892,255
'J.25,803,368

17,620,280

4,043,942

6,079,224

3,921.,262

2,637,033

17,387,941.

77,796,257

397,385

Expenses

General govemment....,,...........
Public safety.. . ..

Education.......,

Public worlc... .

Health and human services... ... .

Cr¡lture and recreation..,..........

Community development.........
Debt service - interest..............

14,431,757

s6,396,153

r27,632,730

79,707,437

4,332,86s

6,327,318

L042,802
2,581,037

72,839,887

54,892,255

125,803,368

17,620,280

4,043,942

6,019,224

3,921.,262

2,637,033

17,382,-t77

77,995,289

457,608

L7,38'J.,94L

11.,796,251.

397,385

L4,431.,751.

56,396,1.53

727,632,730

79,707,437

4,332,865

6,327,318

4,042,802

2,587,037

1.7,382,777

17,995,289

457,608

Totalexperues.. 234,852,093

Change in net position before t¡ansfe¡s.. . .... , . .. , .. , . . . . (70,435,219)

Transfers, net.... (125,405)

Change in net position.... .. . .... . . (70,560,624)

Net position - beginning of year.. 772,456,786

227,777,257 29,835,074 29,575,577 264,687,167 257,M6,828

(76,152,8/47) 5,733,922 (7,42s,047)

(7s,000) 12s,4os 71000

(76,227,U1) 5,259,327 (1,,3s0,04\)

788,6U,027

(s,307,2en Í7,s77,882)

(5,301,2e4 Q7,s77,882)

Netposition-endofyear........,....................,......$ 767,895,562 g 172,456,196

28,092,124 29,42,765 200,548,310 278,126,192

$ 33,351,451, $ 28,092,124 g 195,247,013 $ 200,548,310
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Governmental activities decreased the City's net position by $10,560,624. Inthe prior year, governmental
activities decreased the Ci!y's net position by $L6,227,841. The key elements of this change are as follows:

Business-type activities increased the Cit¡/s net position by fi5,259,327. In the prior year, business-type activities
decreased the Cit¡/s net position by $1,350,041. The key element of this change is the increase in charges for
services revenue of approximately $6,700,000, primarily due to a rate increase that occurred at the midpoint of the
prior fiscal year was in effect for the entire current fiscal year.

F und E in øn ci øI S t at ement Analy si s

As noted earlier, the CiÇ uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds

The focus of the governmental funds is to provide hformation on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. In particular,
unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a governmenfs net resources available for spending at
the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances totaling
983,567,139, an inctease of fi14,685,226 in comparison with the prior year. $28,653,146 represents unassigned fund
balance. The remainder of fund balance includes the following constraints:

The general fund is the primary operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, the general
fund'sunassignedfundbalancetotaledfi2g,lg6,S20,whiletotalfundbalancewas$43,810,778. Asameasureof
the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to
total general fund expenditures and transfers out. Unassigned fund balance represents 14.8% of total general
fund expendifures and transfers out, while total fund balance represents 22.2% of that same amount.

The balance of the City's general fund increased $8,802535 during fiscal year 2013. Although the City recognized
a budgetary surplus of fi14,736,031 (excluding encumbrances and continuing appropriations), approximately
$13,700,000 of reserves was utilized for spending during fiscal year 2013.

Financial highlights of the City's other major governmental funds are as follows:

The fund balance of the highway projects fund (capital project) did not change during the current fiscal year. The
fund recognizedfi1,531,475 of intergovernmental revenues and incurred$L,53-1,,475 of expenditures.

The fund balance of the community development block grant fund (special revenue) increased fi25,250 during the
current fiscal year. The fund recognized 91,121,408 of intergovernmental ïevenues, 975,208 of departmental and
other revenues and $28 of investment income. Expenditures incurred totaled 91,171,394.
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The fund balance of the community preservation fund (special revenue) increased fi1,936,695 during the current
fiscal year. The fund recognized fi2,469,122 of community preservation surcharges, $1,288,6M of
intergovernmental revenues, 95,774 of penalties and interest on taxes and $39,386 of investment income.
Expenditures incurred totaled 91,,866,23'1,.

The fund balance of the city capital projects fund (capital project) increased fi3,323,334 during the current fiscal
year. The fund recognized $7 ,574,685 of proceeds of bonds and notes, fi1,615,200 of proceeds of refunding bonds
and5127,303 of premium from issuance of refunding bonds. Expenditures incur¡ed totaled $5,993,854.

Proprietary funds

The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the sewer, water and Veterans Memorial Rink enterprise funds at the end of the year
amounted to$10,212,-1,24,fi13,336,669 andfi]02,292, respectively. The sewer, water and Veterans Memorial Rink
enterprise funds had an increase in net position for the year of fi2,267 ,883, 92,961,315, and fi30,129, respectively.
Other factors concerning the finances of the fund have already been addressed in the discussion of the City's
business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The original general fund budget oÍ fi189,-1.47,363 was increased by fi9,502,961 (5.0%) during the fiscal year. The
following table summarizes the increase:

Purpose of Increase Amount Funding Source

Transfer to OPEB trust fund... .............. $
Capital improvements......
Snow and ice removal expenses....
Planning - Met state parking lot improvements.........
Worker's compensation claims and settlements. . . . . . . . .

Schools learning initiative.
Police overtime expenses....
Rubbish collection/rerycling expenses....
Libr ary educational expenses. . . .

Voter registration and election expenses....
Law claims expenses...
Veterans benefits expenses.. . .

McCabe playground improvements............
Transfer to water enterprise furd..........
City clerk salaries expenses....
Emergency management expenses. .

Veterans salaries expenses....
Transfer to fraffic/parking meters nonmajor fund.....
Police - underage alcohol enforcement program........

7,013,004 Transfer from health insurance trust fund
945,887 Unassigned fund balance
M0,000 Unassigned fund balance
297,116 Unassigned fund balance
200,000 Unassigned fund balance
123,201 Unassigned fund balance
110,000 Unassigned fund balance
100,000 Unassigned fund balance
50,000 Transfer from nonmajor governmental fund

Unassigned fund balance
Unassigned fund balance
Unassigned fund balance
Unassigned fund balance
Unassigned fund balance
Unassigned fund balance
Unassigned fund balance
Unassigned fund balance
Unassigned fund balance
Unassigned fund balance

50,000
45,000

30,000
26,856
23,500
'1,5,200

13,000

9,600
8,100
2,497

Total increase.......... fi 9,502,96'1,
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During the year, general fund revenues and other financing uses exceeded budgetary estimates, other financing
sources were less than budgetary estimates, and expenditures, encumbrances and continuing appropriations
were less than appropriations, resulting in a positive overall budget to actual variance of approximately
$8,300,000.

Cøpitøl Asset ønd D ebt Ailministrøtion

Capital assets

The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities at the end of the fiscal
year totaled fi264,488,867 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, land
improvements, buildings and improvements, equipmen! infrastructure and library books. The total decrease in
the investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year totaled 1,.0% (a-L.7o/o decrease for governmental activities
and a0.7% increase for business-type activities).

Major capital asset events that occurred during the current fiscal year include the following:

The following table summarizes the Cifls capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

G oa ernmental Actiaities B u s in e s s -Ty p e A ctiaiti e s

201.2 2013 201.2 2073

l^and...................................... $

l,and improvements..................
Buildings and inrprovements.......

Machinery and equipment...... ....
Infrasbucture..

Library books.

20,096,087

11,693,001,

173,599,326

6,598,989

24,802,920

651,,756

19,5ß,276

10,435,683

177,812,673

6,908,884

26,593,570

663,929

38,550 $

1.,889"581

860,679

24,'257,978

38,550 $

-1,984,84

969,352

22,285,415

20,1U,637

11.,693,001

1,75,488,907

7,459,668

49,060,898

65'1,,756

19,541,826

10,435,683

L79,797,517

7,878,'236

48,878,985

663,929

Totalcapitalassets....................$ 237,M2,079 $ 241,918,015 $ 27,M6,788 5 25,278,161 g 264,488,862 g 262,196,176

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 5 on pages 57-59 of this report.
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Long-Term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, total bonded debt and unamortized premiums outstanding wasfi1,02,465,361,,
which is backed by the full faith and credit of the City, and is summarized as follows:

G ou ernmentøl Actio itie s B us ine s s-Typ e Actiu ities

201,2 2013 2012 2012

General obligation bonds. . . . .. . .. $ 77,098,769 fi 76,353,856 fi
L,IWRA notes............
MWPATnotes

17,727,499

4,595,3M

3,043,749

L6,587,306

3,006,106

3,262,-1,40

94,826,268 ff 92,941,1.62

4,595,U4 3,006,1.06

3,M3,749 3,262,140

Total bonds and notes and

unamortizedpremiums........$ 77,098,7698 76,353,856fi 25,366,592fi 22,855,552fi 1,02,465,361 g 99,209,408

The City's total bonded debt increased $3,255,953 (or 3.3%) during the fiscal year. The City issued fi14,894,450 tn
general obligation bonds and MWRA notes during the fiscal year.

The City received an AA+ bond rating from Standard & Poor's for the general obligation bonds issued on June 20,
2013.

Additional i¡formation on the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 10 on pages 64-70 of this report.

E c o nomi c E øct o r s øn d N ext Y e ø/ s Bu dget s øn d Røt e s

Waltham is one of the primary economic engines of metropolitan Boston. Waltham's $2.8 billion commercial and
industrial tax base makes it one of the most highly valued business centers in the state. Interstate 95 passes
through the western part of the City and access to the Massachusetts Turnpike is close-by. Growing industries
focused on information technology, communication, educatiorç consulting services and manufacfuring have
chosen to locate in Waltham. Waltham homeowners consequentþ enjoy a significant benefit from a relatively
high tax contribution from business properties, including tax policies which shift the burden from the residential
property.

The Waltham Clty Council approved the fiscal year 2014 operating budget totaling fi220.5 million during fune
2013. This represents a $6.5 million increase, or 3% from the fiscal yeat 2013 approved budget. Included in this
budget is $68.8 million for education, $30.3 millien for public safety, $31.2 million for the water/sewer/rtnk
enterprise funds, $52.5 million for employee and retiree health/pension benefits, $10.6 million for debt service
and $200,000 towards funding the OPEB liability.

Of the 9220.5 million fiscal year 2014 operating budget, the revenues budgeted to balance it are property taxes -
70.7%,local receipts - 8.2o/o, state aid - 7.0% and the enterprise funds user charges - 14.7%. The average owner-
occupied single family home has an assessed value of $381,900. After applying the residential exemption, the
annual property tax bill for the average owner-occupied single family home is fi4,077. This represents an increase
oÍfi64 from fiscal year 2013.
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Re q ue st s for Inf ormøtion

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Ci!y's finances for all those with an interest
in its finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
financial information should be addressed to the City Auditor, Crty HaL 610 Main Street, Waltham,
Massachusetts 02452.
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2013

Goverment

Governmental Business-type
Activities ActivitiesASSETS

CùÍent assets:

Cash md cæh equivalentf.,...
Rctricted cash md cæh equivalents..,.
Rætricted invæhrents....................,,
Rseivables, net of allowance for uncoll(tible amount5:

Real etate ad pereonal prop€rty tax6.
Ta liens.....,
Motor vehicle ad otler exciæ tâx6
Comunity præryation surchaga....

Sewer.... .

Sp<ial ffiments
Departorenta.l md olher.,... ,. . .. .... .. .

Noncurrent assets:

Ræeivables, net of allowance for uncolletible amounts:
Real 6tate tãx defeqals. ,... .. . .. .... .. . ..
Sp€ial affiments
Loans.. .. . ,. ... .... .. .

Capital asæts not being depr€iated......
Capital asts, net of accumulated depreiation.,.,.,.......

Total noncuÍent æts..............

Total æts. , ... .. . ,. .

LTABfLITIES
Cu rrent liabilities:

Wúæts payable...
Accrued payroll.........
Tu refu nds payable.....,
Othe¡ liabiütie......
Accrued inte¡6t.,..
Accrued health clains payable..,..,.,.....
Workere' compensation claims....,......
Compensated absencæ . ..,.,...........,.
Short-tem not6 payable.,,.,..,...........
Long-tem bonds æd notes payable.....

Total curent liabiliti6. ....................,

Noncurrent liabilibes:
Conpensated abænc6. ..,.. ...,,.,......

Total liabilitie......

NET POSITION
Net invGtrent in capital æts......
Restricted for:

Employæ benefits.
Loas.....,............
Comunity p¡ærvation..,................
Permànent funds:

Expendable.
Nonexpendable. .., ,

Revolving funds.. ..
Trâffic impact, .... .. .

Pùking meteß. ... ..

Sale of lots,/gavæ.
Other specific purpos....................

Um6tricted

Total net position...

See notes to basic financial statements.

I 50,403,253
46,243,389

2,893,457

1,767,430
1,857,520

uz92
67,878

1,053

1,023,458

5 20,440,532
8,020,770

247,133

2,300,571,

3,463,779

34,471,525

s 70,u3,785
54,263,559

2,893,457

1,767,430
2,098,653

u2,92
67,878

L300,571,
3,463,179

1,053

1,,023,458
a lra arî

142,789,275

494,757

281,880

2,765,139
20,"t34,637

2M,354,230

267,430,043

470,279,378

4,4s2448
4,592,274

1,495,577
827,050
992,338

2,687,1M
279,250

3,364,429
3,500,000

70,306,852

32,497,316

2,827,499
87,488,987
92,1,58,509

lnte¡govemental., 3,2 ,320

Tobal curent ææts 108,3-IZ,ZS0

Net OPEB obligation.... ....................
Long-tem bonds md note payable.,...

Total noncurent üabilitia.............. 7S7,TO,ST7 24,204,412 182,424,989

494,157

281,880

2,765,'139

20,096,087

2t7,U5,Ð2

240,383,255

348,701,,005

3,988,422
4,553,923
7,495,571,

685,424

790,867
2,687,'104

227,660
3,233,488
3,500,000
7,872,407

29,034,866

2,645,305
85,898,910
69,226,362

38,550

27,008,238

27,046,788

67,578,373

464,026

38,351

147,626
207,471

51,590

730,947

2,434,M5

3,462,450

182794
7,590,077

22,932,747

786,805,M3

1,65,312712

2,282809
2,765,739

21,,526,52i

259,707

2M7,898
3,363,957

L123,754
7,729,627
7,370,312
9,473,276

(49,694,s86)

g 167ß95,s62

28,766,862

9,399,379

23,9sL132

$ 33,351,451

274,972,305

174,712,031

2,282809
2,1,65,139

27,526,523

259,707

2,M7,898
3,363,997
2,123,754
7,729,627
7,370,372
9,473,276

(25,747,454)

g 195,247,013
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE T'ISCAL YEAR ENDED IUNE 30, 2013

Program Revenues

Chages for
Expenses Services

Capital Net
Grants md (Expense)/

Contributions Revenue

Operating
Grants and

ContributionsFmctions/Programs
Primary government

Govemmental activities:
General government...................
Pubüc safety. ... .

Education.,......
Public works.. .. .

Health and huma¡ services. . .. ........
Cultu¡e and rec¡eation..._..........
Commmity development.,,.......
Debt service - interest...............

Total govemmental activities. . .. . ..

Br:siness-type activities:
Sewer...........,..
Water....,.........
Veterans Memorial Rink................

$ 4,225,256 $ 484504
3,910,093 395,94L
7,277,"t00 29,973,673

M8,072 56,187
369,638 437,268
412,665 63,947

1.,323,673 7,207,604

$ 14,437,751

56,396,1.53

127,632,730

1.9,707,437

4,332,865
6,327,31.8

4,042,802
2,587,037

77,382,777

11,995,289

457,608

79,582,834

t4,875,M9
385,832

1,537,475

7,288,64

$ (9,77e,e91)

(52,090,179)

(96,502,01.4

(17,077,709)

(3,s31,9s9)
(5,8s0,706)

(222,e41)
(2,097,502\

234,852,093 77,906,437 33,0M,593 2,820,119 087,0ñ,9441

u,844,775 124,881

s __9,7s0,5s2_ s 33,769,474

2,304,973

2,900,725

V"I,N6\

- 5,733,92.

$ _48n,ne_ $ _(18t,%7,ù2L

104,3L6

20,565

Total business-type activities........ 29,935,024

Totalprimarygovernment......... û 264,87,j,67

See notes to basic financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (Conrinued)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED IUNE 30,2013

Primary Government

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

Changes in net position:
Net(expense)/revenue (frompreviouspage)......... g OB7,}Bo,g44) fi s,]rg3,g22 g 097,947,022\

General reuenues:

ReaI estate and personal property taxes............
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes...
Hotel/motel taxes............
Meals taxes...
Penalties and interest on taxes.. .. . . . .

Payments in lieu of taxes.................
Community preservation surcharges. . ..

Grants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs. . .. . .

Unrestricted investment income. . .. . .. . .. .

Gain on disposal of capital assets. . .. . .. . . . .

Trønsfers, net ..............

Total general revenues and transfers. 176,520,320

(10,560,624)

172,456,186

Change in net position

1,53,272,077

6,650,738

3,298,311,

1,167,324

702,090

54,81,2

2,475,978

8,835,809

135,838

52,748
(12s,405) 125,405

1,53,272,077

6,650,738

3,298,31L

1,167,324

702,090

54,812
2,475,978

&835,809
135,838

52,748

125,405 176,645,725

5,259,327

28,092,124

(5,301.,294

200,548,3\ONet position - beginring of year.........

Net position - end of year.. $ 161,895,562 $ 33,351,451 $ 195,247,013
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCESHEET

ruNE 30,2013

.A.SSETS

Cashandcashequivalents......., .............. $
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted investments.....,.......
Receivablet net of allowance fo¡ uncollectible amounts:

Real estate and personal property taxes..............,
Real estate tax defe¡ra1s............
Tax liens..........

TOTALASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Warrants payable. . .. . ,. . . ...., .. . ...
Accrued payroll
Tax refunds payable.......,...
Other liabilities.
Deferred revenue....... , .. .

Restricted..... ...

Committed......
Assigned.........
Unassigned......

TOTAL FUND BALANCES.

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FTJND BALANCES..,,.

See notes to basic financial statenents

7,767,430

494,L57

1,851,520

282,934

Highway
Plojects

Community
Development
Block G¡ant

Commurrity
PreseroationGene¡al

42,390,249 $

7,036,023

7,096,077

$ 57,925,259 $

2,"168,966 $

4,494,950

1,495,571.

721,-t39

1833,8ss

-$ -$
- I,032

50,943
2,765,739

20,456,297

67,878

1,288,6M

Motor vehicle and other excise taxes, . ... ., . .. ... . .. . .. 842,992
Community preservation surcharges.... . .. ...... . . .

Special assessments. . .. . .. .... .. . ..

Deparblental and other. . .. .... ,. . .

Intergovem.menhf ........,..,.....,.
370,477

777,536 U3,0M

u3,0M fi 2,224,174 g 21,8t2,873

Due to other funds

-$

343,030

55,645 $

2,276,082

283,937

643

1,7L6

67,878

Short-term notes payable.. ,. . .. ..

TOTAL UABILITIES 14,174r4s-L

FUND BALANCFS:
Nonspendable..

2,277,727

(26) (47,613)

354,168

8,732,094
4,804,2L4

7,677,650
29,196,820

27,458,645

43,870,778

fi s7,v2s,259 g 343,0M

(47,613)

5 2,224,1't4 $

21,458,645

27,812,813
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Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental

Iunds Funds

- $ 42,390,249

13,884800 48,927,860
7,797,386 2,893,457

7,767,430

494+157

7,857,520

842,992

67,878
284934
757,795

3,223320
2,765,739

1'021,870

fi ___! w,n!_ g ___16,æ1þe7_ $ ___106,67+ML_

1,232430 $ 173,138
- 5S,330

3Þ00,000

L732,430 7291,,026

fi 3,914,170
4.553,923

7,495,571

722,855

8,498,s33

7,021.,870

3,500,000

23,L06,862

2,M7,898
46,3U231
4,8041274

7,677,650
28,653,1M

\804,7U

2,804e784 83,567,139

fi_7W,2U_ 5 L6þrþw_ $____1cÆ,674ßûL_
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RECONCILIATION OFTHE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TOTAL zuND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

IUNE 30,2013

Total governmental fu¡d balances (page 30)

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Other assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,
therefore, a¡e deferred in the governmental funds.. .

In the statement of net position, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in the governmental funds interest is not reported until due.

83,567,139

237,M2,079

8,498,533

(790,866)

(77,098,769)

Q27,660)
(5,878,7e3)

(85,898,910)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Bonds and notes payable, net of u¡amort2ed preruurns..... .. .......
Workers' comperuation claims.........
Compensated absences......
Net OPEB obligation

Internal service funds are used by management to account for health insurance
and workers' compensation activities. The assets and liabilities of the
internal service funds are reported as governmental activities in the
statement of net position. 2,282,809

Netpositionof governmentalactivities (page26)...... fi 161,g95,562

See notes to basic financial statements.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUFS, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCFS

TOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED IUNE 30,2013

Highway
P¡oiects

REVENUES

Realestateandpersonalpropertytaxes........................................$ 1'2,2gj,1'3ï $ - $
Motorvehicleandotherexcisetaxes.................,.,. 6,56T,95z

Community
Development Community
Block Grant Preservation

-$

2,469,122

Hotel/motel tax
Meals taxes,,....
Tax liens. ,,,. ,....

3,298,317

1.,167,324

1.,203,258
Payments in lieu of taxes.
Community preservation ,*.;;;;;;::::: ::::::: : : ::::: : ::: :: 

s4'812- 
- -

Charges for services
Intergovemmental . .... .. . ,.. ,. ... .

Special assessments..,, . .. . .. . ... ..

Penalties and interest on taxes...............
Licenses and permits., ,. . .. , .. ... . .

Fines and forfeitures........,.........
Departmental and other. ... , ..... . ...

33,984803

730,820

696,316

4,259,773

725,243

1.,U0,572

L,537,475 1.,72L,408

75,208

1,288,644

5,774

Contributions
lnvestment income

TOTALREVENIJES.

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General govemment..,..............
Pubtc safety....
Education........
I'ublic works.. ..

Health and human services. .,. . ..

Culture and recteation-. .. ... . ....
Comnunity development.... . .. , ,

Peruion benefits
Employee benefits

State and county charges. . ... .. ... .

99,607 39,386

205,821,934 1,531,,475 1,1,96,64 3,802,926

8,279,364

29,040,269

65,3t1,793

11,882,902

L,773,969

3,225,977

530,670

30,328,370

35,055,370

L,597,185

7,696,738

2,720,83't

7,53'J.,475

7,777,394 1.,866,237

Debt service:

Principal.........

TOTALEXPENDITURES. 197,323,432 7,537,475 7,177,394 7,866,231

25,250 1,936,695

EXCESS (DEFTCTENCY) OF REVENUES
OVEREXPENDITURES. 8,498,502

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

T¡a¡sfers in, . .. . . 80,306
Issuance of bonds and notes. . ...
Premium f¡om issuance ofbonds and notes......... 962,222
Issuance of ¡efunding bonds. . ..

Premium from issua¡ce of refunding bonds. .....
Sale of capital assets. .... ,. . .. . .. . ..

Transfers out.... (133,505)

TOTALOTFTERFTNANCTNGSOURCES(USES).,................ 301033

NET CHANGE IN FI,JND BALANCES.

Interest

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR,.,..............

See notes to basic financial statements.

City of Waltham, Møssøchusetts

25,250

(26\ (72,863)

$ (26) 5 (47,673)

8,807,535

35,003,243

$ 43,870,778

33

7,936,695

19,521.,950

$ 21,458,645
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City
Capital
ProÍects

894,867

594,699

u6,030
7,209

1.,899,738

550,278

1,ó50,000

57,633

L52,293,738

6,567,957

3,298,371.

\,767,324
7,203,258

54,812
2,469,122

3,036,675

43,539,794

730,820

702,090

4,259,773

828,483

3,666,098

652,141.

Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governnlental

Funds Fmds

3,036,6't5

5,613,464

703,240
2,250,31.8

652,1.47

(6,488) 732,s33

77,649,290 224,002,269

88,576 9,202,807

2,988,777 32,623,739

8,083,890 73,395,683
25,689 73,786,096

179,308 7,900,486
207,029 5,326,138
498,932 4,677,505

- 30,328,370
- 35,055,370

- 7,597,185

9,346,738

2,772"464

5,993,854 72,066,195 279,952,581,

(s,993,8s4) (41,6,e0s) 4,04e,688

7,574,685

7,675,200

727,303

9,317,1.88

3,323,3U

(s18,sso)

g 2,804,7U

&100
1.,028,775

52,748
(80,306)

7,009,317

592,4-12

14,948,759

$ Lsþ4JJ,s77

88,406
8,603,460

362,232
r,615,200

727,303

52,748
(273,817)

10,ó35,538

74e685,226

68,887,913

fi 83,s67,739
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR TFIE FISCAL YEAR ENDED IUNE 30,2013

Net change in fu¡rd balances - total govemmental $ 1.4,68s,226

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. FIowever, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. These amounts ¡epresent the related activity
of the current period.

Capital outlays.. . .. .. . .. . .. . . .. .

Depreciation..

In the statement of activities, only the gaid(loss) on the disposal of capital assets is reported,
whereas in the governmental funds the entire proceeds of the sale are reported as
financial resou¡ces. As a result, the change in net assets differs from the change in
fu¡rd balance by the cost of the capital assets disposed..................

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are fully deferred in the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various t¡zpes of accounts receivable
(i.e., real estate and personal property, motor vehicle excise, etc.) differ between the
two statements. This amount represents the net change in defer¡ed revenue. .. ... .. .. . . .

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides current financial resources
to govetrìmental funds, whjle the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transactiorL however, has any
impact on net position. Also, governmental fu¡ds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and sirnilar items when debt is fust issued, whereas these amounts
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. These amounts represent the
related activity of the current period.

Bond proceeds
Proceeds of refunding bonds.
Bond maturities
Amortization of bond premiums

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in the governmental ftmds interest is not reported until due. This amount
represents the net change in accmed interest payable

some expenses reported in the statement activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, ale not reported in the governmental funds.
These amounts represent the net changes:

Workers' compensation
Compensated absences
Net OPEB obligation

Internal service fu¡rds are used by management to account for health insu¡ance.
The net activity of the internal service fund is reported with govemmental activities. .. . . ..

Changes in net position of governmental activities þage 2S). .. .. ..

See notes to basic financial statements.

7,891,,233

(12,277,450)

(8e,71e)

(126,821)

(8,603,460)
(1.,61.s,200)

9,346,738
-127,009

64,41,8
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENI OF FUND NET POSMION

IUNE 30,2013

Business-Tvpe Activities - Enterp¡ise Fmds

Sewer

Nomajor
Veterm

Water Memo¡ial Rink

Govemental
Activities -

Intemâl
Service

Total FudsASSETS
Cment assets:

Cash and cash equivalents. . .. . .. . .. . . . ...
Restricted cash md cash equivalents.,
Receivables, net of aìlowmce fo¡ mcollectible momts:

User clwges...
Utility fiens........
Deputnenta.l md other. ...... . .. . .. . . . ,

Total curent assets......................

Nonffient assets:

Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets, net of accunuJated depreciation. . .. . ..

Total noncurrent assets..............,...

Total assets.........

LIABILITIES
Cuent liabilities:

Wanmts payable
Accmed payroll.

Workers' conpensation clairu. . .. . . ..
Compensated absences...............

Tota] cu¡rmt liabilities.

Noncffient liabilities:
Compmated absences..............,..
Net OPEB obligation. . .. . . .. ... ..... . .. . .

Iong-tem bonds ard notes payable......

$ 7,894,709
4,654,289

3,ß3,779
1-49,375

76,760,892

3&550
77,773,868

17,752,4t8

33,973,31.0

$ 72,249,756

3,365,437

2,300,5n
97,758

78,013,522

9,792,565

9,192,565

27,206,087

$ 296,667

M

297,177

101,805

101,805

398,9t6

$ 20,440,532
8,020,170

5,763,690

247,733

u,477,525

38,550

27,008,238

27,M6,788

61,518,313

$-
5,334,533

272,264

5,606,797

74,375

562,569

2,687,104

75,089,956 7,802,387

7s,6s3,977 8,U7,231.

5,491,603 3,870,307
t0,45,629 73,404,217

s _1s,%7,A2_ g _17,274518

3,336 464,027

1,960 38,351

- 1,47,626

18,951 51,590

9,998 782,794
753,467 L,590,070
39,804 22,932,747

203,263 24,704,411

37,409 9,399,379
702,292 23,952,132

364,01,6 96,675

11,488 24,903
Othe¡ liabilities... "14'1,626

Accrued interest.. 1S1,qI SO,0ZO - 207,477
Acqued health cl,aim payable..............

50,564 73,708 6,669 130,947

2,322,761 1,0&{,338 55,952 3,ß2,45L 3,323,988

17,423 21,,216

95,01,2

949,832

long-tem bonds md notes payable... 1,59t,643 gtZ,Z66 ,25,0g6 
Z4j4,Ms

77,7W
ß6,777

Total noncunent liabilities........... ......

Total liabilities.

FUND NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets.......
Urestricted.......

Total fmd net position.... . .. . ,. . .. . . ...

See notes to basic finmciaÌ statements.

17,976,078 9,931,,569 ',259,215 28,1,66,862 3,323,988

2282,809

$ 139,707 $ 33,3s1,451 $ Z28Z80e
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSTTION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED IUNE 30, 2013

Business-Tv¡e Activities - Entemrise Fuds

Water

Nomajor
Veterm

Memo¡ial. Rink Total

Govemental
Activities -

Intenal
Seryice
Fmds

OPERATING REVENUES

Employer contribu tioru
19,582,834 $ 74,875.M9 $ 385,832 6 34,844,115 $

33,766,058
4,4.08,768

37,574,806

37,787,8U

37,787,834

(273,028)

30,620

30,620

(782,408\

(182,408)

2,465,217

g 2,2A2,809

Employee contributioru.................

TOIAL OPERATING REVENTIES

OPERATING EXPENSES

Cost of seruice md adninist¡ation.
MWRA assessment
Depreciation.......
Employee bmefits

TOTAL OPERATING Ð(PENSES..

OPERATTNC TNCOME (LO6S).........

NONOPERATTNG REVENUES (EXPENSES)
I¡vestrrent income.......... ....................
P¡emim from issumce of bonds a¡d notes .............
I¡terest expense . .

TOTAL NONOPERATTNG REVENUES (ÐCENSES), NET.... ......

TNCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS........,..........

TRANSFERS
Trarufen in. . .. . .. .

CIIANGE IN FLTND NEI POSITION

FUND NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.....

FUND NE'T POSITION AT END OF YEAR................

See notes to basic finmcial statements

14,875,49 385,832 34,8M,715t trrt-

2,563,419
72,ß5,924

1,,026,0U

80488s

1,6,880,262

2,702,572

17,789

49,438
(501,916)

(4U,689)

2267,883

2,267,883

73,669,349

$ 15,937,232

2,282,783

7,792,300

571,765

1,178,2

lt,825,071

3,050,378

20,565

37,089
(170,27n

(772,563)

2,937,81.5

n,500

2,961,,315

44313,203

g 17,274,518

362,ß9

16,430

n.477

456,390

(z0,ss8)

(1,2r8)

(1,218)

v7,n6)

101,905

30,729

109,572

g 139,701.

5,208,691,

20,278,224

7,674,229

2060,s79

29,1,67,723

5,682,392

38,354
86,527

(673,357)

(sß,470)

5,733,922

125,405

5;259,327

28,092,124

$ 33,351,451
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED TUNE 30, 2013

Büsiness-TvDe Actrvities - EnterDrise Funds

Water

Nonmajor
Veterans

À{emorial Rink

Governmental
Activities -

lnternal
Se¡vice
Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERÁ.TING ACTIVITIES
R(eipts ftoñ custorere ¿nd uære. . $ 18,596,762 $ 14,128,547 $ 385,832 $ 33,110,535 $

R€dpts from inte¡fud ærvic6 provided
(1,s,497,129) (70,738þ6n

(492,465) (8&1,8,14)

2,606,568 3,105,330

4408,768
32,908,470

(327,8s9) (25,963,355)

(81,866) (7,459,17s)

(23,893)

- (38,285,065\

5,688,005 (967,48n

101,905 725,405

- 4,675,7

- 86,527

- (3,382,855)

(24.000) (5,969,016)

(2,755) (662,t551

(26,7s5) (s,2s7,709)

- 38,3U 30,620

51,257 600,055

N ET CASH FROM OPERATNG ACNVITES.,,.,,.,,,,,,,,,,,.,,

CÁ.SH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING.{CTIVITIES
Træfem i¡

CÁ.SH FLOWS FROM CAPITALAND REIá.TED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Prææds Êom the isumce of bonds and notæ.

Pdyments to vendoÉ

Inter6t expere

Payænts to employ€
Pa)ænls for interfund ærvice used,

P¡emim from i$udce of bonds æd notæ.
Acquisition dd cotutruction of capitaÌ æts
Principal payments on bonds md not6.,,

1,439,M0
49,438

2i,500

3,236,350

37,089

77,250

900

(3,102,651\ (280,204)

(296,76st (2e48,251)
(483,u1) (776,059)

(s,093,879\ (131,075)

77,789 20,565

(2,469,522) 3,01Aþ20

15,017,920 12,596,873

$ 12"s48,398 $ 1t6rs,193

7,026,0U
1.74,377

41,157

571,765

197,650

28,597

245,454 27,860,647

NET CASH FROM CAÌITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACNVITIES.

CÁ.SH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
TnvÉtment inaore

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
(lncludes $9,214,393, i3,93ZAO andfi444 tepo¡ted as restricted in the Sewer,

Water and VeteraN Memorial Rink Enterpriæ Funds, ¡6pectively)....,...,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
(lncludes $4,6Í,289, 53,365,437 and5444 teported as rcst¡rcted in the Sewer,
Water and Veterans Memo¡ial Rink Enterpriæ Funds, r6pctively).,,.,,.,......,.....,,,...,...

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATINC INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CÂSH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating incoæ 0oss)
Adiustments to ¡æoncile operatjng incoñe (loss) to net

cash from operating achvitiesl
Changes in assets and liabilities not requirjng cur¡ent cash flows:

Dep¡€iation
Net OPEB obligarion ......

Chdges in assets and ljabilities rcquíring current cash llows:
Utility Lens.

Accrued payroll. ,,,
Othe¡ liabiliti6

(t)36,86n

6,271.,400

fi 297,111 s A60,702 $ s,334,s33

$ 2.702,572 $ 3,0s0,378 $ (70,ss8) s s,682,392 $ (213,028)

1.6,430

1.8,772

1,674,229

330,733

69,748

(2s7,2281

73,'155

238,629
(809,01s)

Uærchagæ. (1,027,829, (n5,49D) - (1,803,328)

Departmental md othe¡.,,....,,..........,..
Wddts payable 708 ('t67,956)(245,914)

955

1,452

(146\ 1,709

1,452

Accrued he¿lth claim p¿yable.................
Workeß' comperoation cÌairu
Compereated absenc6.. ,. ,.. , ,.,

(19,066ì.

12,896

(35,406) 9,476

(10,299\ 7,425

(M,e6)
4,022

s,673 (7s4,4s9\

$____ j,ó88,00Þ_ s _____wA8n_

Total adiuslmnts.,, (96,004) s4,952 46,66s

s 2606,5(ß $ 3,105"330 $ (23,893)NET CASH FROM OPERAING ACTrVITES. , ,..,. , ,............................

Sæ notes to basic financl'al statements
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FIDUCIARYFUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

IUNE 30,2013

Pension
Trust Fund

(As of12/31/12)

g 2,159,042 $

't0,054,542

6,92L,795

1,47,992,180

1,89

57,562

589,749 $

2,343,465

Private
Purpose

Trust Funds
Agency
FundsASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents..............
Investments:

U.S. Treasuries and agencies
Pooled real estate funds. . .. . .. . .. .

Pooled alternative investrrents...
External inveshent pools (PRIT).....

Interest and dividends. . .. .

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
Departmental and other......

Total assets...

LIABILITIES

NETPOSITION
Assets held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes.. . ..

See notes to basic financial statements.

827,861

167,L85,3'10 2,933,21,4 827,861

Warrants payable. . .. . .. . 11,,453

Other liabilities............... -

Liabilities due depositors

Total liabilities. 1L,453

7,063
6,317

8L4,48'L

827,861

'1.67,173,857 $ 2933,21.4 $ -
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FIDUCIARYFUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FOR THE FTSCAL YEAR ENDED ltrNE 30, 2013

ADDITIONS
Contributions:

Employer..... ................. $
Plan members

Total contributions..............

Net investment income:
Net appreciation/ (depreciation) in fair value of investments.. ..... ....
Interest. . .. . .. .

Dividends.....

Total investnent income (loss)...........

Less investment expense. . ..

Net invesünent income (loss)...........

Intergovemnental............

Transfers from other systems

TOTALADDITIONS.

DEDUCTIONS
Administration.................
Retirement benefits and refunds. . .. . . . .

Transfers to other system,s. . .. . .. .

TOTALDEDUCTIONS

CHANGE IN NET POSITION................

NET POSITIONAT BEGINNING OF YEAR..

NET POSITIONAT END OFYEAR......

See notes to basic financial statements.

Private donations.. .. .

Pension
Trust Fund

(As of12/31./12)

1,4,289,286

4,843,324

19.132,610

15,434,782

2,592

5,386,439

20,823,8\3

(1.,061,123)

19,762,690

Private
Purpose

Trust Funds

L15,869

r15,869

10,349

10,349

10,349

652,635

357,427

39,905,362

435,093

21,,941,,363

692,393

L26,218

Scholarships awarded.......
Housing subsidies......

1,49,975

102,850

23,068,849 252,825

1.6,836,513

150,337,3M

g '1,67,173,857

(126,60n

3,059,821

g 2,933,214
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended fune 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. General

The basic financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant
accounting policies are described herein.

B. Repofüng Entity

The City of Waltham, Massachusetts (City) is a municipal corporation with a Mayor-Council form of government.
The Mayor is elected at large for a four-year term. The City Council is comprised of fifteen members elected for
two-year terms from nine election districts and six at large.

For financial reporting purposes, the basic financial statements include all funds, organizations, agencies, boards,
commissions and institutions that are not legally separate from the City.

The City has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable as well as other
organizattons for which the nature andf or significance of their relationship with the Cþ are such that exclusion
would cause the Cit¡/s basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. As required by GAAP, these
basic financial statements present the City (primary government) and its component units.

The City has included one entity as a component unit (fiduciary fund) in the reporting entity because of the
significance of its operational and financial relationship with the City. Component units are entities that are
legally separate from the City, but are so related that they are, in substance, the same as the City or entities
providing services entirely or almost entirely for the benefit of the City.

Fiduciary Fund Component Unit

The Waltham Contributory Retirement System (System) was established to provide retirement benefits to City
employees, the Waltham Housing Authority employees, and their beneficiaries. The System is governed by a
five-member board comprised of the City Auditor (ex-officio), two members elected by the System's participants,
one member appointed by the Mayor and one member appointed by the other board members. The System is
presented using the accrual basis of accounting and is reported as a pension trust fund in the fiduciary funds
financial statements.

The System did not issue a separate audited financial statement. The System issues a publicly available
unaudited financial report in accordance with guidelines established by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts'
(Commonwealth) Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC). That report may be
obtained by contacting the System located at610 Main Street, Waltham, Massachusetts 02452.

C. Implementøtion of Neu Accounting Principles

For the year ending June 30, 2013, the City implemented the following pronouncements issued by the GASB:

andNo.34

Noaember 30, L989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

ønd Net Position

GASB Statement No. 63 identifies net position as the residual of all other elements presented in a statement of
financial position, which amends the net asset reporting requirements of Statement No. 34, Basic Financiøl
Støtements - and Management's Discussion and AnøIysis - for State and Local Gwernments, and other
pronouncements, by renaming net assets to net position.

The implementation of GASB Statement No.'s 60, 61 and 62had no reporting impact for the City.

D. Goaernment-Wide ønd Eund EinønciøI Støtements

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (statement of net assets and the statement activities) report
information on all non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. Gooernmental
øctiaities, which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type actiaities, which are primarily supported by user fees.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements. Nonmajor funds arc aggregated and displayed in a single column.

Internal service funds and fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.

E. Meøsarement Eocus, Basis of Accounting ønil Bøsis of Presettøtion

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liabilities are incurred. Real estate and personal property taxes are recognized as revenues in the fiscal
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a function or segment are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment.

Program revenues include the following:

privileges provided by a given function or segment.

or segment.

segment.

Taxes and other items not identiÊiable as program revenues are reported as general revenues.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Except for charges between the general fund and enterprise funds, the effect of interfund activity has been
eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct
costs and program revenues reported for the functions affected.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental funds financial statements are reported using the flow of current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., measurable and available). Measurable mearìs the amount of the
transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmafured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain
compensated absences, claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be
liquidated with current expendable available resources.

Real estate and personal property tax revenues are considered available if they are collected within 60-days after
the end of the fiscal year. Investment income is susceptible to accrual. Other receipts and tax revenues become
measurable and available when the cash is received and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
is met. Expenditure driven grants recognize revenue when the qualifying expenditures are incurred and all other
grant requirements are met.

The following major governmental funds are reported:

The general fund is tsed to account for and report all financial resources not accounted for and reported in another
fund.

The hightaay projects fund is used to account for constructiorç reconstruction and improvements to roadways,
streets and sidewalks. Funding is provided primarily by grants.

T};.e community deuelopment block grant lund is used to account for the federal community development block grant
program.

The community preseruation fund is a special revenue fund used to account for the 2% local real estate tax
surcharge on nonexempt property (and matching state trust fund distribution) that can be used for open space,
historic resource and affordable housing purposes. Property exempt from the surcharge consists of the first
$100,000 of all residential property and also property owned by low income seniors with a low or moderate
income as defined by Massachusetts Department of Revenue (DOR) guidelines. Disbursements from this fund
must originate from the Community Preservation Committee and be approved by the City Council.

The city capital projects fund is used to account for smaller non-school related capital acquisition and construction
projects. These projects will be funded through the issuance of long-term bonds and notes and other available
funds.

The nonmajor governmental funds consist of other special revenue, capital projects and permanent funds that are
aggregated and presented in the nonmøjor goaernmental furuds column on the governmental funds financial
statements. The following describes the general use of these fund types:

SpeciøI reaenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted
or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Capital projects funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other
capital assets. Capital projects funds exclude those types of capital-related oufflows financed by proprietary
funds or for assets that will be held in trust for individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

Permønent funds are used to account for and report resources that are restricted to the extent that only earnings,
and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the governmenf s programs and benefit the government
or its citizenry.

Proprietary funds financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liabilities are incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
the proprietary funds principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The following major proprietary funds are reported:

The sewer enterprise fund is lused to account for the City's sewer activities.

Tlne water enterprise fun d is used to account for the City's water activities.

The following nonmajor proprietary fund is reported:

The Veterøns Memorial Rink enterprise fund is used to account for the City's rink activities.

Additionally, the following proprietary fund type is reported:

Tlne internal seruice fund is used to account for the financing of services provided by one department to other
departments or governmental units. This fund is used to account for risk financing activities related to active
employees' and retirees' health insurance.

Fiduciary funds financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity for
others that cannot be used to support the government's programs.

The following fiduciary fund types are reported:

The pension trust fund is used to account for the activities of the System, which accumulates resources to provide
pension benefits to eligible retirees and their beneficiaries.

The priaøte-purpose trust fund is used to account for trust arrangements, other than those properly reported in the
permanent fund, under which principal and investment income exclusively benefits individuals, private
organizations, or other governments.

The agency fund ts used to account for assets held in a custodial capacity. Such assets consist of confiscated police
property and security deposits. Agency funds do not present the results of operations or have a measurement
focus.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

E. Deposits ønd Inpestments

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments are carried at fair value. Fair value is based on quotations from a national securities exchange except
for pooled funds, for which fair value is based on unit value reported by the funds.

Alternative Investments

Alternative investments are recorded atfau value as determined in good faith by the general partners of the
venture capital firms after consideration of pertinent informatioru including current financial position and
operating results, price-earnings multiples and available market prices of similar companies' securities, the nature
of securities, marketability, restrictions on disposition and other appropriation and do not necessarily represent
amounts which might ultimately be realized, since such amounts depend on future circumstances and cannot
reasonably be determined until individual securities are liquidated.

Real Estate

The fair value of real estate funds is based on independent third-party appraisals. The investment managers of
the funds are responsible for the reported value of those investments. However, the structure, risk profile, return
potential and marketability of those investments differ from traditional equity and fixed income investments.
Determination of the value of these investments involves subjective judgment because the actual market value
can be determined only by negotiation between the parties to a sales transaction. As a result, the estimated values
may differ significantþ from the values that would have been used had a ready market for the real estate existed,
and the differences could be material.

G. Accounts Receiaøble

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the government-wide, proprietary and
fiduciary funds financial statements is reported under the accrual basis of accounting. The recognition of revenue
in the governmental funds financial statements is reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Real Estate Taxes, Personal Property Taxes and Tax Liens

Real estate and personal property taxes are levied and based on values assessed on January 1't of every year.
Assessed values are established by the Board of Assessor's for 100% of the estimated fair market value. Taxes are
due on August 1.t, November 1-"t, February 1st and May l-"t and are subject to penalties and interest if they are not
paid by the respective due date.

Real estate tax liens are processed six months after the close of the valuation year on delinquent properties and
are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year they are processed.

Motor Vehicle Excise Taxes

Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for each vehicle registered in the City and are recorded as

receivables in the fiscal year of the levy. The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting the number of vehicles
registered and the fair values of those vehicles to the City. The tax calculation is the fair value of the vehicle
multiplied by $25 per $1,000 of value.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended fune 30, 20L3

Community Preservation Surcharges

Community preservation surcharges are levied annually at a rate o12% of residents' real estate ¡¿a þills with
exemptions fo¡ the first $100,000 of residential property and property owned by qualified persons with low
income and seniors with low or moderate income as defined by DOR guidelines. The surcharge is due with the
real estate tax on a quarterly basis each August 1't, November 1't, FebruãÍy 1"r, and May 1.t and are subject to
penalties and interest if they are not paid by the respective due date. Overdue surcharges are included on the tax
liens processed on delinquent real estate taxes. Surcharges are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year of the
levy.

Water and Sewer User Charges and Utility Liens

User fees are levied monthly based on individual meter readings and are subject to penalties and interest if they
are not paid by the respective due date. Water and sewer liens are processed in December of every year and are
included as a lien on the property owner's tax bill. Water and sewer charges and liens are recorded as receivables
in the fiscal year of the levy.

Departmental and Other

Departmental and other receivables primarily consist of parking ticket fines and police and fire details and are
recorded as receivables in the fiscal year accrued.

Special Assessments

The costs incurred on completed special projects (e.g., street betterment) that have been assessed to the benefitecl
taxpayers.

Intergovernmental

Various state and federal operating and capital grants are applied for and received annually. For non-
expenditure driven grants, revenue is recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met. For expenditure driven grants, revenue is recognized when the qualifying expenditures are
incurred and all other grant requirements are met.

Loans

The Planning/Housing Department administers loan programs that provide housing assistance to residents and
capital needs for small businesses. Loans are recorded as receivables upon issuance.

H. Alloutønce for Uncollectible Amounts

The allowance for uncollectible amounts is estimated based on historical trends and specific account analysis for
the following accounts receivable:

The following types of accounts receivable are secured via the lien process and are considered 100% collectible.
Accordingly, an allowance for uncollectible amounts is not reported.
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Intergovernmental receivables are considered 100 % collectible.

L Inaentories

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Inventories are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. Such inventories are not material in total to the
government-wide and fund financial statements and therefore are not reported.

I. Restricted Assets

Governrnent-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Assets are reported as restricted when limitations on their use change the nature of the availability of the asset.

Such constraints are either externally imposed by creditors, contributors, grantors, or laws of other governments,
or are inposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

K. Cøpitøl Assets

Government-Wide and Proprietary Funds Financial Statements

Capital assets, which consist of land, construction in progress, land improvements, buildings and improvements,
equipmenf infrastructure (e.g., roads, water mains, sewer mains, and similar items) and library books are
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column of the government-wide financial
statements and the proprietary funds' financial statements.

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or at estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.
Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market value at the date of donation. Construction
period interest is not capitalized on constructed capital assets.

All purchases and construction costs in excess of $10,000 are capitalized at the date of acquisition or corutructiorç
respectively, with expected useful lives of greater than one year.

Capital assets (excluding land and construction in progress) are depreciated on a straightJine basis. The
estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows:

Capital Asset Type

Estimated
Useful

Life
(in years)

Landimprovements............. 10-50
Buildings and improvements. 5-40
Equipment. 3-20
lnfrastructure..................... 10-50
Librarybooks..................... 5

City of Wølthøm, Møssøchusetts 47 Comprehmsia e Annuøl Einanciøl Report



Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended fune 30, 2013

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized and are treated as expenses when incurred. Improvements are capitalized.

Governmental Funds Financial Statements

Capital asset costs are recorded as expenditures in the acquiring fund in the fiscal year of the purchase.

L. Interfund Receioøbles ønd Payøbles

During the course of its operations, transactions occur between and within funds that may result in amounts
owed between funds.

Governrnent-Wide Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the
governmental activities in the statement of net assets. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the statement of net assets as "internal
balances".

Fund Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund
statements. Receivables and payables resulting from these transactions are classified as "Due from other funds"
or "Due to other funds" on the balance sheet.

M. InterfundTrønsfers

During the course of its operations, resources are permanently reallocated between and within funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transfers between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the governmental activities in the
statement of net assets. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-
type activities are reported in the statement of activities as "Transfers, net".

Fund Financial Statements

Transfers between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund statements and are reported as

transfers in and transfers out.

N. DeþredReaenue

Deferred revenue at the fund financial statement level represents billed receivables that do not meet the available
criterion in accordance with the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Deferred revenue is recognized as revenue in the conversion to the government-wide financial
statements (full accrual).

O. Net Position ønd Êund Bølønces

Net position is reported as restricted when amounts are restricted by outside parties for a specific future use.
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Net position has been "restricted" for the following:

"Employee benefits" represents amounts restricted for health insurance benefits.

"Loans" represents amounts outstanding for community development block grant program loans receivable.

"Communit¡r preservation" reptesents amounts restricted for the purpose of acquiring land for conservation,
recreational, and affordable housing projects.

"Permanent funds - expendable" represents amounts held in trust for which the expenses are restricted by
various trust agreements.

"Permanent funds - nonexpendable" represents amounts held in trust for which only investment earnings may
be expended.

"Revolving funds" represents amounts restricted for various activities that require a user charge.

"Traffic impacf' represents amounts restricted for traffic improvements required by special permit.

"Parking meters" represents amounts restricted for parking meter and off-street parking lot improvements.

"Sale of lots/graves" represents restricted amounts for cemetery improvements.

"Other specific purposes" represents other restrictions placed on assets from outside parties.

Governmental Funds Financial Statements (Fund Balances)

The following fund balance classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints:

Nonspendable - represents amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form (i.e., loans
receivable) or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact (i.e., principal of
permanentfund).

Restricted - represents amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions
or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors,
or the laws or regulations of other governments.

Committed - represents amounts that can be used only for specific purposes imposed by a formal action (vote) of
City Council, which is the highest level of decision-making authority for the City. Committed amounts may be
established, modified, or rescinded only through "Council Orders" voted and approved by City Council.

Assigned - represents amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but are
intended to be used for specific purposes. Under the City's structure, only authorized assignments for non-
contractual encumbrances can be made by individual department heads.

Unassigned - represents the residual fund balance for the General Fund and the negative residual fund balance of
any other governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting assigned fund balance amounts.

In circumstances when an expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in multiple fund
balance classifications, fund balance is depleted in the order of restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.

Encumbrance amounts have been assigned for specific purposes for which resources already have been allocated.
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P. Long-termDebt

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary fund statements of net assets.
Material bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-
line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

The face amount of governmental funds long-term debt is reported as other financing sources when the debt is
issued. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the current period. Bond
premiums are reported as other financing sources and bond discounts are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual bond proceeds received, are reported as general
government expenditures.

Q. Inoestmentlncome

Excluding the permanent funds, investment income derived from major and nonmajor governmental funds is
legally assigned to the general fund unless otherwise directed by Massachusetts General Law (MGL).

Investment income from proprietary funds is retained by the respective funds.

R. CompensøtedAbsences

Employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on collective bargaining agreements,
state laws and executive policies.

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are reported as liabilties and expensed as incurred.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave, which will be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources/ are reported as expenditures and fund liabilities upon employee retirements and resignations.

S. Post Retirement Benefits

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

In addition to providing pension benefits, and as more fully described in Note 11, the City provides health, dental
and life insurance coverage for current and future retirees and their spouses.

T. Use of Estimates

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires m¿ìnagement to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure for contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the fiscal year. Actual results could vary from estimates that were used.
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U. Total Column

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The total column presented on the government-wide financial statements represents consolidated financial
information.

Fund Financial Statements

The total column presented on the fund financial statements is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data
in this column is not the equivalent of consolidated financial information.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. BudgetøryInformøtion

Within 170 days after the annual organization of the City goverrunent (which is ordinarily in early January), the
Mayor is required to submit a budget of proposed expenditures for the fiscal year beginning on the next July 1.
The City Council may make appropriations for the recommended purposes and may reduce or reject any item.
Without a recommendation of the Mayor, the Council may not make any appropriation for a purpose not
included in the proposed budget, except by a two-thirds vote in the case of the failure of the Mayor to
recommend an appropriation for such a purpose within 7 days after a request from the Council. The Council
may not increase any item without the recommendation of the Mayor (except as provided by legislation,
recommendation of the school committee or regional district school committee and by two-thirds vote of the
Council, provided that such increase does not cause the total annual budget to exceed the property tax
limitations). If the Council fails to act on any item of the proposed budget within 45 days, that item takes effect.

City department heads are generally required to submit their budget requests to the Mayor by the end of
February. This does not apply to the school department which must submit its request in time for the Mayor to
include them in the submission to the Council.

If the Mayor does not make a timely budget submission, provision is made for preparation of a budget by the
Council. Provision is also made for supplementary appropriations upon recommendation of the Mayor. Water
and Sewer Department expenditures are included in the budgets adopted by City Council.

The majority of appropriations are non-continuing which lapse at the end of each fiscal year. Others are
continuing appropriations for which the governing body has authorized that an unspent balance from a prior
fiscal year be carried forward and made available for spending in the current fiscal year.

Generally, expenditures may not exceed the level of spending (personnel, general, equipment/unusual, capital
improvement and special) authorized for an appropriation account. Flowever, the City is statutorily required to
pay debt service and certain other obligations, regardless of whether such amounts are appropriated.

An annual budget is adopted for the general fund and communit¡r preservation fund in conformity with the
guidelines described above. The original fiscal year 2013 approved budget for the general fund authorized
9189,1,47,363 in appropriations and other amounts to be raised. During fiscal year 2013, supplemental
appropriations and transfers totaling $9,502,961. were authorized. The original fiscal year 2013 approved budget
for the community preservation fund authorized554,123 in appropriations. During frscalyear 2013,
supplemental appropriations totalin g fi1,618,091, were authorized.

The Auditor's office has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary control is maintained. Budgetary control is
exercised through the accounting system.

City of Wøltham, Massøchusetts 51 Comprehensiae AnnualEinønciøIReport



Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

B. EunilDeficits

At fune 30,2013, the following governmental fund deficits exist:

Fund Amount Funding Source

Police and Fire Detail........ g 49'1,,907 User charges and available funds
CDBG Block Grant 47,613 Federal grant
Vocational School Reserve...... 4,128 User charges and available funds
Highway Projects Major Fund......... 26 State grant

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

City (excluiling the P ension Trust Funil)

The municipal finance laws of the Commonwealth authorize the City to invest temporarily idle cash ìn bank term
deposits and certificates of deposits, and treasury and agency obligations of the United States government with
maturities of one year or less; U.S. treasury or agency repurchase agreements with mafurities of not more than 90
days; money market accounts; and the state treasurer's investment pool - the Massachusetts Municipal
Depository Trust (MMDT).

The MMDT meets the criteria of an external investment pool and operates in accordance with applicable state
laws and regulations. The Treasurer of the Commonwealth serves as Trustee and provides regulatory oversight.
The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of pool shares.

A cash and investment pool is maintained that is available for use by all funds with unrestricted cash and
investments. The deposits and investments of private purpose trust funds and the pension trust fund are held
separately from other City funds.

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the CiQ/s deposits may not be
recovered. The City's policy a.llows unlimited deposits, for up to one year, in bank accounts or CD's that are fully
collateralized through a third party agreement in banking institutions that do not receive the highest bank rating
as determined by a recognized bank rating firm. For banking institutions receiving the highest rating no
collateralization is required. The Cit/s policy also allows unlimited investments in money market funds, which
are allowed by statute and are considered to be liquid funds.

As of June 30,2013, fi9,M0,140 of the Cit¡/s bank balance of $125,13L,660 was uninsured, uncollateralized and
exposed to custodial credit risk.
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The City's investments àt June 30,2013 are presented below. All investments are presented by investment type,
with debt securities presented by maturity.

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Investment Type
Fair

Value
Less

Than 1 1-5 6 -10

Debt Securities:
U.S. Treasuries............
U.S. Agencies...............
Corporate bonds........
Municipal bonds...

Money market mufual funds.........
External investment pools.............

Investment Type

fi 1,721,337 $

2,913,092

469,103

97,274

7,717,326

3,580,91.6

504,486

7,717,326

3,580,91,6

880,1,66

2,335,722

469,-1,03

3'1,396

841,171

72,884

65,878

Total investrnents....... g 1.6,499,048 ç 1'1.,802,728 fi 3,7L6,387 fi 979,933

Investments - Interest Rate Risk of Debt Securities

Interest rate risk for debt securities is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt securities will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. The Cit¡/s investment policy limits maturities to one year, except for the trust
funds, which are not limited, as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates.

The City participates in MMDT, which maintains a cash porúolio and a short-term bond fund with combined
average maturities of approximately 3 months. Although MMDT is not rated, credit ratings associated with the
investments of the MMDT Cash Fund were either Tier 1 (approximately 97%) or Tier 2 (approximately 3%).

Investments - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City will
not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. The City does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of investments. As of fune 30,2013, the City's
investments were exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

U.S. Treasuries.............
U.S. Agencies...............
Corporate bonds........
Municipal bonds...

Total.........

Held by
Counterparty's
Trust or Agent

g 1,72-1.,337

2,913,092

469,'103

97,274

Û 5,200,806

Fair

Value

L,721,,337

2,913,092
469,103

97,274

$ 5,200,806
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Investments - Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk for debt securities is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to a debt security will not fulfill its
obligations. The City's policy is to limit investments in debt securities to government agencies and government
sponsored enterprises, with the exception of the trust funds, which are not limited, as means of limiting credit
risk. As of June 30,2013, the credit quality ratings of the Cit¡/s debt securities are as follows:

Qualiry Ratings *

Fair
Investnent Type Value A+ A A- BBB+ Unrated

Corporatebonds......... fi +ø9,103 $ 33,783 $ - fi 127,579 g 307,741 $
Municipal8onds......... 97,274 3'1,396 65,878

Money market mutual funds...... 7,717,326 7,717,326

External investment poo1s.......... 3,580,91.6 - 3,580,91,6

Total.. ................... $ 11.,864,619 $ eílfg 5 0S,SZS g 127,579 g 307,741 fi 11,,298,242::
* Per the rating scale of Standard and Poor's (a national credit rating organization)

Pension Trust Fund (The System)

The System has expanded investment powers, including the ability to invest in equity securities, corporate bonds
and other specified investments.

The System participates in the Pension Reserve Investment Trust (PRIT), which meets the criteria of an external
investment pool and operates in accordance with applicable state laws and regulations. The Treasurer of the
Commonwealth serves as Trustee and provides regulatory oversight. The reported value of the pool is the same
as the fair value of the Systenls position in pool shares.

Deposits - Custodial Credit Rìsk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the System's deposits may not be
recovered. The System does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of deposits. As of December 31,2012, the
System is not exposed to custodial credit risk.
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Investments Summary

The System's investments at December 31.,2012 are presented below. All investments are presented by
investment type with debt securities presented by maturity.

Fair
Investment Type Value Than 1

Debt Securities:
Money market mutual funds... fi 2,159,042 g 2,159,042
Externalinvestnnentpools (PRIT)....... 1.47,992,180 147,992,180

Total debt securities.... ....... $ 150,15'1.,222 g 150,15'1.,222

Other Investments:
Real estate inveshnents 10,054,542
Alternative investnents 6,92-1,,795

Total other investnents. '1,6,976,337

Total investments............ fi '1.67,127,559

Investments - Interest Rate Risk of Debt Securities

Interest rate risk for debt securities is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt securities will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. The System does not have a policy for interest rate risk of debt securities.

Investments - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the System will
not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. The System does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. As of December 31,2012, fi1.6,976,337 of the
System's investments (real estate and alternative) were exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investments - Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk for debt securities is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to a debt securit¡r will not fulfill its
obligations. The System does not have a policy for credit risk of debt securities. As of December 31.,2012, tl:re
System's debt securities were unrated by a national credit rating organization.
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NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

At June 30,2013, receivables for the individual major governmental funds and nonmajor governmental, internal
service, and fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts,
consist of the following:

Gross
Amount

Allowance
for

Uncollectibles
Net

Amount
Receivables:

Real estate and personal property taxes...... $
Real estate tax deferrals
Tax liens....

Motor vehicle and other excise taxes..........
Community preservation surcharges.........
Special assessments
Departnental and other. .

Intergovernmental...........
Loans........

Receivables:
User charges...............
water and sewer llu*................ :. :... :.

'1.,767,430

494,157

1,,851,,520
-1,,94'1,,200

67,878
282,933

1,395,963

3,223,320
2,1,65,139

-$

(998,208)

(314,943)

1.,767,430

494,157

L,85'L,520

u2,992
67,878

282,933
1,08',1,,020

3,223,320
2,165,139

13,089,540 $ ('1.,313,151) $

At June 30,2013, receivables for the water and sewer enterprise fund consist of the following:

1L,776,389

Gross
Amount

ç 5,763,690 $
247,133

Allowance
for

Uncollectibles
Net

Amount

-$ 5,763,690
247,133

fi 6,010,923 $ -fi 6,010,823

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered
to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. The following identifies the various components of
deferred revenue reported in the governmental funds:
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General
Fund

Community
Development

Nonmajor
Community Governmental
Preservation Funds Total

Receivable !vpe:
Real estate and personal property taxes.... $ 1,391,M5 $ $
Real estate tax deferrals. . .. .. 494,157
Tax lieru...... .. 1,,85-1,520 -
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes. . .. . .. . 842,992
Community preservation surcharges. . .. . .. .

Special assessments. . ... .. . .. .. 282,934 -

Departmental and other. . . . .. 370,476

Lrtergovernmental............ .. 600,33L 50,943
Loaru.......... 2,L65,139

Tota1........... $ 5,833,855 $ 2,2L6,082 $

NOTE5-CAPITALASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows:

Beginning
Bala¡rce

Governmental Acfivities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

I-and............ ...................... $

Caoital assets beins deoreciated:

I-and improvements............

Buildhgs and improvements.. .. ... . .. ... . .

Equipment....

Infrastructure.

Libra¡y books

Total capital assets being depreciated.. ... .. ..

Less accumulated depreciation for:

I-and improvements...........

Buildings and improvements.......... ... .

Equipment.....

Infrastructure.

Library books

1,9,503,276 $ 643,600 $ (50,78e) $ 20,096,087

-$

67,878

380,718

L,39L,M5
494,157

1,851,520

842,992

67,878
282,934
75L,194

651,274

2,165,139

67,878 $ 380,718 $ 8,498,533

Increases Decreases

Ending

Balance

77,783,998

241.,711,;t37

24,349,359

51,498,426

7,355,526

2,1,81.,528

1,582,013

'1,1,29,880

2,097,290

256,922

(631,,91,s)

Q77,021)

(e08,e36)

19,965,526

243,293,150

24,847,324

53,595,71,6
-t,335,427

336,698,M6 7,247,633 343,037,1,43

(7,348,315)

(63,898,464)

(17,440,47s)

(24,e04,8s6)

(6e1,,,en

(e24,21,0)

(s,795,360)

(1.,400,84s)

(3,887,940)

(26e,0e5)

592,985

277,O21

(8,272,s2s)

(6e,6e3,824)

(18,248,33s)

(28,792,796)

(683,671)

Total accumulated depreciation.. .. ... ... . .. ...

Total capital assets being depreciated, net.. ... .. ....... .

Total govemmental activities capital asseþ net.. ... .. . .. . .. ...... ... .

n.n,41,4,739 (5,o29,814

$ 241,9L8,01,5 fi (4,386,21.4

(11,4,283,70n (12,277,4s0)

(38,e30)

(8e,71e) $

(1,25,691,,1,51)

217,345,992

237,M2,079
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Beginning

Balance Increases Decreases

Ending
Balance

Sewer Activities:
Caoital asseb nol. beins deoreciated:

Lând............. ..................... $

Capital assets beins depreciated:

Buildings and improvements..............
Equipment.....
Infrastrucfure.

Total capital asseb being depreciated....

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements..............
Equipment.....
Infrashucture.

Total accumulated depreciation.. .. ... .... ... .. . .

Total capital asseb being depreciated, net. ... ... ... .... .

Total sewer activities capital assets, net.... .... ... ... .. .

Water Activities:

Capital assets beinø deoreciated:

Buildings and improvements..............
Equipment.....
lnftastructure.

Total capital asseb being depreciated. . ..

Less accumulated deoreciation for:

Buildings and improvements..............
Equipment.....
lnfrastructure.

Total accumulated depreciation. . ... ... .. . .. ...

Total capital assets being depreciated, net....... ... .........

Total water activities capital asseþ net.. ........ .... .

(54,630)

41,333,605

(1,491,s6s)

(832,131)

(21,296,041)

(23,61e,734

17,713,868

$ 2,131.,247 $ (s4630) g 17,752,4L8

Ending

Lrcreases Decreases Balance

38,550 $ 38,550

3,-160,827

E38,439

34,132,380

24,760

70þ50
3,061.,971, (55,322)

3,1.85,587

1,008,989

37,-139,029

38;231,646 3,1,57,281, (ss,322)

(1,,404,202)

(783,662)

(20,406,s31)

(22,5e4,3es)

1.5,637,251,

s 15,675,801.

Beginning

Balance

(87,363)

(48,46e)

(8e0,202)

(1,026,o34)

2,131,,247

692

1,,104,422

2,069,752

20,1,66,072

-$

280,204

-$
(37,1e6)

1,;t04,422

2,032,556

20,446,276

23,340,246 (37,"re6)

37,196

23,583,254

(952,566)

(1,297,o48)

(11,606,s06)

(13,856,1,2o)

(27,61,0)

(1,1,e,374)

(424,781)

(s71,,76s)

(980,176)

(1,379,226)

(1,2,031,,28n

9,484,126

37,196 (1,4,390,68e)

9,1,92,565(29L,561)

$ (2e1.,561)9,ß4,1,26 9,192565
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Begrnning

Balance lncreases Decreases

Ending
Balance

Veterans Memorial Rink Activities:
Capital assets beins deoreciated:

Buildings and improvements................
Equipment.....

Total capital assets being depreciated. ...

Less accumulated dep¡eciation for:
Buildings and improvements................
Equipment.....

Total accumulated depreciation.. .. .......... ..

Total capital asseb being depreciated net.... ... . .. .......

Total Veterans Memorial Rink activities capital assets, net. . .. . . . . .

v,57n (s,0s1)

(71,e18) (11,37e)

(7e,4e5) (1.6,430)

1\8234 (16,430)

83,940 $

113,789

-$ -$ 83,940

t13,789

197,729 1,97,729

(12,628)

(83,2e4

(es,e%)

101,805

$ 118,2U $ (16,430)$ - $ 101,S0s

Totalbusiness-typeacüvitiescapitalasseb,net....................... $ 25,228,1,61, $ 1,822,256 $ (54,630)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions f programs of the primary government as follows:

fi 27,046,788

Governmental Activities:
General government .................. $
Public safety........
Education...
Public works....
Health and human services......
Culture and recreation.............
Community development

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities. . . . . .

Business-Type Activities:
Sewer........

Water........
Veterans Memorial Rink..........

276,698

942,374

5,292,480

3,824,647

33,817
-1,,11,0,427

797,007

12,277,450

"1,,026,034

57'1,,765

't6,430

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities...... g '1,,614,229
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NOTE 6 - NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS

The City's net investment in capital assets at fune 30, 2013 are summartzed as follows:

G o a ernment øl Actio itie s

Capital assets.........
Less accumulated depreciation..
Less outstanding bonds and notes payabIe...........
Add unspent proceeds of capital related debt.......

Net investrrent in capital assets. . . . . ..

Bu s ine s s -Ty p e Actio iti e s

Capital assets.........
Less accumulated depreciation........
Less outstanding bonds and notes payable...........
Add unspent proceeds of capital related debt.......

Net investnent in capital assets.......

g 363,133,230
(125,691,151)
(80,598,769)

8,469,402

fi 1.65,312,712

65,-1,53,137

(38,106,349)
(25,366,592)

9,399,319

Amount

NOTE 7 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

Receivables and payables between funds at June 30, 2013, are summar tzed as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund

General Fund........... Police and fire detail nonmajor fund............ $
General Fund.......... Highway projects major fund..........
General Fund........... School federal grants nonmajor fund...........
General Fund........... Vocational school Íeserve nonmajor fund.....

(1) Represents funding of cash deficits in the respective funds.

438,873 (1)

343,030 (1)

239,90s (1)

62 (1)

fi '1.,02'1.,870
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Interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, are sunmarized as follows:

Transfers In:

Transfers Out:
General

Fund

Nonmajor Water
Governmental Enterprise

Funds Fund

Veterans
Memorial Ri¡k

Enterprise
Fund Total

GeneralFund............................. $ - $
NonmajorGovernmentalFunds.... 80,306

8,100 $ 23,500 $ 101,905 $ 133,505 (1)

80,306 (2)

$ 80,306 $ 8,t00 $ 23,500 $ tot,gos fi 213,811

(1) Represents budgeted transfers to parking management special revenue fund ($8,100) and to water enterprise
fund ($23,500) to fund compensation increases and general fund subsidy to the Veterans Memorial Rink
enterprise fund.

(2) Represents budgeted transfers from the library state aid ($50,000) and insurance recovery ($30,306) special
revenue funds to the general fund.

NOTE 8 - SHORT-TERM FINANCING

Short-term debt may be authorized and issued to fund the following:

¡ Current operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through issuance of revenue anticipation notes
(RAN) or tax anticipation notes (TAN).

o Capital project costs and other approved expenditures incurred prior to obtaining permanent financing
through issuance of bond anticipation notes (BAN) or grant anticipation notes (GAN).

Short-term loans are general obligations and carry maturity dates that are limited by statute. Interest
expenditures and expenses for short-term borrowings are accounted for in the general fund and enterprise funds,
respectively.
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Details related to the short-term debt activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, ts as follows:

Notæ Pøyable - GoamtmøûølEwtils

Type Description
Origination Matu¡ity Interest

Date Date Rate lnoeasæ Dæreases

BAN BuildingRenovation............. 6/25/72 6/28/1.3
BAN BuildingRenovation.......... 6/28/12 6/28/79
BAN Comunicationlnstallation.... 6/28/12 6/28/79
BAN ComputerEquipment............ 6/28/12 6/25/13
BAN ComputerHædware&Software...................,.. 6/28/12 6/28/13
BAN DepartrnentalEquipment...... 6/28/12 6/28/73
BAN Equipment. 6/28/12 6/2s/13
BAN Equipment. 6/28/12 6/2s/13
BAN Equipment. 6/28/72 6/28/73
BAN HighfthoolBuildingSchoolRenovatioro-CosmetologyFacility......... 6/25/12 6/'25/79
BAN HighSchoolBuildingSchoolRenovatioro-CulimryArts................... 6/25/12 6/28/73
BAN lntersctionlmprovements..... 6/28/72 6/28/13
BAN l¿ndDevelopment............... 6/28/72 6/28/13
BAN Pak Development................ 6/28/72 6/25/13
BAN Police ComunicationSystem.... 6/28/72 6/28/tg
BAN PoliceEquipment........,......... 6/28/12 6/25/L3
BAN Ræreatioml Facilities............ 6/28/72 6/29/12
BAN SchoolBuildingRenovatioro... 6/28/72 6/28/19
BAN StreetResurfacing................, 6/28/12 6/28/73
BAN St¡eets........ ... 6/28/72 6/28/73
BAN Technology 6/28/tZ 6/28/13
BAN Traffic Sigm1s....................... ... 6/28/72 6/28/13
BAN BuildingRenovatioro (Barùs fthool)..... .. 6/27/73 6/27/1.4

Total.., ..............

Notes Pnynble - Sruet EilteÍpriseErùl

5,656,ß7 $ 3,500,000 s (s,6s6,48n 5 3,500,000

725% $

1,25%

1,%
725%
7.'25%

1.:25%

1.:25%
't.25%

1-.'25%

7%
7.25%

7.25"/"

7.',25%

7.'25%

1,.25%

1,25%

7%
7.25%

L 25%

t.'25%

r.25"Á

7.25"/"

r.00%

s

Balmce at

Jme 30, 2012

31000 $
30,000

200,000

518,750

251,000

60,000

56,500

864,757

20,000

91,000

96,725

42i,542
30,000

1,318,000

54,780

7Ø,185
580 000

75,000

&3,463
s&000

15,000

277,385

(3s,000) $

(30,000)

(200,000)

(518,750)

(251,000)

(ó0,000)

(56,500)

(8@,757)

(20,000)

(91,000)

(e6,125)

(423,s42)

(30,000)

(1,318,000)

(s,78ol
(164,185)

(s80,000)

(75,000)

(443,4æ)

(58,000)

(11000)

(27r,3851

Balmce at
Jue 3O 2013

3,500,0003,500,000

Type Description
Origination Maturity

Date Date
Balance at

June 30, 2012

$ 300,000 $
165,000

254,000

514,M0

315,574

Origination Maturity Interesl
Date Date Rate

Increases Dec¡eases

Balance at

June 30,2013

$ (300,000) $

(165,000)

(254,000)

(574,M0)

(3'1s,574)

_ $_(1.e29llr $ -

Balance at
Inceases Dæ¡eases Jme 30,2013

$ (4M,4ee) 6

(1,320,000)

(13s,000)

(435,000)

$ (2,294,49e) $

lnterest
Rate

BAN Surface Draim &Sewe¡s............ 6/28/-t2 6/28/73
BAN Sewer/DrainLnprovements..... ,.. 6/28/72 6/28/1.j
BAN Su¡face Drairo/Sewer............... .. 6/28/12 6/n/ß
BAN Sewe¡........ 6/28/12 6/28/73
BAN Sewer Improvements.......,,... 6/28/72 6/28/-t3

Total

'125%

7.25%

7.25%

7.25%

1 25%

Notæ Pnyøble -WntetEflterpise EftuI

Type Derription

6/28/12 6/'28/13
6/28/72 6/28/13
6/28/72 6/28/73
6/ /12 6/28/13

g 7,549,074 S

Balance at

Júe30,2072

$ M,499 $

1,320,000

135,000

435,000

$ 2,294,499 $

BAN Water Mains
BAN Water Improvements............
BAN Water Improvements............
BAN Water

7.25%

L25%
725%
L25%

Total
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NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following represents a summary of changes that occurred in long-term obligations during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013:

Balance

June 30,

2012 Increases Decreases

Balance

June 30,

2013
Current
Portion

Governmental Activities:
Bonds and notes payable...

Unamortized deferred premium....

Bonds and notes payable, gross. . ..

Workers' compensation clairns.......
Net OPEB obligation. . .. .

Comperuated absences. . .. . .

TotaI........... fi 148,579,029 $ 56,369,333

74,728,3M

1,625,512

fi 10,218,660 (9,346,738)

(127,009)

75,600,266

1.,498,503

7,745,398

127,009

76,353,856

234,207

68,198,003

3,792,963

10,218,660

553,743

40,246,342

5,350,599

(9,473,744

(560,290)

(22,545,435)

(3,264,758)

s (35,8M,230)

77,098,769

227,660

85,898,910

5,878,793

7,872,407

227,660

3,233,488

fi 1.69,104,132 $ 11,333,555

Business-type Activities:
Bondsandnotespayable... $

Unamortized deferred premium. . ..

Bonds and notes payable, gross. . ..

Workers' compensation claims. . . .. ..

Net OPEB obligation. . .. .

Comperuated absences. . .. . .

22,11.4,746

740,806

4,675,790 $ (2,125,503)

p9,24n
24,665,033 fi 2,395,194

701'559 39,25L

22,855,552

96,586

L,259,337

309,113

4,675,790

8L,972

725,473

(2,164,750)

(126,968)

(394,739)

25,366,592

51,590

1.,590,071.

313,135

2,434,M5

51,590

130,94L127,331 (123,309)

Tota1........... fi 24,520,s88 fi s,610,s66_ fi_e,809f,66)_ fi= 22,921,ïBB fi 2,61.6,976

The governmental activities long-term obligations are generally liquidated by the general fund.
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NOTE 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Details related to the outstanding indebtedness at June 30,2013, and the debt service requirements are as follows:

B onds ønil N otes P øy able - Goa ernmentøl Funds

Proiect

Outstanding
Interest atJune 30,

Rate 2012

Outstanding
at June 30,

lssued Redeemed 2013

Building Renovations..........
School Corutruction
Land Development.........
Land Acquisition............
City Equipment...............
City Technology.............
Signals and Communications........
Pond Preservation...........
Streets.........
Drainage.....
Land Acquisition............
Building Renovations.

City Equipment...............
SÍeets.........
Land Development.........
Removal of Incinerator Facility.. ......... ......
Yard Structures........... -..
Design/Engineering.........
City Technology.............
School Building Renovations.

School Equipment...
City Building Renovations.

Equipment...
Land Development.........
Streets.........
Technology..
Land Acquisition............
Land Acquisition Refunding.. ..... . .. . ... .. . .. ..

Add: unamortized premium.. ........ . .. . ..... ..

Total govemmental funds 76,3s3,8s6 $ 10,218,660 $ (9,473,74n fi

2.OO - 5.00%

2.00 - 5.oo%

2.OO - 5.OO%

2.OO - 5.00%
2.00 - 5.00%
2.OO - 5.OO%

2.00 -5.00%
2.00 - 5.00%
3.00 - 5.00%

3.00 - 5.00%

3.00 - 5.00%

3.00 - 5.00%

3.00 - 5.00%

3.00 - 5.00%

3.00 - 5.00%

3.00 - 5.00%

3.00 - 5.00%

3.00 - 5.00%

3.00 - 5.00%

2.00 - 4.25%
2.00 - 4.00%
2.OO - 4.00%

2.00 - 4.00%
2.OO - 4.000/"

2.00 - 4.00%
2.OO - 4.00%
2.00 - 4.25%

2.00 - 4.00%

2,093,000

42,952,9M
4,919,000

7,625,000

L,5M,000
165,000

512,000

70,000

985,000

224,000

3,2oo,ooo

2,659,000

2,41.4,000

1,719,000

1,559,000

1.,070,000

541,000

432,500

45,000

(456,000)

(3,118,638)

(1.,117,000)

(2,365,000)

(246,000)

(95,000)

(222,000)

(35,ooo)

(225,000)
(21,000)

(160,000)

(158,600)

(426,000)

(356,000)

(116,000)

(85,000)

(3Zooo)
(100,500)

(7,000)

L,637,000

39,834,206

3,802,000

5,260,ooo

1.,298,000

70,000

290,000

35,000

760,000

203,000

3,040,000

2,500,400

1,988,000

1,363,000

1.,M2,000

985,000

504,000

332,000

38,000

450,025

578,750
'L,226,000

1.,91.0,222

1,348,000
'1.,849,463

266,000

975,000

1.,6L5,200

450,025

578,750

1,,226,000

1.,910,222
'1.,348,000

1.,849,463

266,OOO

975,OOO

1.,61.5,200

10,218,66074,728,3M

L,625,512

(9,346,738)

(127,009)

75,600,266

1,498,503

77,098,769
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Debt service requirements for principal and interest for governmental funds in future fiscal years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Interest Total

201,4............. g

2015.............
201,6......... ....
2017.............
20't8.............
2019.............
2020.............
2021,.............
2022.............
2023.............
2024.............
2025.............
2026.............
2027.............
2028.............
2029.............
2030........ .....
2031,.............
2032.............
2033.......... ...

Principal

7,745,399 $
7,056,738

6,860,239

6,637,238

5,977,239

5,626,238

5,356,239

5,076,238

4,876,238

4,067,239

3,942,239

3,872,239

2,838,238

2,133,239
'1,,369,239

1,204,236

337,600

337,600

332,600

55,000

2,635,812 $
2,535,639

2,253,827

1,,973,679

1,,704,274
'1,,467,01'1,

'1,,235,975

1,,027,940

835,622

650,736

510,327

373,184

243,073

161,243

100,402

63,331

34,948

24,009

13,066

2,338

10,38-1,21,0

9,592,377

9,11,4,065

8,610,917

7,581,5],2

7,093,249

6,592,213

6,1,04,179

5,711,,860

4,717,974

4,452,565

4,245,422

3,08'1,31'L

2,294,48'1,
'1,468,640

'L,267,567

372,548

36-1,,608

345,666

57,338

Total............$ 75,600,266 fi 17,U6,435 fi 93,M6,701,

The City issued $8,603,460 of general obligation bonds on fune 27,2013 for building renovations, street repairs,
land acquisition and other equipment.

Current Refunding - Iune 27. 2013

On June 27 , 2013, the City issued fi1,615,200 in current refunding bonds to refund $1,650,000 of previously issued
and outstanding governmental bonds with an average interest rate of approximately 4.3%. The average interest
rate of the current refunding bonds is approximately 4.0%.

The net proceeds of fi-1.,70'1.,633 (after payment of approximately $41,000 in bond issuance costs, plus premium of
approximately fi127,000) were used to retire the outstanding bonds and related accrued interest.

As a result of this refunding, the City will reduce its total gross debt service payments over the remaining life of
the bonds of approximately $105,000 and will realize an economic gain (difference between the present values of
the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of approximately $95,000.
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Bonils andNotes Payøble - EnterpriseEunds

Sewer Enterprise

Project
Interest

Rate

Outstanding
at fune 30,

201.2 Issued Redeemed

Outstanding
at june 30,

2013

Sewer Projects......

Sewer Improvements
Sewer Equipment..
MWPAT.....
MI¡RA'......
Sewer Projects......
Sewer Improvements
MWPAT.....
TraÍhc & Signal Improvements....
Sewer Improvements

Sub-total

Total sewer enterprise...

1,6,148,880

570,272

'1,,439,440

'1,,439,440

fi 't6,719,152 $ 1.,439,440

2.00-5.00%

4.00%

2.00-5.00%

2.00%

0.00%

3.00-5.00%

3.00-5.00%

2.00%

3.00-5.00%

2.00 - 4.25%

3,240,000

615,000

656,000
2,877,947

1.,461,,240

2,661,,000

3,g6g,5oo

384,193

385,000

2,900,000

578,000

573,000
2,659,556
1,,065,680

2,528,450

3,674,250

384,193
338,000

1,,439,440

-$

1,6,1,40,569

541,030

$ 16,691,599
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Debt service requirements for principal and interest for the sewer enterprise fund in future fiscal years are as
follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

1,,562,398 $
1,,368,569

1,364,792

L,032,042
'1,,042,471

L,045,009

853,031

856,049

829,125

826,266

829,471

842,740

785,075

608,478

478,027

472,763

427,515

428,281

406,710

81,767

532,11.4 $

515,219

473,593

430,997

385,902

34',1,,102

299,397

268,926

238,463

202,174

173,233

1,43,946

115,325

91,-1,05

72,841.

56,874

42,776

29,072

L5,786

2,932

2,094,512
'L,993,788

1,,838,375

1,463,039
-1,,429,373

'1,,386,11'1,

'1,,-1,52,428

-1,,124,975

'1.,067,588

'1,,029,M0

'1,,002,704

986,686

900,400

699,583

550,868

529,637

470,29L

457,353

422,496

84,699

Total............... $'1,6,1,40,569 g 4,43'1,777 fi 20,572,346

The Massachusetts Water Resource Authority (MWRA) operates financial assistance programs for community
owned collection systems. Financial assistance received from the MWRA consists of non-interest bearing loans
(payable in five equal annual installments) and, in some instances, grants. At June 30,2013, the outstanding
principal amount of MWRA loans in the sewer enterprise fund totaled $1,065,680.

The CiÇ issued fi1,439,M0 of general obligation bonds onJune 27,2013 for sewer improvement projects.
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Water Enterprise

Proiect
Interest

Rate

Outstanding
at June 30,

2072 Issued Redeemed

Outstanding
at ]une 30,

2013

Water Mains
Water Improvements
Water Tower....
Water Projects......

MWRA.
Water Mains
Water Improvements................
Water Projects......
MWRA......
Water Improvements

Sub-total

Add: unamortized premium. .....

Total water enterprise

5,880,866

1.65,158

2,156,450

1,,079,900

3,236,350

$ 6,046,024 S 3,236,350

(653,752) 8,463,464

(8,469) 156,689

g (662,221) g 8,620,153

4.10-5.00%
4.00%

2.00-4.00%

3.00-5.00%

0.00%

3.00-5.00%

3.00-5.00%

3.00-5.00%

0.00%

2.00-4.25y.

230,000
'1,,637,000

80,000
339,000

1,,544,966

398,000

L,150,000

502,000

(15,000)

(121,000)

(40,000)
(202,000)

(171,652)

(1e,e00)

(59,100)

(25,100)

215,000

1,,5'1,6,000

40,000
137,000

'1,,373,214

378,'1.00

1,,090,900

476,900
2,156,450

1,,079,900

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for the water enterprise fund in fufure fiscal years are as
follows:

Fiscal Year Interest Total

20't4.............
2015.............
201.6.............
2017.............
2018.............
2019.............
2020.............
2021..............
2022.............
2023.............
2024.............
2025.............
2026.............
2027.............
2028.............
2029.............
2030.............
2031.............
2032.............
2033.............

Principal

g 809,296

738,397

698,397

698,396

673,397

667,397

660,397

645,397

473,745

468,745

253,100

249,100

248,100

249,'1,00

249,100

199,100

147,100

147,1.00

147,100

45,000

$ 1,65,216 $
169,375

155,901

1.43,443

131,182
119,707

105,909

95,376

86,073

74,728

66,075

57,466
48,784

39,921.

30,854

22,796

1.6,839

11.,964

6,891

974,512
907,772

854,198

841.,839

804,579

786,104
766,206

740,773

559,8L8

543,473

319,175

305,566

296,884
288,021

278,954
220,886

163,939

1.58,964
't53,991.

46,912

fi 10,012,566

1,,912

Tota]............ $ 8,463,464 g'1.,549,102
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The Massachusetts Water Resource Authority (MWRA) operates financial assistance programs for community
owned collection systems. Financial assistance received from the MWRA consists of non-interest bearing loans
(payable in five equal annual installments) and, in some instances, grants. At June 30,2013, the outstanding
principal amount of MWRA loans in the water enterprise fund totaled fi3,529,664.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the City was the recipient oÍ a6'1,320,000 and $836,450 ten-year interest
free water system improvements loans.

The City issued g'1.,079,900 of general obligation bonds on June 27,2013 for water improvement projects.

Veterans Memorial Rink Enterprise

Outstanding Outstanding
Interest atlune 3Q atJune 30,

Project Rate 2072 Issued Redeemed 2013

Equipment... 3.00-5.00% $ as,oOO$ -$ (24,000)$ 0r,ooO

Add: unamortized premium

Total Veterans Memorial Rink. . . . . .. .

5,376 _ (1,536) 3,840

fi 90,376 $ - $ fi 64,840

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for the Veterans Memorial Rink enterprise fund in future
fiscal years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2014..............$ 23,500fi 2,204fi 25,70E

2015.............. 23,500 1,500 25,000

20'1,6.............. 14,000 560 14,560

Tota1..............$ 61,000 $ 4,264 fi 65,264
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The City is subject to various debt limits by statute and may issue additional general obligation debt under the
normal debt limit. AtJune 30,2013, the City had the following authorized and unissued debt:

Purpose Amount

Sewer...
Street & traffic improvements.......
School design/construction..........
Water........
Building renovations
Planning....
Fire pumper truck..
Equipment.
Technology
Land development.......
Police communication system...... .

Total...

NOTE 11- OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

fi 5,969,940
4,514,400

3,896,274
2,132,582
1,026,600
-1,,025,000

222,000
124,000
79,000

51,000

45,220

$ 19,086,0'1.6

PlønDescription - The City provides health, dental and life insurance coverage for its retirees and their survivors
(hereinafter referred to as the "Plal') as a single-employer defined benefit Other Post Employment Benefit
(OPEB) plan. Chapter 328 of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions. Changes to
plan design and contribution rates must be accomplished through the collective bargaining process. The Plan
does not issue a stand-alone financial report since there are no assets legally segregated for the sole purpose of
paying benefits under the Plan.

The number of participants as of June 30,20L2, the latest actuarial valuation, is as follows:

Active employees.. 1,330
Retirees and Survivors.... 1,,247

Total

Eunding Policy -The contribution requirements of Plan members and the City are established and may be
amended by the City. The required health and dental insurance (including Medicare Part B) contribution rates of
Plan members and the City are between'L% and12.5% and99% and87.5%, respectively, depending on the plan
elected. The Plan members and the City each contribute 50% towards a $5,000 term life insurance premium. The
City currentþ contributes enough money to the Plan to satisfy current obligations on a pay-as-you-go basis. The
costs of administering the Plan are paid by the City.

Annuøl OPEB Cost anilNet OPEB Obligation - The City's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the
annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an actuarially determined amount that is calculated in
accordance with the parameters set forth in GASB Statement #45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amottize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities (or funding "*."sf o.rer a period not to exceed thirty years.
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The following table identifies the components of the Ci!/s annual OPEB cost for the year, the actual amount
contributed to the plan, and changes in the City's net OPEB obligation:

Amount

Annual required contribution $ 40,508,766
Interest on net OPEB obligation... .. 2,778,294
Adjustnrenttoamualrequiredcontribution..... (2,315,245)

Annual OPEB cost........... 40,97-1.,815

Contributions made.. (22,940,174\

Increase in net OPEB obligation... 18,031,641.

NetOPEB obligation atbeginning of year........ 69,457,340

Net OPEB obligation at end of year....... fi 87,488,981

Trend information regarding annual OPEB cost, the percentage of the annual OPEB cost contributed and the net
OPEB obligation is as follows:

Annual Percentage Net
Fiscal Year OPEB Cost of AOPEBC OPEB
Ending (AOPEBC) Contributed Obligation

June 30, 201L...... fi 36,228,768 68.0% $ 51,7'1.4,420

June 30, 2012...... 39,383,555 54.9% 69,457,340

June 30, 2013...... 40,971,815 56.0% 87,488,981.

Eunded Status ønd Eunding Progress - The funded status of the Plan at June 30, 2012, the most recent actuarial
valuation, was as follows:

Actuarial
Accrued

Actuarial Liability (AAL) Untunded
UAAL as a

Percentage

Actuarial Value of Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered of Covered

Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (A) (B) (B-A) (^/B) (c) ((B-A)/c)

06/30/12 $ - g 657,972,850 g 657,972,850 0%fi 82,752,496 795%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress/ presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multi-year trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.
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Methods ønd Assumptions - Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive
Plan (the Plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at
the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and Plan
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the
long-term perspective of the calculations.

The significant methods and assumptions as of the latest actuarial valuation are as follows:

Valuation date:

Actuarial cost method:

Amortization method:

Remaining amortization period:

Interest discount rate:

lnflation rate:

[une30,2012

Projected Unit Credit

Level percentage of projected payroll

30 years (open)

4.0%

4.0%

Healthcare/Medical cost trend rate: 8.0% decreasing a half percent annually for 7 yearc to an ultimate level of

Projected salary increases :

4.5o/o per leat

4.0%

Allocation of AOPEBC - AOPEBC costs were allocated to the Citls functions as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General government .................. $

Public safety........
Education..
Public works........
Health and human services......
Culture and recreation...............
Community development

Total AOPEBC - governmental activities.....

Business-Type Activities:
Sewer........
Water.
Veterans Memorial Rink..........

Total AOPEBC - business-type activities.....

Total.........

2,540,537

12,256,413
21,,853,770

-1.,523,724

531,,250

975,056
565,593

40,246,343

250,745

433,55't

41,176

725,472

fi 40,97'1.,81.5
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NOTE 12 - RISK FINANCING

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft ol damage to and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial insurance. In addition, the City is self-
insured for damages not covered by commercial insurance. The amount of claim settlements has not exceeded
insurance coverage in any of the previous three fiscal years.

The City participates in premium-based healthcare plans for its active employees and retirees, as well as being
self-insured. These activities are accounted for in the CitS/s internal service fund where revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recoded when the liability is incurred.

The City is also self-insured for its workers' compensation and unemployment compensation activities.

A. HeøIth Insurønce

Health insurance claims are administered by a third party administrator and are funded from the Cit/s internal
service fund. The estimate of "Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR)" claims is based on one month and a half
claims paid average. The City purchases individual stop loss insurance for claims in excess of the coverage
provided by the City in the amount of $250,000 per claim. At June 30, 2013, the amount of the liability for health
insurance claims totaled 92,687,104. Changes in the reported liabitty since fuly 'L,2011, are as follows:

Current Year
Balance at Claims and

Beginning of Changes in
Fiscal Year Estimate

3,484,000 g 36,035,511

3,496,119 37,236,047

Claims
Payments

fi (36,023,392) $
(38,045,062)

Fiscal year 2012........ $
Fiscal year 2013........

Fiscal yeat 2012..... ... $
Fiscal year 2013........

Balance at
Fiscal

Year-end

B. Workers' Compensation

Workers' compensation claims are administered by the City and are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis from
annual appropriations. The estimated future liability is based on history and injury type.

Theliabilityatfune30,2013,totaledfi279,250. ChangesinthereportedliabilitysinceJuly-l.,2011.,areasfollows:

3,496,119

2,687,104

Balance at
Fiscal

Year-end

Current Year
Balance at Claims and

Beginning of Changes in
Fiscal Year Estimate

627,000 $
330,793

108,516 $
635,715

330,793

279,250
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NOTE 13. FUND BALANCES

The constraints on fund balances as listed in aggregate in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet are detailed as

follows:

General
Community Community City Capital
Development Preservation Proiects

Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental

Fu¡ds Funds

Nonspendable:
Permanent fund princrpal............ $

Restricted:

-fi 

4047,898 fi 2,047,898

Community preservation........... 21,458,645
Citycapita1projects.................... 2,804,7U
Other postemployement benefits. ., 8,132,094
Other special revenue................
City federal grants........,,...........
School federal granb,,...............
City state grants
School state grants.....................
Insu¡ance recovery....................
Gifts................
Sale of lots/graves....................
Revenue reserve

School lu¡ch.....
Parking meters..

UDAG nova biomedical............
Public safety trust funds..............
Traffic impact fund...................
School capital projects..,..............
Cemetery trust fu¡ds..................
Other permanent funds.,...........,,

Sub-total - Restricted. 8,132,094

68,451.

4,735,763

3,363,997
4,7M

87,541
149,308

8,941.

79,600
695,673

'1.,3'1.0,372

L;1.01.,31.4

488,099
1,729,62'L

89,794
1.,019,639

2,723,754
1.,4U,464

21,673

237,4U

21,458,645
2,804,7U
8,132,094
3,363,997

4,1.4
I'1.,541

L49,308
8,941

79,600
695,673

'1,370,372

L,701.,374

488,099
1.,729,621

89,194
1,019,639

2,123,754
1,484,464

21,673
237,434

27,458,645 2,804,784 "13,988,708 46,384,231

68,451
4,735,763

Committed:
Subsequent year's expenditures....
Continuing appropriations...........

Subtotal - Committed............

Assigned:
Encumb¡ances..

Unassigned......

4,804,2L4

7,677,650

4,804,21.4

7,677,650

29,796,820 (26) (47,673)

fi 43,810,n8 $ (26) $ (47,673) g 2L,458,@5 $ 2,804,7U

(496,03s) 28,6s3,1.46

g 75,540,577 g 83,567,L39

NOTE 1.4 - STABILIZATION FUNDS

The City maintains a general stabilization fund that was established under MGL Chapter 40, Section 58.
Appropriations in and out of the stabilization fund require majority Cþ Council approval. Investment income is
retained by the fund.

The balance of the general stabilization fund at June 30, 2013 totals $1,581 ,916 and is reported in the general fund
as unassigned fund balance.
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NOTE 15 - PENSION PLAN

PlønDescription -The City contributes to the System, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan administered by the Waltham Contributory Retirement System. Substantially all employees of the City are
members of the System, except for public school teachers and certain administrators who are members of the
Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System.

Chapter 32 of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. The System
provides retirement disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Cost-of-Iiving adjustments
granted between 1981 and 1997 and any increases in other benefits imposed by the Commonwealth's state law
during those years are borne by the Commonwealth and are deposited into the pension fund. Cost-ofJiving
adjustments granted after 1997 must be authorized by the Waltham Contributory Retirement System and are
borne by the System. The System issues a publicly available report in accordance with guidelines established by
the Commonwealth's Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission. That report may be obtained by
contacting the System located at 610 Main Street, Waltham, Massachusetts 02452.

Pløn Membership - At Decemb er 31,, 2012, the System's membership consists of the following:

Active members
Inactive members....
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits....

906

11.4

774

Total

Eunding Policy - Chapter 32 of MGL governs the contributions of plan members and the City. Plan members are
required to contribute to the System at rates ranging fuom1% to 1-1,% of armual covered compensation. The City
is required to pay into the System its share of the system-wide actuarial determined contribution that is
apportioned among the employers based on annual covered payroll.

Contributions are recognized as additions in the period when they become due pursuant to formal commitments,
statutory or contractual requirements. Benefits and refunds are recognized as deductions when incurred and
administrative expenses are funded through investment earnings.

Annuøl Pension Cost - The City's contributions to the System for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013,2012, and
2011 were fi13,857 ,860, fi13,738,814 and fi13,720,343, respectively. The current and two preceding fiscal years
apportionment of the annual pension cost between the two employers required the City to contribute
approximately 97% of the total. At June 30,2013, the City did not have a net pension obligation.

Eundeil Status ønìl Eunding Progress - The funded status of the plan at fanuary L,2013, the most recent actuarial
valuation date, is as follows:

01,/01,/13 $

Actuarial UAAL as a

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
(Aì (B) (B-A) (A/Bt (c) ((B-A)/c)

165,040,789 g 324,'t09,193 $ 159,069,404 50.9% fi 50,696,522 313.8%

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) following the notes to
the financial statements, present multi-year trend information about whether the acfuarial values of plan assets
are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the AAL for benefits.

Actuarial
Valuation

Date
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Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation is as follows:

Valuation date:

Actuarial cost method:

Amortization method:

Asset valuation method:

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of refurn:

fanuary 1,2013

Entry age normal

Increasing payments 4.00%

Actuarial value, S-year smoothing

8.25To

Remainingamortizationperiod: 22years(open)

Projected salary increases: 3.50%

Inflation rate: 3.50y"

Cost of living adjustments: 3.00% of the first $14,000 of retirement income

Legølly RequiredReserae Accounts -The balance in the System's legally required reseryes as of December 3L,
2012 arc as follows:

Description Amount Purpose

Annuity Savings Fund........ g 56,097,773 Active members' contribution balance
Arutuity Reserve Fund........ 1,6,372,817 Retired members' contribution account
Military Service Fund......... 2,225 Military leave of absence contribution balance
Pension Reserve Fund......... 77,0'1,4,979 Amounts appropriated to fund future retirement
Pension Fund.. 17,686,063 Remaining net assets

Tota1......... g 1.67,173,857

NOTE 16 - MASSACHUSETTS TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Public school teachers and certain administrators are members of the Massachuseths Teachers Retirement System,
to which the City does not contribute. Pension benefits and administrative expenses paid by the Teachers
Retirement Board are the legal responsibility of the Commonwealth. The amount of these on-behalf payments
totaled fi16,M8,516 for the fucal year ended June 30, 2013, and accordingly, are reported in the general fund as
intergovernmental revenues and pension expendifures.

NOTE 17 - COMMITMENTS

The City has entered into, or is planning to enter into, contracts totaling approximately fi42,000,000 for equipmenf
street and sidewalks, buildings and facilities and water/sewer infrastructure in accordance with its five-year
capital improvement plan.

Other significant commitments include the encumbrances and continuing appropriations outstanding for the
general fund, which totaled fi6,413,413 at June 30,2013.
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NOTE 18 - CONTINGENCIES

Various legal actions and claims are pending against the City. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and the
outcome of individual litigated matters is not always predictable. Although the amount of liability, if any, at fune
30,2013, cannot be ascertained, management believes any resulting liability should not materially affect the
financial position of the City at June 30,2013.

The City participates in a number of federal award programs. Although the grant programs have been audited in
accordance with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 through |une 30, 2013, these

Programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits. The amoun! tÍ any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such amounts, if
any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 19 - FUTURE IMPLEMENTATION OF GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued the following statements:

during fiscal year 2014. Management does not believe the implementation of this Statement will
significantly impact the basic financial statements.

is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2014. Management does not believe the implementation
of this Statement will impact the basic financial statements.

required to be implemented during fiscal year 2014. The implementation of this Statement will require
expanded note disclosures and required supplementary information.

27, which is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2015. The implementation of this Statement
will represent a significant change in the accounting and reporting of pension expense and the related
liability. For the first time, the City will be required to recognize its long-term obligation for pension
benefits as a liability and to more comprehensively measure the annual costs of pension benefits. The
implementation of this Statement also expands pension related note disclosures and required
supplementary information.

implemented during fiscal year 2015. Management does not believe the implementation of this Statement
will impact the basic financial statements.

required to be implemented during fiscal yeat 2014. Management does not believe the implementation of
this Statement will impact the basic financial statements.

These pronouncements will be implemented by their respective implementation dates.
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES TN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED ruNE 30, 2013

Prior Year
Encumbrances
and Continuing Original
Appropriations Budget

-$

Supplemental
Appropriations
and Trarufers

Final
Budget

L5'J.,760,623

6,215,000
3,100,000
1,100,000

REVENUES
Real estate and personal property taxes. . . ....... . . . .... .. . . ....... . $
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes...................
Hote/motel tax
Meals taxes. . .. . .

151,760,623 $
6,275,000

1100,000
1,100000

Tax lieru.
Payrnents in lieu of taxes., ,. . .. . ,. . ,

Intergovernmental .. .. ... . ,, . ,. . .. . .

Special assessments..................
Penalties and interest on taxes. , ... .. . . . .... .

Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures........ ,. , ,. . .. . ..

Deparhrental and other............
Investment income

TOTALREVENUES

EXPENDITURES

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
City Council

Personnel........
General. . .. .... .. .

54,000
17,429,364

125,000

510,000

¿500,000
725,000

7,281,000

80,000

7U,879,987

54,000
17,429,364

125,000

510,000

¿500,000
725,000

1,281,000

80,000

7U,879,987

280,117
62,800
42,325

982
32,325

982

280,I17
62,800
10,000

Mayor's Office
Personnel,,... ,. .

Genera]....,..,,..
587,"199

Capital lmprovement............... 2,200
Tota1............... Sgg,Zgg

Auditors
Personnel.

33,307 352,977

287,460
24,850

1,88¿800

2,195,11.0

490,654
7,535

5,749

804 12,000

o5s3 498,189 12000

386,224

287,46Q

24,850
2,469,999

2,200
2,7U,509

490,654
7,535
5,749

12,804
5L6,742

Treasu¡er and Collector
Personnel.

5,777
9,020

u1.,1.0't
283,600

1000

uL,707
288,77L

L4,O20

30,500Capital Improvement,
Total 74r79-L 1,,729,701,

30,500
30,500 1,,174,392

Assessors
Personnel........

7,500
Capital Improvement............... 6,450 6,450
Tota1............... 7,SOO M,I09 6,450 45B,OS9

Certification and Interest on Refunds*..........,..,,............ 110,000

* Budgeted amount voted by City Council as part of debt service - interest.

356,279
87,830

- 356,279
- 95,330

Cíty of Waltham, Massnchusetts

11O000
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Actual and
Encurnbrances Encurnbrances Variance
and Continuing and Continuing Positive/
Appropriations Appropriatioru (Negative)

- $ 752,713,774 $ 953,1s1152,773,n4 $
6,567,957
3,298,37L
1,167,324
1,203,258

54,872
1.7,365,082

130,820
696,376

4,259,773
725,243

1.,U0,572
710,279

6,567,957

3,298,311
'J.,1.67,324

7,203,258

t7,365,082
130,820

696,31.6

4,259,773

278,699

6L594
20,325

434,553
6,829

352,957
198,311

67,324
1,203,258

(64,282)

5,820
786,376

1,759,773

1,478

206
22,000

24,776

56,1.0L

706

5,749

541872 812

23,1.07

L,338,597

r,Ars,$¿ t,r?,?31 ,,"T,Å3

4U,553
5,766 1.,063

Moþl; ',?,ZZi ;:;:1Zt 62,ss¿

725,243 243
1,340,572 59,572

710,279 30,279

189,633,521. 4,753,5U1.89,633,52t

278,699

60,794 1,800
20,325

982
339,493

273,397
23,796

1,122,943

12,866

30,500
43,366

328,780
92,323

714,666 75,491,

982
362,600 23,624

273,397 74,063
23,196 -t,654

2,461.,90 8,459

840,719

262,164
7,020

7,1.09,903

u0,719 382
275,030 73,747

7,020 7,000
30,500

7,753,269 27,723

- 328,780 27,499
155 92,478 2,852

421.10; 7,23i -\,iïl 30Ês;

190,157 (80,7sn

Cìty of Walthan, Møssachusetts
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FORTHE FISCALYEAR ENDED ruNE 30,2013

Purchasing
Personnel..... .. . .

Prior Year
Encumbrances
and Continuing Original
Appropriations Budget

Final
Budget

- 21.6,218

- 2,786
72,46L 243,1.47

72,46L
474,6"12

276,218

7,367
228,964

12,46'J.

465,004

4,000
77,000
27,000

Supplemental
Appropriations
and T¡a¡sfers

72"461

Trust Funds
Personnel.
General

Total

Utilities
General. . ..... . .. .

Central Telephone Service

(4,575)

1.,722

200

1.,575

4,200
78,575

7,775

law Department
Personnel.........

170
Equipment/Unusua1................. 106,795
Capital Improvement............... 8,774
Total............... 715,739

Building General Support and Maintenance

778,988
63,850

26,000

868,838

7,436,756
281,000

30,306
4&000

7,747,462 4&0oo

22,775

10,000

6L,247
50,000
12,369

133,6L6

45,000
2t800
70,800

778,988

64,020
177,795

u,574
7,055,377

7,M6,156
342,247

80,306

60,369

1.,929,078

61000 1,310,850 1.,375,850

27,707
1941042

227,749

257,304
5,750

25,480

288,534

27,707
180,000

2,480
2,480

207,707

257,304
5,750

23,000

286,054

City Clerk
Personnel........ - 354,497
Genera1........... 452 90,200
Capital Improvement...............,,.

Work Study
General

Lnformation Technology
Personnel.... . .. .

Gene¡a1....,,..... 946
Equipment/Unwual..

444,687 50330 495,469

6,000 6,000

369,687

90,652
35,130

75,200

35,L30

2,868
3,274

987,474
300,225
10,000

1ó0,501
160,501

987,4L4
300,577

10,000

763,369
1,46].,354

City of Wøltham, Massøchusetts

7,297,639
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Actual and
Encumbrances Encumb¡ances Variance
and Continuing ând Continuing Positive/
Appropriations App¡op¡iations (Negative)

21.5,982

6,837
235,587

458,406

3,200
4,276
7,41.6

710,7M
49,2L6

45,395
8,488

813,833

L,283,-tO2

262,11.5

1.6,950

7,41.6 15,359

(4,74s)

12,461.

215,982
2,092

23s,587
72,461

466,722 8,490

1,000
-t4,359

236

694

7,560

7,71.6

3,200
4,216

3,963
101,500

26,086
137,549

10,000 1,293,102
10,239 272,954
63,356 80,306

34,574
945,382 709,995

770,734
53,779

746,895

68,254
10,uL
30900

153,054

69,893

1.,s6u.6; ,i2:,31å ,,,3:i,121 222,s4;

1,732,517 79,260 1,277,771. 1,64,079

25,795
158,818
184,013 810

25,795 2,512
759,628 U,414
184,823 36,926

254,872 2,432

3,857 1.,893

72,080 13,400

270,809 77,725

254,872

3,857
11.,935

270,664
1.45
"145

369,249
63,675

978,319
292,642

9,680
7,687

1,280,64; :iT,,lï

7,160 4,UO

438
23,891.

978,3t9
300,3?3

9,680
163,369

\,457,691 9,663

- 369,249
3,086 66,761

31130 35,130
432,924 38,276 471,740 24,329

9,095
248
320

City of Waltham, Møssøchusetts
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGETAND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED TUNE 30, 2013

Voter Registration
Persomel.,,,.,...
Genera1........,.. 1,326
Capital Improvement...............
Tota1.....,.........

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police and Animal Control

Personnel. . .......
General.......... ,

Equipment/Unusual..,...............

7,326

985,74L

Prior Year
Encumbrances
and Continuing Original
Appropriations Budget

227,503
11ts00

M3,OO3

71,728,270

Supplemental
Appropriations
and Transfers

50,000

1O000
60,000

457,042

Final
Budget

227,503
166,826
10,000

404,329

13,165,053

73,1.48,024

389,747
174,257
'1.52,225

"131,695

1.,402274
31895
6,600

1,M4,769

13,559,5M
360,594

91,687
786,393
55,000

1.4,253,218

69,624

9,400
28,8't6

3,500
27,000

138,340

75,000
9,912
8,321.

72,963,024
379,835
'J.63,433

r52,225

1.,402,274

35895
6,600

'J.,M,769

12,954,5M

307,818
63,700

757,425

110,000

2,497

73't,695

55,000

5s,000

27,000
40,000

Capital Inprovement.......... . .. . .

Total............... 93,239 12,659,517

Dispatch

2M,792 73,995,942

605,000

52,776

27,987
28,968

Capital Improvement.......... . .. . ... ,

714,73L 73,483,487

Emergency Management
Personnel.........
Gene¡al..,.,......

69,624
9,400
6,700 13,000

3,500

9,716

Capital Improvement...............
9,116 89,224

Wi¡es General Support and Inspection
Personnel..,,.., . .

Genera1.......,,,, 42,403
Equipment/Unusual..................
Capital Improvement..................

557,666
224,550

8,000

42403 790,276

: i27,383
- 8,000

10,000 10,000

10,000 842,6-t9

12,600
3,900

16,500

29,482,773

72,600
3,900

16,500

TOTAL PUBLIC SATETY....,..... 349,192 30,697,388

Cìty of Waltham, Møssachuselts

859,483
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Actual and
Encumbrances Encumb¡ances Variance
and Continuing and Continuing Positive/
Appropriations Appropriations (Negative)

227,356
134,7U 10,562

_ 10,000
362,740 20,562

227,356
745,346

10,000

1.47

2L,480

2,096,505

382,702

12,M7,40010350,89s

73,059,186
269,828
756,288
L43,9U

13,629,286

-t,289,208

32,842
6,549

7,328,599

12,728,807
275,109

65,977

122,720

69,537

7,169

3,973

3,495

557,780
226,409

6,053

789,642

21.,627

777,653

75,000

33,789
12,276

3,566
t31,695

13,7U,186
303,677

768,564
747,550
131,695

73,885,612

13,838
86,130
5,687
4,675

110,330

773,066

3,053

22L,737
12,377

1.,475

2,M4

256,326

609,000
73,1.08

24,301.

67,229

867
13,000

7,289,208

32,U2

-t3,337,807

u8,217
90,272

183,949

6,549 51
'1,328,599 716,170

1s,rs2,6o; 'Y:23i ',,iy,Zä zz7p7;

69,537 87

8,036 1,364
L6,973 17,U3
3,495 5

84,774 17,22i 'i7,32i ß,2s;

- 557,180
24,676 251,085

983 7,036
10,000 10,000

35,659 825,301 77,318

486
15,868

964

12,477

75,961.

29,040,269 7,t55,490

12,477 123
3,4U 476

15,961 539

495,629

City of Wølthan, Møssachusetts

30,795,7s9
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED ruNE 30.2013

EDUCATION
Pe¡sonne1...,...,, 1,63,069
Genera1........,.. 996,624
P¡ofessional Development.. .. , .. . .

Capital Inprovement....,,......... 6,550

Prior Year
Encumbrances
and Continuing Original
Appropriations Budget

1.,1.66,'237

51.,342,601.

t4,864,9M
303,769

18&135

66,699,M9TOTAL EDUCATION................

PUBLICWORKS
Consolidated Public Works Administration

Personnel,,,......
General,, ,. . ... ...
Equipment/Unusual................
Capital Improvement..,............
Tota]...............

Supplemental
Appropriations
md Trmfers

Final
Budget

57,505,664

L5,9U,769
303,769

794,685

67,988,887

123,20't

1',23,201

25,000
8,969

355,134
80,182

3,727,890
1.,770,800

273,000
157,500
1.57,500

3,752,890
7,179,769

568,734
237,682

5,738,475469,285

Snow and Ice Removal
Personnel. , .. ....
Gene¡aÌ........... 8,268
Total............... 9,268

Street Lighting
General.. .. . . .... .

Collection and Disposal of Rubbish

M0,000 7,876,268

47,239 530,000

232,7U 5,135,000 100,000 5,467,7U

5,-117,690

100000
7,268,000
1,3ó8,000

155,000
285,000

255,000
7,561,268

Equipment/Unusual.

Cemetery Commission
Pe¡sonnel

TOTAL PUBLICWORKS. 757,776

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Plarming

Personnel..,.....
General. ... . . ..,. ,

3.000

72,747,690 697,500

3,200

73,602,966

Capital Improvement...............

772,554
1,150

300,236
300,236

172,554
1,150

373,131
546,835

72,895

Total

Board of Survey and Plaming
Personnel.... . .. .

Gene¡al........,..

Zoning Board of Appeals
Personnel. ... . .. .

General.. ...,, . .. .

173,704

749,247
1,350

149,247
1,350

750,597

1.7,000

4t400
21.,400

1,500

227

150,597

77,000
4,400

27,400

17,600
20,500

_ 11100
- 20,727

2,400 2,400
2,400 42,227
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Actual and
Encumbrances Encumbrmces Variance

and Continuing and Continuing Positive/
Actual Appropriations App¡opriations (Negative)

47,453 128,268 769,72'J, 24,964

50,277,600
74,664,466 1,059,485

328,275

65,311.,794 7,787,753

3,578,707 25,000
7,078,18L 12,459
169,557 370,291,

50,277,600 1,228,064
1.5,7',23,957 260,818

328,275 (24,506)

66,499,547 7,489,340

3,543,707
1,090,640

539,842

209,789

89,729
28,292

6,136 23-t,546 237,682
4,772,569 639,296 5,411.,865 326,670

249,773 - 249,7L3 5,287
1.,490,253 73,255 1,509508 57,760
L,739,966 13,255 7,753,227 63,047

551020 't4,u't 569,86't 7,378

4,905,136 4¿9,392 5,354,528 113,256

11,975,69L 7,716,784

3,000

73,092,475 570,491

74,941.

7,704
- 373,131.

76,045 373,737

74,941.

1.,1.04

373,131.

M9,176 97,659

97,673
46

L45,817
1,U3 7

747,760 3,437

74,300 2,700
3,207 7,193

17,507 3,893

17,300 1,800

79,424 1,303

t7,300
78,993

36,293

745,877
L,343

L47,1.60

74,300
3,207

77,507

431

2,400 z4o0
2,83T 39,124 3,103

Cíty of Waltham, Møssachusetts

(continued)
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED IUNE 30 2013

Prior Year
Encumbrances
and Continuing Original
Appropriations Budget

Traffic Engineering

3,938
Capital Improvement...............

7,670 397,480

Conservation Commission
Personnel.

Supplemental
Appropriations
and Transfers

FinaÌ
Budget

302,460
48,692

53,938

&000 8,000
8,000 413,090

302,460
45,020
50,000

Historical Commission
Personnel

Total

Paine Estate
Personnel

Engineering
Persormel.

Total.,

TOTAL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT........

HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Health

Personnel.......,.
Gene¡al.....,.....

Veterafis
Personnel.

342
53,97s
54,257 45,400

30,500
3,875
4,200

38,575

42,500
2,900

42,500

3,242
53,915
99,657

22

7,679

3,830
3,830

30,500
3,897
5,879

40,2't6

773,920

34+476

3 830

212,226

1,641

2,476

773,920
32,000

2,476 205,920

1.,200

14,738

369,542

ó,850
369,542

8,050
74,738

15,938 376,392

7,447,568

392,330

7,978,5781.56,54 374,466

500 767,320
208 43,925

10,000
10,000

767,820
44,733

600

10,000
822,553

Capital lmprovement..........,...,

General
1.65,262

2r0,275
375,537Total.

11,794 752,737
Capital Improvement...., ,. . . ......
Total............... 17,794 S0B,2L2

Celebration of Holidays
General.

9,600
30,000
39,ó00

174,862
240,275

415,737

Council on Aging
Personnel........ - ïSS,47S - 355,475

_ 164,531.

75,500
75,500

75,500
595,506

21.,700

City of Wølthan, Møssachuselts

10,000 11,100
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Actual and
Encumbrances Encumbrances
and Continuing and Continuing

- 28,327

- 2,456

3U
3,830

173,822
26,962

- 299,871
13 45,375

50,000 53,938

Variance
Positive/

Appropriations Appropriations (Negative)

299,877
45,362

3,938

773,822
26,578

200,400

363,992
7,674

2,649
3,317

- 8,000 8,000

u9,17L 58,013 407,124 5,966

1-4,173

786

53,91.5 53,91.5

30,783 53,975 U,698 14,959

28,300 28,300 2,200
3,338 1.48 3,486 41L
3,832 'J.,045 4,877 942

35,470 1.,193 36,663 3,553

4,274
3,830

204,614 7,612

98

7,514

5,550
327

1.4,738

8,132
2,373

109

363,992
7,723

371,606

7,264,375

759,688
41.,739

600

802,027

T74,128
ttt La,)

396,620

493,406

21

10000
1.0,027

377,775 20,6t5

1,757,781 760,797

759,688
41.,760

600

10,000

8720ø.8 10,s0s

M2,036
755,387 9,LM

4s7,423 '#,2i^

174,128 734
)71,492 77,783
396,620 18,517

342,036 !3,439
164,537

75,500

582,067 13,439

11,000 10,000 21.,000

City of Waltham, Ma s s a chl setts

(continued)
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCALYEAR ENDED ruNE 30 2013

Prior Year
Encurnb¡ances

and Continuing Original
Appropriations Budget

Supplemental
Appropriations
and Tra¡sfers

Final
Budget

7,000
200

Disabilities Serr¡ices Commission
Personnel.. .. . .. ..

General.... . .. . .. .

Total.

TOTAL HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES..,

CULTURE AND RECREATION
Llbtary

22,502

Recreation
Personnel

7,000
200

7,200

1.,713,894

7,200

1.,861.,496125,100

Personnel....,.... - ],,912,875 - 1.,912,91s
Genera1........... 2,930 260,600 50,000 214930
Equipment/Unusual........,......... 2,375 61,000 - 63,375
Capital Improvement..... .. . .. , .. . .. . . 101,000 101,000
Total.......,....... 4705 2,234,415 151,000 2,390,720

507,362

55,200
264,300

59,796

13,300
73,096

102000

8,000

46,856
46,856

454,862
14s00

102,000

91.,856

663,21.8

55,200

300,954

3,500
359,654

454,862
14s00
32,000

Capital Improvement...............

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Worker's Compensation...........

Unemplo¡rment

TOTAL EMPLOYEE BENEFITS........,..

70,000
45,000

Total. 115 000

Playgrounds
Personnel........
General........... 36,6s4

Summer Fun
Personnel-
Gene¡al
Total.,.............

Support of Recreation Activities
General...........

TOTAL CULTURE AND RECREATION......... t64,508

PENSION BENEFITS
Contributory Retkement System
Non-Contributory Pension Benefits...............,...,,,,...

TOTAL PENSION BENEFITS.

59,796

13,M9
73,245

110,000

8,000

110,000 118,000

3,604,2373,241.,873 797,856

13,857,860

31,000

13,888,860

73,857,860

31,000

13,888,8ó0

20,772 485,000
7,700,000

34,185,896
87,018
30,000
40000

36,527,974

200,000 705,772
1.,700,000

M,305,628
85,000

30000
4,620

Optional Medical Extension....,.
Hospital and Medical Insurance 179,732
Group Ijfe Insurance.. ,. , ,. . .. . .. . .. (2,018)
Social Security..

200,000 36,870,360

City of Waltham, Massachusetts

1.42,46
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Actual and
Encu¡rbrances Encumbrances
and Continuing and Continuing

Variance
Positive/

Appropriations Appropriations (Negative)

6,700 300

200
6,900

1,713,970

6,900

104,665 1,818,635

1.,Ul,453
311,977
6L,857

42,861.

101,000
2,270,310 1)5,965 2,31,6,275 73,U5

6,700
200

7,U1.,453
307,006 4,965
61''851- 

1o1,oo;

77,362

959
7,524

442,744

72,1.65

75,750
27,457

59,796

70,726
70,522

64,399

442,7M
12,765
75,750
91,856

72,778
2,335

26,250

40,703

70,302

558,"176 64,399

M,898 M,898
260,549 36,800 297,U9 3,605

1,,586 - 1,586 1.,91^4

307,033 3O800 343,833 75,82'1.

59,796

10,985 2,464
70,787 2,464

74,789 10,050 u,839 25,76-t
5,200 1,500 6,700 1,300

79,989 11,550 91,,539 26,461.

3,225,970 218,973 3,444,943 1.59,294

13,857,860
27,994

13,879,854

13,857,860
2't,994 9,006

13,879,8U 9,006

703,083 2,029
1,700,000

u,285,677 &400
69,793 6,27t
30,000

þ,ssn 8,137

36,782,336 39,837

705,112
7,700,000

M,294,077
75,464
30000
17,580

71.,677

9,536

27,040

48,187

City of Wøltham, Ma s søchu s elts

36,822,173

(continued)
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGTS IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGETAND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED ruNE 30,2013

Prio¡ Year
Encumbrances
and Continuing Original
Appropriations Budget

1.,578,870

Supplemental
Appropriations
and Transfers

Final
Budget

1,578,870STATE AND COUNTY CHARGES..,..,.,.....,..

DEBT SERVICE
Principal..........
Interest. . ..........

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE

7,720,738
2,867,619

1.0,588,357

7,720,738
2,867,679

10,588,357

TOTAL EXPENDITURES.,,..... 4,255,237 189,045,458 2,458,357 195,759,052

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
ovER EXPENDTTURES.....,..... (4r2ss,nn ø,76s,471\ (2,458þ5n O0,87e,065)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Premium fron issuance ofbonds

Transfers out................. - (101,905) (7,0M,604) (7,146,509)

Total other financing soutces (uses). ... , .. .... .. . 4,1.64,8s0 (6,964298\ (2,799,M8)

Transfe¡sin...... - 4,266,75s 80,30ó 4,347,061

(621) (9,422,65s) (13,678,s73)

33,987,630 33,987,630 33,987,630

33,987,009$ 24,564,97s$ 20,309,1L7

NET CHANGE IN FLIND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.........

(L2ss,n4

33,987,630

TUNDBALANCEATENDOFYEAR .....,... $ 29,732393 $

S€e notes to required supplementary information

Cíty of Waltham, Massøchusetts Comprehersiae Aflnual Eifløncial Report



Achral and
Encumbrances Encumbrances Va¡iance
and Continuing and Continuing Positive/
Appropriations App¡opriations (Negative)

1,597,18s (18,31s)

7,720,738

L723,585 144OU

10,444,323 7M,Ay

785,586,662 6,473,413 192000,075

4,M6,8s9 (6,413,413) (2'366,ss4\ 8,572,s77

3,794,936 (552,12s)
(7,1.46,s0e)

(,4989,347) (18e,893)

(6,413,473) (t3st89s) 8,322,678

33,987þ30 33,987,630 33,987,630

$ 35,045,148 $ 27,574,277 6 28,6t:1,,735 $ 8,322.,618

City ol Wøltham, Møssøchus etts Comptehensioe Annual EinancîøI Report



COMMUNITY PRESERVATION FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED ]UNE 30 2013

REVENUES
ComnruniÇpreservationsurcharges.............. $ - $ 2,200,000 $ - $ 2,200,000
Intergovemmental .................. - 642,082 - 642,082
Penalties and inte¡est on taxes

- 37,000

TOTALREVENUES - 2,879,082 2,879,082

EXPENDITURES
Pe¡sonnel....,...

Prior Year
Encumbrances

and Continuing Original
Appropriations Budget

37,323
15800
1,000

2,M9,976 54,123

Supplernental
Appropriations
and Transfers

Final
Budget

37,323
16,O77

1,000

7,618,09t 4,067,850

1.,6t8,091 4,122,190

217
Equipment/Unusual......,.,.......
Capital Improvement.......... ... 2,M9,759

TOTAL EXPENDITURES...................

EXCESS (DEFICIENCÐ OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES.......,.,.

FTJND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR,.......

FLIND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR........,..,.....

See notes to required supplementary information

(2,M9,976)

18,93t,857

$ 1O481,881

2,824,959

t8,93t,857

g 27,756,816

(1,61&091)

t8,93t,857

fi 17,313,766

(1,243,t08\

78,93t,857

$ 17,688,749

Citg of Walthanç M øs s a chusetts Con rprehørsizte AnnuøI Fit tøttci øI Rep ott



Actual and
Encumbrances Encumbrances Variance
and Continuing and Continuing Positive/
Approp¡iatioru App¡op.iations (Negative)

2,469,1,22 $
ø2,082

5,774
39,386

3,156,364

33,280

-$ 2A69,12. fi 269,122

644082
5,774 5,774

39,386 2,386

3,756,3& 277,282

- 33280
74,554 736 1,4,690

430 - 430
7,67L,859 2,395,997 4,067,850

1,720,123 2,396,127 4,176,250

1.,436,241 Q,396,r2n (9s9,886) 283,222

78,93t,857 18,931.,857 78,937,857

g 20,368,098 fi t6,535,730 g 17,977,971 $ 283,'r""

City of Waltham, Massøchusetts Comptehensiae Arnual FitnnciøI Rep ort



PENSION PLAN SCHEDULES

The following schedules provide information related to the System as a whole, for which the City is one
participating employer:

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS (SYSTEM)

Actuarial
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded

UAAL as a

Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (A) (B) (B-A) (A/B) (c) ((B-A)/c)

01,/01,/13 g 165,040,789 g 324,109,193 g 159,068,404 50.9% g 50,696,522 313.8%

01/01/11 1.68,017,364 301,,356,797 133,339,433 55.9% 49,493,764 275.0%

01/01/10 1.60,564,692 279,109,340 118,543,649 57.5% 47,M3,395 249.9y"

01/01/08 161,934,253 251,353,999 89,419,635 64.4%o 45,15'1,147 199.0y"

01,/01,/06 136,645,912 267,164,850 130,518,939 51.1% 43,904,722 299.0%

01/01/05 132,657,305 252,142,493 119,485,199 52.6% 42,292,495 282.6%

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS (SYSTEM)

Annually
Required Percentage of

Year Ended Contributions ARC
December 31 (ARCì Contributed (%)

2007 fi 12,695,230 100

2008 13,192,164 100

2009 13,752,967 100

201,0 14,106,542 100

2011 14,133,617 100

2012 14,289,296 100

The following schedule provides information related to the CiVs portion of the System's ARC:

CITY SHARE OF SYSTEM ARC

Percentage of City ARC
ARC as a Percentage ofFiscal Year

Ended ARC Contributed (%) Svstem ARC (%)

2008 fi 12,412,792 100

2009 12,878,477 100

2010 13,427,327 100

2011 13,720,343 100

2012 13,738,814 100

2013 73,857,860 100

97.8%

97.6%

97.6To

97.3%

97.2%

97.0%

Comprehensioe Annual EinanciøI ReportCity of WøIthøm, Massøchusetts 95



OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS SCHEDULES

The following schedules provide information related to the Cit¡/s other postemployment benefits plan:

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(A)

Actuarial
Accrued

Liability (AAL)
Projected Unit

Credit
(B)

Unfunded

AAL
(UAAL)

(B-A)

Funded

Ratio

(A/B)

0%

o%

0%

Covered

Payroll
(c)

g 92,752,496

74,89'1,,604

81.,699,545

UAAL as a

Percentage

of Covered
Payroll

((B-A)/c)

7957o

902%

633%

657,972,850

675,785,889

517,127,027

657,972,950

675,785,889

517,127,027

06/30/12
07 /01/0e
07 /01,/06
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information For the Fiscal Year Ended fune 30, 2013

NOTE A - BUDGETARY - GAAP RECONCILIATION

For budgetary financial reporting purposes, the Uniform Massachusetts Accounting System basis of accounting
(established by the Commonwealth) is followed, which differs from the GAAP basis of accounting. A
reconciliation of budgetary-basis to GAAP-basis results for the general fund and community preservation fund
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, is presented below:

GenerølEund

Budgetary basis as reported on the schedule of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balance - budget and actual...........

Adjustrnents
Net change in recording 60-day receipts
Net change in recording tax refunds payable. .... .. ... ....
Net change in recording other revenues.
To record MTRS on-behalf payments. . .. . .

To allocate indirect costs to functional line items. . .. .... ..

Other
Financing

Expenditures Sources (Uses)

$ 192,000,075 fi Q,989,341)

Revenues

$ 189,633,52',1.

(187,572)

Q33,0Ø)
171.,205

1.6,448,51.6

(3,71.4,630)

16,448,516

(3,71.4,630)

(6,413,413)

198,320,il8

To record encumbrances and continuing appropriations. ..... . ..... ... . .

Subtotal 205,832,606

Reclassifications
To reclassify the stabilization fund to the general fund..................
To reclassify the other postemployment benefit fund to the general fund. . ..

GAAP basis as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances. . .. . . . .

C ommunity Pr e s ero øti on E und

(6,703,971)

3,1.56

(13,828) (997,11,6) 7,013,0M

fi 205,821.,9U $ 197,323,432 $ 309,033

Revenues Expenditures

4,116,250

146,109
(2,396,127)

'1,,866,231,

Budgetary basis as reported on the schedule of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balance - budget and actual.. fi 3,156,364 $

Adjustments
Net change in recording revenues.... .. 646,562
Net change in recording other expenditures.......
To record encurrrbrances and continuing appropriatiorìs. . .... . . . . . . . .

GAAP basis as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in furrd balances. g 3,802,926
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Combining Statements
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Narrative

Speciøl Reaenue Eunds

Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects. The
special revenue funds are grouped into the following categories:

Other Special Retsenue Fund - This fund is used to account for receipts reserved for appropriation.

City Federal Grants - This fund is used to account for programs specifically financed by federal grants which are
designated for specific programs.

School Federøl Grants - This fund is used to account for the educational programs specifically financed by federal
grants which are designated for specific programs.

City Støte Grønts Fund - This fund is used to account for programs specifically financed by state grants which are
designated for specific programs.

School State Grønts Fund - This fund is used to account for the educational programs specifically financed by state
grants which are designated for specific programs.

Insurance Recoaery Fund - This fund is used to account for insurance reimbursements.

Gifts Fund - This fund is used to account for gifts which have been accepted by the City to be used for the purpose
specified by the donor.

Sale of Lots/Grøaes Fund - This fund is used to account for the proceeds from the sale of cemetery lots and graves
for cemetery improvements.

Reuenue Reserue Fund - This fund is used to account for school receipts reserved for appropriation.

School Lunch Fund - This fund is used to account for all cafeteria activities and is funded by user charges, federal
and state grants and commodities received.

Pørking Meters Fund - This fund is used to account for parking meter and off-street parking lot proceeds.

UDAG Nwø Biomedical Fund - This fund is used to account for special programs under community development
block grant guidelines.

Vocational School Reserue Fund - This fund is used to account for the proceeds from outside services provided by
vocational sfudents.

Public Sofrt7 - This fund is used to account for drug forfeiture and other law enforcement activities.

Trffic Impact Fund - This fund is used to account for traffic improvements required by special permit.

Police and Fire Detail Fund - This fund is used to account for police and fire detail activities.
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Capitøl Projects Eunds

Capital projects funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other
capital assets. Capital projects funds exclude those types of capital-related outflows financed by proprietary
funds or for assets that will be held in trust for individuals, private organizations, or other governments. The
capital projects funds are grouped into the following categories:

School Capitøl Projects - This fund is used to account for the construction and renovation to the Cit¡/s Schools.
These projects will be funded through the issuance of long-term bonds and notes and other available funds.

PermønentEunds

Permanent funds are used to account for and report resources that are restricted to the extent that only earnings,
and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the governmenls programs and benefit the government
or its citizenry. The permanent funds are grouped into the following categories:

Cemetery Trust Funds - This fund is used to account for various contributions and activities associated with
maintenance of the City's cemeteries.

Other Permanent Funds - This fund is used to account for various contributions associated with governmental
progfams.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FTJNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

2013

Soeciøl Reoørue Eurtls

Other
Special
Revenue

City
Federal
Grmts

School
Federal
Grmts

City
State Grmts

School
State Grmts

$ 9,s9s

Insumce
Recovery Gifts

79,600 I 704,575

$ 79,600 I 704,575

ASSETS

Restricted cash and cash equivaìents................... $
Restricted investments
Receivables, net of mcollectibles:

3,380,817 $ 4,1,44 $ 9,593 $- $ 177,1 $

Departmentalandother..............,., 499

Intergovemental.......................

TOTALASSETS... S 3,381,316

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILTTIES:

Wmants payable ................. $
Accrued payroll.. .

Defened revenue.

Due to ol-tìer ftmds

g 28,411 $ 27,863 $

239,905

268,316 27,863

- 349,857

$ 4,7M $ U9,857 $ 1n,771

15,788 $ -
1,,032

499

652 $ -$ 8,902

Short-tem notes payable......................

TOTAL L]ABILIT]ES 17,319 652 - 8,902

FUND BALANCES:
Nonspmdable.....

3,363,997 4,1-M 81,541 749,308 8,947 79,600 695,673

Umssigned.........

TOTAL FUND BALANCES. ... . .. . . .. . 3,363,997 4,144 87,541. 149,308 8,941. 79,600 695,673

TOTALLIABILITTESANDFUNDBAI-ANCES...., $ 3,38731.6 g L744 $ 349,857 $ 1n,177 $ 9,593 g 79,600 $ 7M,575
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Specíal Rwue Eunils

Væational
Saleof Revenue School Paking UDAGNova School

l¡ts/Glaffi Resewe Lmch Meteß Bionedical Resene

fi 7þ10þ12 g 689,408 $ 509,150 g 7,7J4,09r $ E9,794 $ -

- 419,336

1.,370,372$ 7,708,744 $ 509,150 I7,7U,0979 89,194 $ -

- t 
7,430- $ 21,0s1 

' 
^,122 

$ - $ 4,066

-62

- 7,430 27,051 4,470 - 4,128

7,570,372 7,\01,,314 ß8,099 '1,729,621 89,194

-

L,3!0,312 L,7A\374 M,099 I,729,621 89.,194 (41728)

$___f¡&99_ s__J;108¿4_ $____!!219!_ sJ¿vM_ $_____8e,1e!_ $_____________:_
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NONMA'OR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

IUNE 30,2013

Police md
Fire Detail

Restrictedcashmdcashequivalents $ 1,065,148 S 2,129,754 $ -$11,876,9575 1,497,724

Restricted investmmts
Receivables, net of mcollectibles:

Depiltmental md other.................

Public
Safety

Ttafhc
lmpact
Fmd

Svecial Reaøue Êunìls

Capitøl
PÍoiects

School Capital
Projects

73,260

Sub-totalASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Warants payable $ 45,509 $ -
Acmed payroll...
Defened revenue
Due to other fu¡ds
Short-term notes payable................

TOTAL LTABILITIES

380,219

$-
53,034

380,2r9

438,873

872,126

380,778

$ 159,878 $

58,330

380,778

678,84

7,277,766

TOTAL ASSETS.. $ 1,065,148 g 2,723,754 g 380,279 g 13,026,868 g 7,497,724

FUND BALANCES:
Norupendable.....

45,509 13,260

- t2,245,137 1,484,4U

:_ (497,90n ø96,03s]-

(497,90n 17,749,102 1.,M,464

s 380,21.9 g 73,026,868 g r,497,724

Restricted........... 1,079,639

Unassigned........
2,72i,7il

TOTAL FUND 84L4NCES............ 1,019,639 2,723,754

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BAI-ANCES ........ $ 1,06s,1418 S 2,723,7s4

City of Walthøm, Mßs øchßetts r.03 Compreh øsire Atmr al Einancial RepoÌt



Petmatmt Eunds

Othe¡
Pmmmt

Fmds SuÞtotal

330,515 g t:79,1O4$ 509,679 $ 13,884,300

Lß9,477 307,515 1,,797,386 '1,797,386

- 380,7t8

---------------- --------------:-

s ___Jß20386_ t ___486,619_ S ____2,307,005_ $ ___ r6,837þe7_

- $ 773,738

- 58,330

- 678,840

7,798,773 249,185 2,047,A98 2,047,898
27,673 237,434 259,t07 L3,988,708

L,820,386 ß6,679 2,307,005 75,5N,571

$ 1,820,386 6 ß6,619 fi 2,307,005 $ 76,837,597

City of WøIthm, Massøchusetts Comprehmfue Anmal Fimrciøl Repo¡t



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED ruNE 30, 2013

Sneciøl Røøne Êtuils

Other
Spcial
Revenue

Cultureand ræreation.................... 789,520

Commun-ity developmen[.............,...

NET CIIANGE IN zuND BALANCES...

ruND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.........- ...

City
Fede¡al

Grants

School

Fede¡al

Gran[s
City School Insurance

State Grants Stabe Grants Ræovery
REVENUES

Chargæforsewicæ $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Intergovemental 58,274 30,767 2.442,314 398,239 194,050

Fin€ and forfeitur$
Departnental and othe¡.................... 375,557 - 98,774
Contributiore....... 480,106 101,841

Inv6hnent income

TOTAL REVENUES

22

398,261, 194,050 98,174

EXPENDITURES

Cunenh
General goverment.. ............ ..... .... . 59,956 "15,817

Public safety........ - ,343 - g56,299

Éducation.,.......... 1,075 - 3,730,603 - 2j3,449
Public works........

913,937 30,767 2442.374

3,280

"1,n8 8,900

337 45,505

19,061 2,000

- 1,4,047

- 7,688

- 24,777

Health and human service... y2,265 - 73,002

-16
4000

TOTAL 8XPENDrTURES.....,............ 342,81.6 26,623 3,730,603 M9,734 2i3,M9 21,,176 702,257

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

owR (uNDrR) EXTENDITURES.... .... 577,721 4,1y_ (688,289) (s0,873) (39,39) 76,98 (316)

OTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)

Transfu¡s in.....,....
Issuoce of bonds od note...........-...-
Sale ofcapital assets.......,............... 52,748
Transfers out........ (50,000)

TOTAL OTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USFq.... 2,748

(30,306)

(688,289) (s0873) (39,399)

(30,306)

46,692

32,908

(316)

695,9892790,728 - 769,830 200,181

¡'IJNDBALANCESATÌNDOFYEAR53,363,WS4,1.44$81,541 $149,308$8,%1 979,600í69s,673

C¡t! of Wflltlntn, Møssachusetts C ø ilprchø ßia e Atrrwt FitwÊit, Rep ort



Steci¡l Røqw lurils

Vocational
Saleof Rèvenue School Parking IJDAGNova Schooi

I¡ts/Grays Ræroe Luch Meþrs Biomedical Rserve

w,No 1942,060 1,722,54.0 616,839 222 69,726

n,9Q0 (s4$sn ú4s,884) 160,530 Ð2 V68)

gity oJ Wølthun, M r s s rchusetts Cønpchereive tumwl Êinmcial Rep sú



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCFS

¡OR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED ruNE 30, 2013

Stecial Røøttæ Euttils

Public
Sa fety

REVENUES

Chargesforsenicæ ............,$ - $ - $ 2,212949
Interßovermental
Finc md 1orfeihrr6...................,...
Deparhnental and othe¡.................... 397,217 415,030

Contributions.......
Invstment income 2,U0 1,658

TOTAL REVENUES 353,557 476,688 2,212,949

EXPENDITURES

Cwent
Gener¿l govement,.........,..,.,.......
Public safety........ 226,89 - 2,936,388
Education........,...
Public works....,...
Health æd human sewicæ........,......
Culture md rseation..,............,.,...

Tralßc
Impact
Fund

Police and

Fire Detail SutFtotal

Cflfitflt
Proiects

School Capital
Proi(ts

6 3,036,675

5,673,464

703,240

2,250,378

623,541

4,735

77,637,913

86,45'l

2988,n1.
7,79L462

21,06't

779,308

200504

498,932

77,769,489

$

EXCESS (DEFICIENCÐ OF REVENUES

ovER (UNDER) EXPENDIIURES..... 166,652 402,182 (723,439) (737,576'

Community deveIopment............,....

TOTAL EXPENDITIJRES.............,....

74,506

226,89 14,506 L336,388

289,428

289,428

(289,428)

7,028,n5

7,028,n5

739,347

745,777

$ 1.,4U,464

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfere in......... 8,100
Issuance of bonds and notæ..............
Saleofcapitalasseb....................... - 52,748
Transfers out........ - (30306)

TOTALOTHERFINANCTNGSOURCES(USF9...................., - (19,4s8)

NE-r CHANGE rN FUND BALANCES 766,652 402,782 (723,439) (7s7,O3/.r'

FUND BALANCES .AT DEGINNING OF YXAR.. ,.. ...... ... . 852987 "1,721,572 (368,468) 17,906,-ts6

FIJNDBALANCESATENDOFYEAR 6 7,079,639 $ 2,7n,7s4 g (491,nDû 77,749,702

City of Wßlttøn, Mtssßcltßetts CØ,tprelwioe Atutufll Firßrrciøl Report



Other
Cemetery Pemarent

TrustFunds Funds

-$ -$

28.6a; 
-- 

2s,60; 'ity,:rä
(10280) (e43) (17,22) (ó,488)

1ß,520 (%3) 173m 77,&9,29Q

-' z12s- 2'12s- 
'#:;i_ &083,890

4,628 - 4,628 25,689'- szs u* ,?""tä

______________:_ ________________ 498,932

4,628 L65O 7,2t8 74066,795

73,6y) (es93) 10,09e (476,905)

7,846,694 490,272 2,296,906 74,948,159

$ 1,820386 $ 486,ó19 I 2,307,00s i !5,il0,577

Cíty oÍ W tlthLfl + Ma s s rchrê etts Cwpehensìo e Afr twl EiurciøL Rep o¡t



This page left intentionally blank.

City of WøIthøm, Møssøchusetts 109 Comprehensiae AnnuølFinøncialReport



Private Purpose Trust Funds

Narrative

The private purpose trust fund is used to account for trust arrangements, other than those properly reported in
the permanent fund, under which principal and investment income exclusively benefits individuals, private
organizations, or other governments.

Scholarship Trust Fund - This fund is used to account for scholarships held by the City to benefit individuals.

Housing Trust Fund - This fund is used to account for the Cit¡/s rental subsidy program.
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PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

luNE 30,2013

Scholarship Housing
TrustFunds TrustFunds Total

ASSETS
Cashandcashequivalents............. ....... $ Z9B,B9O g 190,859 g b89,749
Investments:

U.S. Treasuries and agencres...... 2,349,465 - 2,343A65

Total assets.. 2,742,955 1.90,859 2,999,274

NETPOSruION
Heldintrustforotherpurposes..............g2,742ß559 190,85992,933,214
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PRTVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS
COMBIMNG STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NETPOSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED TUNE 30,2013

Scholarship
Trust Funds

Housing
Trust Funds Total

ADDITIONS
Contributions:

Private donations. . .. .

Net investment income:
Interest. . .. . .. .

TOTAL ADDITIONS........

DEDUCTIONS
Educational scholarships & awards. . .. .

Housing subsidies.

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS.................

CHANGE IN NET POSITION. . ..

NET POSITIONAT BEGINNING OF YEAR..........

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR.....

115,869 $

9,893

-$

456

115,869

10,349

125,762 126,218

1,49,975

102,850

149,975

102,850

149,975

(24,213)

2,766,569

g 2,742,355

(102,394)

293,253

$ 190,859

(126,604

3,059,821

$ 2,933,214

102,850 252,825

City of Wølthøm, Massøchusetts 712 C omptehensiz¡ e Attnuøl E inønci al Rep ort



Agency Funds

Narrative

The agency fund is a fiduciary fund used to account for assets held in a custodial capacity. The City uses this
fund to account for confiscated police property and securiÐ¡ deposits.
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AGENCY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED IUNE 30,2013

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents.....

LIABILITIES
Warrants payable......
Other liabilities....
Liabilities due depositors.......

TOTAL LIABILITIES...............

883,094 fi 2,213,382 fi (2,268,615)fi 827,86]

Balance at

Iluly'1.,2012

4,125

5,313
873,656

Additions Deletions

Balance at

fune 30, 2013

7,063

6,317
814,481,

7,063

6,317
L,554,022

(4,12s)

(5,313)
('t,613,197)

$ 883,094 $ '1,567,402 $ (1,622,635) fi gZZ,gOt

City of Waltham, Møssachusetts 1'1.4 Comprehensia e Annual Einancial Rep oú
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Statistical Section

Veterans Memorial Athletic Complex - George H. Maynard Field House

City of WøIthøm, Møssachusetts 116 Comprehensiae AnnuøIEinønciølReport



Støtisticøl Section

This part of the City of Waltham's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the Cit¡/s overall financial health.

Financial Trends (pages 118 - 122)

These schedules contain trend informntion to help the reøder understand hun the City's financial perþrmance and well-being
haue changed oaer time.

Revenue Capacity (pages 123 - 125)

These schedules contain informøtion to help the reader assess the City's most significant local reoenue sourcq the property
tøx.

Debt Capacity (pages126 - 128)

These schedules contain information to help the reader øssess the ffirdøbility of the City's current leaels of outstønding debt
and the City's ability to issue additionøl debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information (pages 129 - 130)

These schedules ffir demogrøphic and economic ind:icøtors to help the reøder understand the enaironment within which the
City's financial øctiaities take pløce.

Operating Information (pages 131 - 133)

These schedules contain sensice and infrøstructure dqta. to help the reader understand how the informøtion in the City's
finøncial report reløtes to the seruices the City proaides nnd the actiaities it perþrms.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual
financial reports for the relevant year.
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City of Waltham, Massachusetts
Net Position By Component

Last Ten Fiscal Yem

Fiscal Year

2006 2008 2010 2013

82,314,5425 724,736,372$ 7s2,292,5r2 $ 151,7115849 767,046,725 $ 166,859,10s81,6s,360,2455 169,557,297$ 1.67,006,050$ 165,s12,7127,675,703 8,66?"087 6,684,687 6,772,208 8,755,42 8,s67,296 7,547,477 s0,065,242 40,566,045 46,28243650,6U,886 M,046,989 48,221,,543 54,748,751. 38,8s6,s95 22,706,711 \2459,498 (10,932,572\ (35,115,909) (+g,Ogg,stat

Business-type activities

Primary govemmt

2004 2007 2009 2011.

Govemmental activities
Net investment in capital assets......................... $
Restricted..... .. . .. .

Un¡estricted.......

City ot Watlhffi , ltæs achßefrs Compføhens¡ve Annual Finilcial Repoñ



City of Walthm, Mæsachu6etts
Chmges in Position
I:sf Ten Fiscel Yeârs

Fisal Yea¡

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Expenses

Governmen tal activities:
Gene¡al govement $ 12,444,145 S 'l-1,297,905 $ 77,En,276 $ 10,808p07 $
Public safety. 47,995,707 42,66A,æ7 46,737,79 49,62,433
Educarion.....,....,.... a2,632,674 79,374823 89,112,944 95,343,997
Publicworks.......... 73,392,563 14,239,159 74,5423U 75,607,027
Comunity deveìopment........,.............,.... . ....,. 4,862þM 3,92,508 5,313,135 4,92,780
Health md huma æruicæ. .. . 'r,W2,123 2,0U,853 2,790,954 2,373,030
Cultu¡ead e¡earion.....,.,...,............. 5,X3,371 5,22a,564 4,254,872 4,227,546
InteEt 2,211,900 2,8U,943 3,236,060 L7O93A5

72,828,2E7 5 12,936,686

57,670,697 56,745,79
709,656,579 773,953,264

77,408,8'19 78303,6M
5,796,4t9 1810,281
2,777,555 2,696,7U
4,705,M8 4,230,W
2596363 2,448,936

Total govement actiùtie expeß .- 765,4U,327 161,639,386 777,358,7M 785,643,905 273,380,095 216,526,391

Business-type activities:
Sewe¡.,..,..,..,..,...... .. 71,6n,145

7,868,940
77,790,299 '11,965,061 13,m,749 74,657,691 75,572,U3
8,550968 9393,E20 10,277,450 70.0n,s96 77,798,348Water.,........, ...,

Veleræ Memorial Rinl

Totaì busin6s-type activihe expeß..,.

Pubtc works chùgs for ærvics

19,560,725 20,U7,267 27,692,059 24342,229 25,754,79'1 27,745,270

TotalpriûÉrygovementexpere. $ 784,9f4,452$ 181,980,6535 794,050,763$ 209,986,7Uç 2j8,5U,886$ 243,6n,667

Progru Revenues
Governmenlal activities:

Generalgovementchdq6forærvic6. $ 3,3U,744$' 3,987,652 $ 5,558,8445 4,646,777$ 5,228,939 $ 1163,594
Public Safety chdg6 fo¡ æryics 2736,268
Education chdgs for ærvics , 2,U8,073

2,133,94'l
2,272,&9 2,747,252

57,709 38¿803
2,834,459 2,967,479

762,640

2,æ7,635
3,700)s4

475,032
7,723,028

2,291,M9 2,ßa,E23 2,552,702

975,061
7,674,257Other cheg6 for ærvic6....,. .,..

Operahng grdts ild contribütioro.
C¿pital grdb dd contributioN.

Total Âoveme¡t activitis progrm revenùs... ,..,.,,....

Business-type activities:
Sewer chdg€ for æryics. .. ...,.,..,......,
W¿ter chdg6 for ærvic6.,.,,...,..,.,..,.,..
Vete¡¿re Memorial Rink chùA6 for reryìc6., .,,.,...

1,380J04 1,,41.6363 1,459,806
25,7U,253 26,985,474 28,774,027
79,n0,608 37,578,071 10,409,727

54316ß30 68,437,859 51,622,X2

622,572
7,570,577

30,656,882 37,Ma,318 33,649,763

6,498,738 24,88Á,028 1,915,581

49,208,856 69,i24,nA 49,424,787

11,481059
9,072,704

11,850,305
8,880,773

17,9æ,477
9,373,013

277,761

13,764,259
10,456,605

345,096

76,377,578
12ß53,427

357,698

t4,557,425
ß,a69,955

355,1.96

Op€ra ting qran ts ild contri bu bioro. . . .

Capitaì grants and contriUu¡ons,....,..,.

- 

27o,ooo ¿ 247,500

Total büsin6etype activiti6 progrm revenuG 20,557,763 20,730A78 21,544,597 24,835,960 29,0-16,703 26,030,076

Totalprimarygovementprogrmrevenu6 $ 74,874,5935 89,-162,3375 73,767,4935 74,M4,8765 98,M7,481 5 75,454,863

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Gov€mentâIactivitiG..,.....,......,.......,......,..,..,....$ (171,717,49n6 e3,207,527)g (120,276,934\S (736,435,M9\$ (138,596,M9t S (162808,858)

Büsins-typ€ activiti$ 97,638 389,211 (747A681 4æ,731 0,715,194\

rotar primùy ßovement net qpeM....... $__!10,.U9,8!Z $ ____-.]P¿q1!¡.lq S ___!2014A92L$ ____13'241,})SLS ____@lu,þ3L5 _-__!63924,9þ?)

General Revenues and other Chúges ir Net Position
Govermental activities:

Real estate ad personal property taxes,
net of tax refmds payable $

Motor vehicle and other qciæ 1ax6.,......,.... . ... .

Hotel/motel td.....,
Colmuity præruation ta.,......,.......,.......
Meals t¿x....,...,.,,.,.
Pen¿lti6 dd interGt on ta6..,.............
Payments in lieu of tax6..,.,..,...,..,.,..,...
Grants and contributions not restricted to

106,437,299 $ 109,071,284 g

5,827,1M 6474,380
1494,529 7,577,119

711,968,375 S

6,405,7
7,791,277
7,835,077

4M,635
9s301

11,050,883
2,U6,W

7'15,203,646 $
628,774
7,983,506
2126,762

u9,572
33,200

73,752,446

3,359,676

73,611,,256
2,265352

77,8l1,81,2
976,971

717,562447 S 728,225,929

6,585,465 6,039,430

47n,556 7,976,727

2275,987 2,088,829

&9,873 440,482

9,600 45,8U

sp<ific progrm..,.

577,752
43,113

10,350,515
971þn

457,007
41000

70,407226
7,726,423Uùstricled invetnent income..,..,.,.....

Cain on sale of capital ææts..,...,,......,..,..,....,...
Træfeß, net

Total govmentdl activitiG..,.,.,,...,..,...

Büsiness-type activities:
UnÆtricted inv6tment income.,...........
Træfeß, net.

725,629,929 730375,U3 736,296,769 142,472,850 744ßn,$6 751,575,954

20,290 67,438 75,456 73,489 73,764 ',154J01

- 

4O,Eæ loo,ooo 59,052

Total businætype activitiG .... 20,290 102376 775A56 732,547 73,764 14,507

Totalpima¡ygovement....,........,......... î 125,650,279 ç 730A7A,279 5 136,472,225 ç 142,605,391 5 7M,957,300 S 157,730,455

Chmges in Net Position
Govemntalac[vitis. ... ....,....,...............,..,.... $ 74,512A32 î 37,708,376 $ 16,019,835 S 6,037,807 $ 6,287,087 5 (77,2i2,9U)
Businætype activiti6 ... 1,0-17,E28 497587 27,988 626,272 3,E35,676 (960,6E3\

Total primary govement..............,....,.......... . $ lsÆ30,360 5 _____g_þ9,x3.-5 ____1Í,M7ß23 S _______9,6øPL5 __19Aþ163_$ _____t2,1%þL
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Fi*al Yea

2010 2077 201,2 2073

5 72s48,346 S 12,803,207 $

57363,3s8 56,n4,5q
112,79,498 n7,768,957
17,436,688 78,582,1U
5,034,970 t4ót838
2,818,957 2,817,765
5,028,087 5,655,542
3,054,071 2523,696

2t6,0U,309 221,789,729

17385,085 16,806,067
71,129,805 17,437,M9

384,013 402,3M

28,898,903 28,639,420

74,029,778 78,222,759
10,089,418 73,175,507

379,428 387,936

_ 7370,700

24,498,564 33,750,296

58"584 40,938
(7,944,8701 776,754

Q,886,226\ 757,092

77,387,947 77382,7n
77,796,257 17,95,289

397,385 457,608

29,575,5n 29,835,074

15/854,586 79,5A2,834
71,,864,008 74,A75,449

39a,769 385,832
33,773 724,887

28,150þ36 Up68p96

75,000 125,405

75,000 725,405

72,839,887 $
54ß92,255

725,803,368
17,620,280
3,v27,262
4,M3,942
6,079,224
2,631,033

227,7 ,257

14,437,751

s6396,753
727,632730
79,707,437
4,M2,802
4332,865
6ß27,378
2.581,037

234,852,093

s ____2M,983212_$ ____250,429;t49_$ ____257 346ß28 S ____264,687 )67_

$ 1,969,326 $ 3,934,076 s 2,450,92i S 4,225,256
3,M3,64 3,493,485 4,07130"t 3,970,08
3,908,483 4,567,355 7,4U,279 't,2-t7,700

666,730 714,00A 333,956 448,072
1,727,146 7,67a380 7,757353 2105,9t6

33,503,809 37,677þs7 33,2j255-t 33,0M,5s3
2,246,744 (7,6U,833) (24M,439\ Za2O,'119

47,459,902 50,313,828 40,875,924 47,m,149

$ ___-J1,es\A 6_5 _____æAe;ra_6 _____69M,460 5 _____82140]4s_

$ (168,624,40n 6 $71,47s,e01]. ç (186,89s32n $ (182080,e44)
(4,400,3391 4,510,A76 0,425,M1\ 5,733,922

5 073,024,746\ $ (166,965,025\ $ (188,320¡68) S ,18r,947,0221

$ 132055J85 5 144,687,557 S 747,941,835 $ 7s3,2720n
6,013,240 6,2i3,752 6,372,n6 6,650,738
1,974,863 2,665,7M 3,067,233 3,298,377
2,277,436 2,379,559 23!n,595 2,475,E78

- 862,461 7,12a,180 7,767þ24
510.939 487,7U 578,982 70L090
33,586 46,350 53,905 54,812

9379,430 8,357,786 9,747,352 8,835,809
388,740 277,404 724,628 131838

- 52,744
7,944,870 (116,154) (75,000) (1 ,40s\

159,458"509 765,814347 770,667,486 776Ã20,320

s 757,572,283 5 76s,9n,439 ç 770,742486 î -176,645,72s

$ (91618e8) $ (813,08ó) 6 (76,227,U7) S (70,s60,624)
(6,286,565\ 4,329,553 (1.350,041) 5,259327

s ___çþAs24þ3Lç _____J,s1þ,467 S _____çZ,sn 88A_5 ______þ301,2Ð_

CIly ol Wþlham, nßachßerc Comry./Þßivè Annud Flnùclal Rêpod



City of Walthanç Massachusetts
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Yem

Fiscal Year

2077

General Fund
Reserved.....................................$ 8,578,650 $ 1.1,538,490$ 13,343,295$ 10,497,290 $ 10,889,750$ g,203,g72 $ 10,55&086$ -$
unreserved...... 20,98r,827 1&0s9,088 78,9s7,797 2r,6zz,g8g r7,37s,054 L6,g}r,z0s rg,g27,626
Norupendable..
Restricted........
Committed......
Assigned......... _ 6,gs2,zg6
Unassigned......

Totalgenera]tund............................9__n,s60g!_g____29Wþ73_$__2,2%,092_$__2,16s,673_g__2spc/.ßc4_g 2s,s}s,6z7 $ 23,s3s/12 g 2s,37,s69 6

-$

All Othe¡ Governmental Funds
Reserved..................................... $ 7,506,3M S

Unreserved reported in:
specialrevenuefunds............... 19,805,905 17,596,837 78,455,420 22,765,402 24,975,175 24,272,725 23,780,763
capitalproiectstunds........,...... (57,967,099) (58,937,1,4n p8,767,s94 Q.,2s4,426) 6,907,737 34s,087 (1.,760,704
Pe¡runent funds 35¿555 297,743 320,547 378,782 953,057 340,878 332,26r

Norupendable.. _ I,797,623
Restricted........ _ 2g,267,679
Unassigned......

Totalallothergovemmentalfu¡rds......Û __@29þ22iLg ____@,518202L9 ___@,327r21L9 __2,9%,e7!_$ __zz,9ss,s72_$ __%Z!þsz_g __4;L22,sn_$ _A;LrsZts_$

Noú¿ : The City implerrented GASB 54 in fiscal year 201.1; fund balances prior to fiscal year 201.1rhave been reported in the pre{ASB 54 format.

r,529,871 $ 7,664,719 $ 7,697,n9 $ 7,779,969 $ 1.,757,907 g 1,,770,206 $ -$

735,799
3,798,2U

850,777

30,818,389

35,003,243

2,0u,590
32,807,347

(963,26n

33,878,670

8,132,094
4,8M,274
1,677,650

29,796,820

$ 43,870,778

$-

2,047,898
38,252737

(543,674]'

Û 39,756,361,

City ol Walaham, Massacrr¿setfs Coñprehens¡ve Annual Financ¡al Report



City of WalthM, M¡ssachüsetts
Changes in Fmd Btlences, Gove@€nt¿l Fuds

L¡st Ten Fisc¡l YeN

FrÍaì Year

2005 2$)6 2û7 2(n8 2010 2011 2012 20132W
Revenues:

Real estate md petsoMl property bxes,
net of tax refúds S

Tdli$.
Motor vchrcle ãd other excis bxes
Cmúity preæruatim b¡..
Holêl/motel Ux ......
Meaìs tar
Chdges for reryices.....
PerElties md interest ø bres
Fæs dd Htals (A)
P¿rmt in lieu of t¿xes, , . ,

1M,199244 S 108,293,675 $ 111,573,03ó S

577,972 5æ,A74 388,786
6,163,756 6,524,925 6,3û,950

7,797,233
7,494,529 7,577,719 1.797.211

114,743,267 g 176,937,707 5
2nþ39 249,A93

s,989,376 6,826,727
2,'t26,162 2,215,987
7,983,506 2,1n,556

342937 436,355
449,572 449,873
501,438 536,n9
33,2@ 9,ffi

4,355,447 4,946,886
544,149 585,032

72,937,457 70,472,597
2,157,758 2,307,776
118,n8 106,883'155,691 2û,074

2,927,7'15 1,979,159

2448,795 3.075.317

Liceæs dd remits
fires dd forfeih¡res
Intergovelmmhl (C)

lssl¡4e of bdds ùd notcs
Pæmiu frm i9slæe of bonds dd notes
Ptædsof rcfúdingbdds ..... ..
PreñiM frm ismce of refundi¡s bonds ......,.. .

726,844,968 $'t36,176,738 $ 743,E66,481 6 746,798,167 $ 152293,133
5@,'178 6A5,462 760,070 645,263 1,203,258

6;t49,014 5,82290É 6,295,833 6,n33n 6,567,957
2088,829 2,217,4 2,319,559 2,386,680 2"469,722
7,976,727 7,974,863 2,665,704 3,ú7,213 3,298,3.17

862,467 1,128,180 1,167,324
M9,206 498,741 496,726 3,244,2û 3,036,615
4q,482 510,939 487,734 518,981 7o2,O9o
450,611 2,032,365 2,036,252
45,834 33,586 46,350 53,Ð5 y,812

4,219,967 2,165,567 4,08L752 2,546,547 4,259,n3
640,202 1,045,306 900,391 845,065 A2A,483

43,8n,085 43,542,464 43,814,54 44,625,732 43,519,?94
3,085,503 7,2'15þ68 1,427,2ú 3,245,342 3,ffi,æ8

98,438 2ß2,4i4 150,294 724,392 710,820
287,259 374,517 &7,367 689,869 652,-141
889,776 350,379 244,587 22A,176 192,533

2,127,931 2.222,469 2,479,952

Depdbmtaldd ot¡er ........
Sp<i¿l assents
Conkibutim. . . .

Investnent i¡cme..,,,
Mi(eu¿@us (B) . ... . .

ToÞl Revenue

Expendihrres:
Cæne¡al govement
Public sfety.
Edu@tion (C)
Public wo¡ks......
Cl]lmmiry develoDmcnl
Health dd hl¡¡]m æruices .

CùÌbul€ ad Kreation
Pm¡on bcnefiß .,,,.
Eñployæ benefits
Statead comtvchdges ... . ..
C¿pi¿al outl¿y .,,,,,
Debt ætrice ....

Priftip¿ì. . . .

Inteæst.....

Total Expendihræs

E¡ces of revenues over (úder) exEndjtues

Other Fifficing Sou¡c6 (Uses)

406,699
571,752

370,2n
43,173

2814,822
522,345

34,350,305

2,434,5M
751ß17
759,47
8 ,76

7,2n,946

158,969,794

9,350,164
26,051,354
6L357,832
70,577,025
4,459,788
't,333,886

8,656,467

26;t59,707
7,449,921

35,364,27'r

3,865,000

2,46a,187

25,635,0û
980,374

428,481

45,000

3,299,548

522,629
59,213,246

2,75,559
191,038

333,040
1,501.818

1,44,595

8,586,286
'26,888,370

6,497,101
10,724,n8

3,438,692
7,44,547
3,44f,7n
9,665,038

25,3U,æ4
1,362,478

44,274,19'l

4,7m,M
3,254,358

270,948,M4

(23,473,502)

l9,885,000

443,797

350,4@
q4,635
405,@
95,æ1

3,535,083

482,12a

84,495,059
4,073,952

121,514

539,7U
2,497,639

2,cnÉA58

36204a
457 ú7

787,474.542 220,978,939 272,080,847 273,573,487 't94,747,346 2ol,O9o,EEO 273,597,053 216,374,447 224,@2.269

4,447,755 8,414,315
28,279,719 30,æ2,856
68,8s6,050 73,644,435
17,9M,'107 10,393,362
4,490,448 3,452,@0
1,525,335 1,5n,637
2896,747 2,856,537

70,776,370 '10,556A42

26,429,630 28,246,033
't,325,343 1,479,642

14,582399 10815,801

25,055,000 5,520,000
3,432,451 3,000.12E

m73E0,n4 189,983,26

't3,518,165 22,æ7,575

10,355,000 1a,470,w
95,134 679.952

8,806,897

30,777,858
75,244,1@

11,582,087

5,786,86
7,569,712

3,O50,634
72,08'1,6n
33,074,839

1438,294
46,058,676

5,270,W
2638A97

236,179,4n

(22,û5,996)

29,633,658

37,364

9,4ú,274
30,867,179
87,547,267

17.424,619

5,96,538
't 

,597,4Æ
3,211,970

12232Æ8
32,072,79

7,556,523

77,598,tu

5,115,000

2,901,722

2@,s73,827

(75,426,475)

5,040,000

526,073

9,0a2,529
31,706,507

$,4n,625
71,414,63
4,1n,061
7,757,057

3,749,487
12,747,673

34,768,726

7,507,037

5,348,63

7,556,538

3,225,84a

207,373,34E

(6,222,468)

35,619

9,929,386
$,n9,4.@
u,383,623
74,344,72A

5,742,353
1,747,973

3,553,2J3
13,152,472

37,191,542
7,560,29

7,t28,638
2.885,832

2't5,339,42A

(1,742,375\

226,587

8,722,040 9,202,807
32,018,623 32,62J,739
76,3'I3,O5a 73,195,6E3
12E89,û5 13,786,096
3,345,Ð3 4,617,505
1,98L768 7,9ûA86
3,879,349 5,326,738

29,490;180 30,3 ,370
35,8L3,2û 35,055,370
7,524,202 1,597,185

6,623,638 9,36,738
2,542,952 2,n2,464

215,155,068 219,952,581

1,2't9,379 4,049,688

13,638,500 8,603,4&
7,413,917 362,212

- 't,675,2@

- 727303
Sa.le of (¿piÞl æts
Transfe6in,,.... 4,74s,419
Træfeßout ,, (4,145,479\
PaFmls to refúded bond esrow agent .. (4,145A'19\

2,û4,2i'r
(2,@4,231)

'l 
,8'1 3,554 1 ,7æ,597

(1,913,5f) 0.759.649\

3 86% 467% 447% 476%

7,903,390
(1,903,390)

2,864,687
(2864,68n

5,377,9û
ß,373,150),

248,365
(364,519t

52,7ß
88,406

(2',1 3,8r 1)

252,L36
(327,L16)

Total other fimcinq sûces (üæs) , ,,, 22'469,955 20'288,197 70'350'134 19,030,900 29,671,022 5,5æ,073 \9a0,429 770,427 74,97?,437 't0,635,538

Debt eryice as a re(mtage of no(apil¿l exDenditures ,

(A) ln fisal ye¿¡ 2012, añoub Prcviousìy reporÞd as fæs md renhls have bæn redisbibuted to cha¡ges for seruices and deparhenÞl and othe¡ revenue
(B) In fisalyear 2012, nisceilaneous ¡evenue was furthet egÌegabed into other ¡evenue categories
(g In fisal yed 2004, the on-behalf paymÐb by the Comonwealth fo¡ teachers p€nsion benefib were reported for the fi¡st time

5n%

d¡y ol W.lhm, fl¡Æhß.b

5 41% 4 85% 4 44%

@mntuñ. Annu.l Flntcl.l Rqú



City of Waltlm, Massachusetts
Assessed Value ild Ä.ctual Value of Tuable Property by Clæsification md Tu Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Yeüs

Ass€ssed md Actual Values and Tu Rates

Fiscal Residential Residential Comercial hdushial
Value

Pe¡sonal
Total Total

Comme¡cial Comercial Direcl
Total
City

v Value Til Rate v

2004
2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2070

2011,

2072
2073

$9.21

$9.89

$10.33

$9 97

$10.5s

$11 30

$72.54

$13 09

$13.35

$13.49

(1)

(1)

(1)

95,429,509,969

çsA87,52s,207

95,943,352,380

$6313,47s259
96,252,987,375

$6,122,890,011

95,795,080,372

$5,635,i69,835
$5,650,931,88s

ç5,697,874,745

97,666,556,M9

91.,550,274,177
g7þ92,360,048

91,904,693,049

$'1,976,938,538

92,008,953,904

92,026,368,766

$2,M5,047,52i
92,024,520,793

92,054,237,833

9503,907,238

9487,970,338

9500,429,864

5556350,782

9522,963,697

$526,M7,477
ç464,727,2U
w0,n5,576
9469,U5,956
M62,439,256

$275,467,674

$285,014010

9280,132,600

9268,794,O20

9256,840,580

s263,237,090

$256,463,760

s277,782,U0
$297,481'600

$577,7M,640

$ 2,M5,937367 926.31

$ 2,323,798,465 927.87

fi 2,j72,922,512 îÐ5.n
9 2,729,837,857 922.97
g 2,756,742,875 92321
s 2,798,226,465 $25.31
g 2,747,559,870 928.67

$ L757,605,939 $30.40
g 2191.,8ø8349 s2327
g 2,834,41s,729 ç37.n

$14 s2

$15.24

97474
$13 89

574.42

$1s 6e

s77.73

978.78

$16.61

$19 56

97,875,M7,330
97,870,723,666

w,376,274,892
99,043,253,110

99,009,724,190

ß,927,716,476
$8,s42,640,722

w392,975,n4
w,42,780,234
w,532,290,474

Total Assessed Value by Classification
F¡scal Year Ended June 30,2012

aRæËdlþl a&mh.rdal Oldúll EPêÉMl Proærty

(1) Revalu a tion year.
Sou¡ce: Assessor's Department, City of Walthm
All property in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts is assessed at 100% of fair cash value.

Note: Chapter 59, Section 21C of the Massachusetts General laws, known as "Proposition 2 1/2", imposes 2 separate limits on the
annual tax levy of the City The primary limitation is that the tax levy cmot exceed2l/2 petcent of the full and fair cæh value.
The secondary limitation is that the tax levy cmot exceed the maximum levy limit for the preceding fiscal year as determined by
the Stabe Commissioner of Revenue by more thm 2 1/2 percent, subjæt to il exception for prolrcrty added to the tax rolls md
for certain substantial valuation increases otler thm æ part of a general revaluation The sæondary limit may be exceeded in my
year by a majorit¡r vote of the votere, however it cmot excæd the primary limitation.

Total Assssed Value by classlflcatlon
Flscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Total Gommercial Value as % of Total Value

44.0%

41 0%

38.0%

35.0%

32.0%

29.0%

26.0%

23.O%

City of Waltham, Massachuseffs 123 Comprehensive Annual FÍnancial Repoft



City of Waltham, Massachusetts
Principal Taxpayers

CurentYear and Nine Years Ago

BCCCProperty LLC

Astra

NSTAR

BP Reservoir Place, LLC

Windsor Village

MMS Lot & MMS Winter StLLC

PD Winter Street Trust

Gardencrest Apartments

ASN-Massachusetts Holding Inc

Longview Place, LLÇ Hope Ave

404 Wym.an St.

Broadway Prospect Hill

830 Winter Steet

DMP RE trLLC

$139,416,500

$95,636,000

w7,249,300

675,969,600

%0,740,700

$sr324oo0

$57,477,600

956,337,300

$56,247,300

$s3,967,700

$s3,414300

$51,465,100

$s0,88¿9oo

v9,352,900

$947,462600

Office Building

Office Building

utiliry

Office Building

Apa¡tûlents

Office Building

Office Building

Apartments

Apaftnents

Apartnents

Office Building

Office Building

Office Building

Office Building

Totals

1

2

J

4

5

6

I

9

L0

11

72

13

14

7.63%

1..12%

702%

0.89%

0.77%

0.70%

0.67%

0.66%

0.66%

0.63%

0.63%

0.60%

0.60%

0.58%

fi128,U6,700

ffi2,149,s00

%5,424,300

$116,021,100

968,768,900

$58,891,400

$ó0,092s00

%2,793,200

$50,916,900

$40,889,900

$27,052,000

1

3

5

2

4

8

5

13

27

7

6

7.65%

105%

0.u%

7.49%

0.88%

0.75%

0.00%

0.77%

0.80%

0.00%

0.65%

0.s2%

0.35%

0.00%

9767,8s1,400 9.74y"

Source: Assessor's Deparhlent, Cþ of Waltham

Massacfiuseffs

2073 200/4

Percentage of
Total Taxable

Assessed
Value

of

Name
Nafure of
Business

Assessed

Valuation Rank

Total Taxable
Assessed Assessed
Valuation Rank Value

City of Waltham, 124

1]..70%

Comprehens¡ve Annual Financial Repoñ



City of Waltham, Massachusetts
Property Tax Levies md Collections

Last Ten Firal Yeæ

Fiscal

Yea¡

Total
Tu Levy

Less

Abatements &
Exemptions

Net
Tu Levy

First Yeu
Net as Vo Current
ofTotal TaxCollections

Percentof Delinquent
Netlevy Tu
Collected Collections

Percent of
Total TotalTu
Tu Collectionsto

Collections NetTuLevy

Outstanding
Delinquent

Taxes

Percent of
Delinquent Tax

to Net
Tu Levy

20M (1) $
2005 $
2006 $
2007 (1) $
2008 $
2009 $
2010 (1) $
201't $
2012 $
2073 $

106,597,742 6
770,522,720 g

772,831,672 6
111760,050 $
119,538,305 $
\29,065,767 $
139,964888 $
145,976,141 fi
150870,993 $
154,887ß38 $

579,050 $
526,233 $
729,197 $
650,4M $
978,877 $
674,763 $

1,264,748 $
1,467,306 $
1-,728,254 $
L,098,748 $

706,018,692
709,996,487
712,102,475
715,709,646

118,679,434
728,391.,004

738,700,740
144,508,835

749,742,739
153,789,090

9946% fi
9952% $
99.35% fi
99M% fi
992i% fi
9948% $
99,70% fi
9899% $
98 8s% $
99.29% S

105,093,822
108,786,675
710,628,939
173,547,290
716,826,578

726,252,280
736,597,479
142,459,955
746,918,672
751.,681,456

706,52ß,993
109,589,482
770,968,367
774,738,173
7t7,777,187
727,6U,593
136,8560s3
143,978,L29
748,272,652
t53,629,770

1.00.48% $
99 63% $
9899% $
9968% $
99.24% $
99.4s% $
98.67% $
99.59% $
99.42y. $
99.90y. $

(s10,301)
407,005

7,734,048

37L,533
902,247
706,477

1,W,087
590,706
870,087
L59,320

99.73% 6 1,435,171 6
98.e0y. fi 802867 fi
98.69.Á 6 339,428 fi
98 e94 fi 7,790,823 S

9849% 5 890,609 $
98.33% $ 1.,43L313 fi
9848% $ 264,574 S

98.58% $ 7,458,773 6
98.51% $ 1,353,980 $
98.63% 5 r,948,314 fi

-0.48%
037%
1.07%
032%
076%
0.55%

1.33%
0.41.%

0 58%

0.10%

Estate Til Lev¡es vs, F¡Ft Year
Last T€n Fiscal YeaF

$150,000,000

$130,000,000

$1 10,000,000

$90,000,000

s70.000.000

aR..¡ Ed.r. ld L.vy aFiÉ Y..r Cutunt f.¡ & bdb¡.

(1) Revaluation yeu
Sou¡ce: Assessor's Depart¡mt city of Walthm

City oÍ Wa¡tlþm, Itassachuselts Comprehensive Annual Finilcial Repon



City of Waltham, Massachusetts
Ratios of Outstanding Debt and General Bonded Debt

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Govemmental Activities Debt

Fiscal
Year

U. S. Census
Populafion

Personal
Income

Equalized
Value

General
Obligation

Bonds
Capital
Leases

Per
Capita

Percentage Percentage
ofPersonal ofEqualized

Income Value

2004
2005

2006
2007

2008
2009
201.0

2011.

2072
2013

2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
20'11.

2072
2013

58,894
59,232

59,556

59,352
60,325
60,236

60 605

60,605
60,632

60,632

5749

$1,011

$7s8
fi979

97,367
$1,368

$1,23s
97,717
91,232
97,247

3.08%
3.93%
2.75%

3.30%
4.53%
4.s3%
4.7'l,o/.

3.72o/.

4.77%
4.58%

0.53%
0.72%

0.49%
0.63%
0.83%
0.837o

0.81-7,

0.747"

0.8-L%

0.87%

$7,437,74+000
97,s23,362,000

97,Øt,764,000
91.,760,786,000

$1,811410,000
$1,819,410,000
$1,811410,000
$1,811410000
$1,819110,000

fi7,6s0,776,000

98,289,720,700

$8,289,720,700

$9,2e,427,800
$9,24,421.,800
û9,934,066,400
fi9,934,066,400
99,272986,700
99,212,986,700
fi9,279,1,82,000

$9,279,782'000

$44,095,000

$s9,86O000
$45,16O000

$s8,11O000
982473,658
$82398,6s8

974,842,720
967,718,482
674,728,34
975,600,266

$o

$o

$o

$o

$o

$o
$o
$o
$o
$0

fi6,166,873
9s,474,s82
w322,297

910,717,569
911.,779,771.

$13,s40,8ss
g7zs17ßa,

fi74,511,,230

$22,714+746

924,665,033

950,267,873

ffis,334,582
$49,482,291
w8,827,569
99L793,429
995,939,513
987,359,4&
982,229,712
996,843,090

9100,265,299

$8s3
$1,103

$831

$1,160
$1,s61
$1,s93
$1,,47
91,357
91,597
$1,ós4

$0

$o

$0
$o

$o
$o
$o
$o
$o

$0

3.51%
4.29%

3.01%
3.91%
5.78%
527%
4.80y"
4.527"
532%
6.07%

0.61,%

0.79%

0.s3%

0.74%

0.95%
0.97o/o

0.95%
0.89%
1.04%
't.08%

(1) Sewer, Water and Veterans Memorial Rink Funds
Source: Audited Financial Statements, U. S. Census, Division of Local Services

City of Waltham, Massachusefús

Business-type Activities (1) Total P¡imarv Government

Fiscal
Yea¡

General
Obligafion

Bonds
Capital
Leases

Total
Debt

Outstanding
Per

Capita

Percentage Percentage
of Personal of Equalized

Income Value
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City of Waltham, Massachusetts

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

As of fune 30,2073

City of Waltham, Massachusetts

Debt repaid with property taxes and user charges

MVW<A Water...........
MI4IRASewer

M8T4..........

Subtotal........

City direct debt. ..... .. . . . .. . .. . .

Total direct and overlapping debt. .. . .. . .. .. . . . .. . .. .. .

Debt

Outstanding

2,099,794,000

4,027,396,000

5,769,21,4,580

Estimated

Percentage

Applicable (1)

3.855%

2.886%

0.800%

Estimated

Share of

Overlapping

Debt

Current Year

Assessment for
Operations and

Debt Service

s 80,947,059

11,6;230,649

46,153,717

243,331,,424

77,098,769

$ 320,430,193

g 7192,300

12,485,924

1,,281,,1,8't

g 21,559,405

Source: Official Statement for Sale of Bonds

(1) The percentage of total overlapping debt is derived from the City's share of capital charges divided by the debt at fiscal year end.
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City of l^¡althu, Massachuetts
Computation of tegal Debt Milgin

Last Ten Fiscal Yeæ

2004 2005 2006 _ 2oo7 2008 2oo9 2010 2077 2012 2073

.....s 8289,720,700 g 8,289,720,700 $ 9255,808,700 g 9,264A2'|,800 g 9,qU,O66,4OO g 9,934,066A00 $ 1205,804000 $ g,27zs86,7oo g s,27s,182,000 g s,72s,78ZOOO

496,703,320 496,703,320 460,290,200 460,649,305 463,959;100 486,459,100

outsta¡dingdebtapplicabletolimit... 28,796,873 43,309,582 47,902,291. 66,6g\s6g zg,s7o,uo 92,2n,s73 Bg,z6o,ggs n,8¡rg,tgl Bg,ag1,22z g7,74g,Bgg
Authoriædedujsueddebt-. .. L61,298,545 739,279A02 UA72,854 70,903,557 39,8226n M,Ogg,g73 29374,022 30,473,485 74,962,927 19,086,076

EquaUzed Valuation

DebtLûnit-5%ofEqualÈedValmtion.. 4741486,035

[€ss:

Total debt applicable to the limit
æafKmtageof debtlimit........ .. 45.72%

Sourcs City Auditor's Office, City of Walthm

474,486,035 462790,435 463,227,090

M.05./. 2859% 29.69% 22.82"Á 27.820/. 24 57% 2i.50% 22.59%
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City of Walthanç Massachusetts
Principal Employers (excluding Cþ)

Current Year and Nine Yeats Ago

Brandeis University

Bentley Univeßity

Bank of America

Astra-Zen(a

National Grid

AM-FM Cleaning Corpo¡ation

Nova Biomedical Corporation

Raytlrcon Corporation

Verizon

Parexel Intenational Corporation

Automatic Data P¡tressing

Mass Medical Sæiety

Westin Hotel

IBM Corporation

Flæt Boston

Tufb Health Plan

Waltham Hospital

Terra-Lycos

Higher Education

Highe¡ Education

Financial Seruices

Phamaceuticals

UtiUty

Janitorial Contracting

BioTæh Raearch

Eltrtronics

Commuicatioro

R&D Coruultant

Financial Seruics

Medical Joumal

Lodging

Conputers

Financial Services

Health Care

Health Care

Softwae Developnenl

4.29%

1.87i6

7.U%

7.U%

7.70%

770%

7.66'/"

7.47%

1.4216

1.79%

1,14%

0 9^t%

zt37y"

t,572

800

660

650

650

600

600

587

520

500

420

401

320

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

I

9

10

11

72

13

7,512

7,037

7,700

600

ó00

520

500

420

424

800

t,700

1,500

994

600

2

4

1

9

7

10

11

13

72

5

1

3

5

6

4.67%

3 77%

s.19%

1 83%

1.83%

1,.59%

1 53%

728%

129y.

2U%

5 19%

4.58%

3.03%

7.83%

39 40%

Source: Massachusetb Deparhrent of Emplolment and Training

Clty of Waltham, Massachuselts

20lJ4
Natu¡e

of
Business

Percentage of
Total City

Percentage of
Total City

Rank Rank

129

12907
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City of Waltham, Massachusetts
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

Population
Estimates

Personal
Income

Per
Capita

Personal
Income

Median
Ag"

School Unemployment
Enrollment Rate

2004
2005

2006
2007

2008

2009
2010
2011,

2012
2013

58,994
59,232
59,556
59,352
60,325
60,236
60,605
60,605
60,632
60,632

fi24,300
fi25,719
fi27,567
929,667

$30,160
$30,205

$30,021

$30,021

$30,007
fi27,226

34.2

34.2

34.2

34.2

34.2

34.2

34.2

34.2

34.2

33.9

4,825
4,669
4,718
4,836
4,725
4,751
4,763
4,796
4,997
5,183

3.2%

4.0%

4.0%

3.6%

4.2%

6.8%

6.7%

5.7%

5.2%

5.0%

'J,,431,'J.44,000

r,523,362,000
'l.,,647,764,000

'1,760,796,000

'1,,819,470,000

7,819,470,000
'J,,819,410,000

L,819,410,000
1.,819,410,000

1.,650,776,000

Source: U. S. Census, Division of Local Services
Median age is based on most recent census data
2004to 2013 population/personal income obtained from the Division of Local services
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City of Waltham, Massachusetts
Full-time Equivalent City Employees by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

200720062004 2005 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Function:
General goverrìment....... 123
Public safety........ . 367
Education.. 871
Consolidatedpublicworks........, 58
Communitydevelopment.......... 25
Health and human services........ 18
Cultureandrecreation.............., 29
Water/sewer....... 33

Total

Source: City records.

122

377

872

58
26

20

29

31

110

374

869

72

31

20

23
33

707

369
913

71

28

20

25

32

't07

370
906

71

30

20
26

32

106
359

918

67
27

79
25

27

't02

358

91L
63

26

18

24

27

96

355

927

60

25

18

25

27

93

350

932
61,

23

16

26

28

94

354
896

61.

22

15

37
28

'1.,524 1,535 7,532 1,565 1,562 1,549 -1,,529 
1,533 7,529 '1,507
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City of Waltham, Massachusetts
Operating Indicators by Functio4,/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2004 2005 2006 2007

Fiscal Year

2008 2009 2010 2011. 2072 2073
FunctionÆropram

General Govemment
Cash flow (millions).......
Accounts payable invoices processed. . .. . ..

Payroll checks processed.........
Police

Arrests...... . . ..

Tra.ffic citations
Parking violations...............
g¿¡ylçs çalls. . ..

Major investigations..............
Fire

kupections - schools/nursing homes/hospi+¡1s......
Inspections - commercial/industrial
Enrergency responses - box alarlns.......................
Emergency responses - still alarms
Emergency responses - false alarrns. . .. . .. . .. .

Water
Consnmption in gallons þillions / y ear).................
Leak detection (miles). . .. . ... ...
Service repairs

Sewer
Seru'ice repairs
Stoppages - mÂins..........
Stoppages - services..........

Health and Hun.an Services
Permits - pubtc health. . .. . .. . .. . .

Senior citizen prograrrìs.... . .. . .

Senior citizen progtarns - participants..
Recreation activities......-..-.........
Recreation activities - participants
Veterans cases. . .. . .. . .. ...
Cemetery buria1s................

Libraries
Items circulated. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .

Registered borrowers............

Source: Various City Departments

MO
36,&0
72,885

1,058

72,297

4,652
42,079

-1,470

223

254
L,125
5,7',23

203

2.9

155

158

23

118

n2

822
15

2,350
165

17,085
570

208

642,884
29,963

460

37,000
73,000

1,074

15,406
5,31't

38,563

7,542

220
270

7,082
5,588

200

2.7
155

208

25

98
290

797

26

2,400
166

17,080
640

230

&1,497
31,,74

480

37,000
73,000

7,193
76,496
5,170

35,119
'1 ,607

200

260
r.,150

5,800

150

J

160

183

30

18

41

77't

26

2,400
'170

17,125
750
230

&5,000
32,500

500

37,000
73,000

1,,137

14,569

5,181

34,494
1,,721,

100

5'25

7,200
5,650

1ó0

J

151

225

45
150

275

760
26

¿s00
230

15,050

850

2-15

&0,000
3¿s00

520

36,000

72,000

1.,194

73,914
4,939

34,694
1,826

100

520

L,200
5,500

170

3

165

150

43

1%
249

746

26

2,35-I

795
13,000

950

L68

578,192
30,268

540

36,000

72,000

1,006

77,'t40
5,150

35,000

1,880

100

550

7,200
6,000

190

J

L65

155

40
100

300

885

26

2,200
200

14000
1,050

100

575,000

32,000

s50
36,000

72,000

1,181
10,363
5,247

35,000

1,880

100

550

7,360
5,990

150

2.8

1,65

9't

26

79
238

8s3
26

2,613
220

13,982
1,050

200

527,956
28,99'J.

580

36,000

72,000

't,097

11.,260

4,546
35,000

1.,607

100

550

1,800

ó 500

200

2.8

165

100

30
72

175

850

26

2,61,5

230
74,2:25

1,050

200

s02500
28,900

600

36,000

72,000

1,,049

8,067

4,947

35,000

1,607

100

5s0
1.,900

ó,300

1s0

J

165

100

29

92
'253

831

26

2,650
230

19,670

1,065

210

513,041

28,223

620

36,000

72,000

928
8,698
3,837

35,000
1,,495

100

s50
L,900

6,300

150

J

150

115

29
124
281,

780
26

2,822
227

26,249

1,065

200

M7,665
25,000
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City of Waltham, Massachusetts
Capital Asset Statistics by Functio4lProgram

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

FunctionÆrogram

General Government
Number of Buildings...........

Police

Number of Stations. . ... .. .....
Fire

Nr¡mber of Stations....
Education

Number of elementary schools.. .. . .. .... . .. . ...
Number of middle schools.........
Number of high schools. . .. . .. . ........

Public Works

2005 2006 2007 2009 2070

159

1,776

160
72]

13

11

7

8

5

18

9

2013

5959

7

2

1

Water mains (miles).........
Fire hydrants
Sanitary sewers (miles).........
Storm sewers (miles).........

Culture and Recreation
Parks and playgrounds. . .. . ..

Fields(baseban). . . .......
Fields (softbatl). . ...... . ..
Fields (soccer/ multi-purpose)
Wading pools / spray parks...........
Basketball cor¡rts
Termis courts. . .. . .. . ..

Source: Various City Deparhents

7
2

1

159

7,776

160

121.

13

11

7

8

5

18

9

7

2

1

L59
'1,176

760

121

13

71.

7

8

5

18

9

7

2

7

759
'1,776

160
72L

13

11

7
8

5

18

9

159
'1,176

160

721

73

L1

7

8

5

18

9

6

2
1

159

1,176

160
121.

13

1L

7

8

5

18

9

6

2

1

159

L,176

160

127

13

11

7
8

5

18

9

6

2
L

159

7,176

160

12't

6

2

1

6

2

1

159

1,776

160

721,

6

2

1

13

11

5

4

4
18

9

13

11

7

8

5

18

9

13

11

7

8

5

18

9
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